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The year 2023 marks the start of fully implementing the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National
Congress. Over the year, under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee with Comrade Xi Jinping
at its core, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank) implemented the
guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Second Plenary Session of the 20th CPC Central
Committee, the Central Financial Work Conference, and the Central Economic Work Conference. With a
deep understanding of politically-oriented and people-centered financial services, CDB unswervingly fulfilled
its responsibilities and missions as a bank for infrastructure, balanced development and security, continued
to deepen reforms, and made substantial efforts to carry out themed political education. CDB always rooted
its actions in the overall national interests, supported China’s key industries and under-developed sectors,
and achieved new progress in tasks of all aspects, making positive contributions to the national social and
economic development. At the end of 2023, the CDB group’s total assets stood at RMB18.65 trillion. With
a group-wide net profit of RMB87.417 billion, it achieved high quality development while supporting national
strategies.
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Supporting infrastructure development in keeping with the Bank’s mandate. CDB continued to focus
on its mandate as a bank for infrastructure and kept improving its internal systems, mechanisms, and
policies that are compatible with the building of a modern infrastructure system. CDB adhered to the
market-based and rule-of-law principles, actively explored and innovated service models for infrastructure
investment and financing, and continued to increase investment and financing support for infrastructure,
with loans of RMB1.51 trillion issued to the sector throughout the year. Focusing on the major projects of
the national “14th Five-Year Plan”, CDB contributed to the implementation of a number of strategic projects
that benefit the economy and people’s livelihood, such as the Yangtze to Hanjiang Water Diversion Project,
the Pinglu Canal, and the East-West National Computing Network, bringing into full play its role of a leading
bank for infrastructure.
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Improving resource allocation for better performance and efficiency in supporting national strategies.
CDB supported self-reliance and self-improvement at higher levels and high quality development of
manufacturing, helped to step up the implementation of innovation-driven development strategies, and
vigorously promoted technological innovation and basic research. CDB was among the first to support
subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate
emergency needs, and took the lead in delivering a number of such projects. CDB helped to strengthen
resource security and advance national regional strategies, and improved quality and efficiency of green
finance to drive substantial progress in ecology-oriented development (EOD). CDB undertook 60% of the
country’s special facility to ensure the delivery of presold housing, helping to “guarantee the delivery of
presold housing for the sake of social stability and livelihood.” It learned and applied the experience of the
Green Rural Revival Program to help promote rural revitalization. It provided on-lending loans for micro and
small businesses, and implemented the policies of deferred repayment, interest waiver, and higher credit
lines with lower rate for student loans. It accelerated the implementation of the RMB350 billion financing
window to support high quality Belt and Road cooperation.

Strengthening risk management and never compromising on the bottom line of risk control. CDB
optimized its vertical risk compliance management mechanism, strengthened the comprehensive risk
management capabilities of its affiliates, continued to strengthen risk penetration management across
subsidiaries, enhanced risk prevention and control in key areas, comprehensively screened out hidden risks,
and insisted on early identification, early warning, early exposure and early disposal of risks. It continued to
manage risks in a proper manner, made greater efforts to recover non-performing loans (NPL) after write-offs,
and improved the quality and performance of risk management and mitigation. It launched the Year of Internal
Control and Compliance to raise the awareness of law-based and compliant operation across the Bank.

Upgrading internal governance for continuous improvement of governance capability and
management. CDB faithfully carried out the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee
and the State Council on reforming and improving policy-based finance and delivered reform measures.
It deepened the integration of Party building to corporate governance, revised the working rules of the
Party committees across the Bank, formulated working instructions for senior management, and improved
the business performance evaluation on executives, the duty performance evaluation and accountability
system for senior management, effectively turning its institutional advantages into governance effectiveness.
Besides, CDB systematically optimized its credit system and mechanism, thoroughly carried out the
Digital CDB strategy, and continued to improve operational service capabilities, striving to further refine its
professional operation and management.

The year 2024 marks the 75th anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic of China and the 30th
anniversary of the establishment of CDB. The Bank will adhere to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on
Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, and implement the new development philosophy
on all fronts in a comprehensive and accurate manner. It will comprehensively carry out the major plans
and key tasks proposed by the Central Financial Work Conference, strengthen and commit to its mandate
and mission, and promote the development of technology finance, green finance, inclusive finance, elderly
care finance and digital finance, to give better play to its unique role in the financial system with Chinese
characteristics, support high quality economic and social development with premium financial services, and
make new and greater contributions to the building of a stronger country and national rejuvenation on all
fronts through a Chinese path to modernization.
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FERT

IMPORTANT NOTICE

KITEBR2024FE=REWT2024F4H26 H AN BI A FERS

ATRRPESVESIHENMERY SIREEMNRG 2023FEMEIRECLLESITITESA (FHRITBEEN)
AAMRERENEREIDENE T, FEERELTREBELNEITRE
The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at the third meeting in the 2024 financial year (the calendar year as adopted

by the Bank) on 26 April 2024.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023 are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP has audited these
financial statements in accordance with Auditing Standards for the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and International Standards on
Auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.

EANS

ORPORATE INFORMATION

RITHMIZT19945F , RERHRRY . ERESHAS  XFPELFTEATFMEST N LR BBERIIEAM

LHEBFRMEERIME.

Established in 1994, the Bank is a state-funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal entity directly
overseen by the State Council, it is dedicated to supporting China’s economic development in key industries and under-developed sectors.

EERXEZR:
EERLER:
EEREKA:
pERLEAY

SEAF AL

R E 4R AS -
BiE:

ZR:

P 3E

Registered Name in Chinese:

Registered Name in English:
Legal Representative:
Registered Capital:
Registered Address:

Post Code:

Telephone:

Facsimile:

Website:

ERFFARIT (&R FFRIRIT)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (45 : CDB)
IR

ARM4,212.48127T
ERTEBREXTTAKRE18S

100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn

ERFF L 4R1T (shortened to FFRRIT)

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (abbreviated as CDB)
ZHAO Huan

RMB421,248 million

18 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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W52
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Bfy : ART 1012t E 45 tE Billion RMB or %)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RHREE
o 18,654.5 18,243.1 17,167.9 17,1038.6 16,504.6
Total Assets
RARBRERE
Gross Loans and Advances to Customers 14,904.5 14,474.9 13,262.5 13,049.9 12,200.5
AREHK
Non-Performing Loan Ratio 0.58% 0.78% 0.84% 0.79% 0.95%
BB ER
Allowance to Total Loans Ratio 4.66% 4.28% 3.80% 8.38% 2T
=&
AN 16,974.8 16,637.5 15,629.7 15,623.0 15,110.8
Total Liabilities
ERITHRFIUES
Debt Securities Issued 12,724.3 12,126.0 11,480.4 10,7221 9,735.8
B &N &
Total Equity 1,679.7 1,605.6 1,638.3 1,480.6 1,398.7
A
Profit for the Year 87.4 84.3 80.8 118.8 118.5
= o
AAT 2 5 11.65% 11.837% 11.66% 12.03% 11.71%

Capital Adequacy Ratio

A RFERE (BRMIRIN) M SBIELREFRETRECWSIHEN RS, REFIEEN, ARITRABFAIEHHE,
UAERMARTRo

A2 PRAPRAREERBREAERTREEEEEZRR (UTHRERRES KB LRTRANEEE (R17) ) EHEXHA
ETE BREAIRBEIN, RFEEREMVRATERBEXBEL NG H AR,

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting
Standards and, unless otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the Administrative
Measures for the Capital of Commercial Banks (for Trial Implementation) issued by the former China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (CBIRC). Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy ratio is a consolidated figure.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERMRMRETER

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

wa BA%S 5 HEFH {EER AT &)
Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office Since
R BEEK TES S 19635%F12H 20184114
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963  November 2018
¥ /M BIESK . HTES 17K % 1966406 H 20234058
TAN Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M June 1966 May 2023
=5k HEES 5 1968402H 2023%07H
LI Chunlin Government Agency Director M February 1968 July 2023
B IR HEES e 19684 12H 20244038
LIAO Min Government Agency Director M December 1968  March 2024
ey HEEE T 1971407 A 20234048
GUO Tingting Government Agency Director F July 1971 April 2023
BN HEES z 19584054 20178108
ZHANG Xiaohui Government Agency Director F May 1958 October 2017
KAES BANES | 1966403 A 20174108
ZHANG Shenghui  Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
B X BANES 5 1966401H 202247028
TAN Long Equity Director M January 1966 February 2022
BER BANE S oy 1968401 A 20234058
GE Rongrong Equity Director F January 1968 May 2023
SKEEM BANES z 1970104 20237058
ZHANG Lusong Equity Director F October 1970 May 2023
MEZE BANES 5 1966408 A 20234078
FAN Kejun Equity Director M August 1966 July 2023
ETECN RINEE T 19774058
YAN Lijuan* Equity Director F May 1977
5KOHE BT == 1972504 A 2021028
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President M April 1972 February 2021
ESERS EIESRIS 3 19684038 20224108
WANG Weidong  Executive Vice President M March 1968 October 2022
g BT 5 197249078 2023% 128
XIE Taifeng Executive Vice President M July 1972 December 2023
FK BT 5 19684128 2024704 A
WANG Kebing Executive Vice President M December 1968  April 2024
PR EIEERS =3 19724F08H
CHEN Mengmeng* Executive Vice President M August 1972
FHE EERUP B 19658128 20224108
LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors M December 1965  October 2022
mELE HEHEITE g 19655114 20205098
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer F November 1965  September 2020
X H H5EILESE 5 1964 08H 20215048
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer M August 1964 April 2021
£ & HEXKE 2 1966408 H 20224108

M

WANG Zhong

Chief Risk Officer

August 1966

October 2022
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Full Name Title of Position Gender Date of Birth In Office
BIEE.SEEBHR

Directors and Senior Management Members Leaving Office

BB R R BIESK HTESR 7K E 1963401H 20194128 —2023%024
OUYANG Weimin  Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President M January 1963 December 2019—February 2023
(ESSIZIN HATEE BIfTK 5 196904 H 2022108 —2023408 B
XU Shouben Executive Director, Executive Vice President M April 1969 October 2022—August 2023
EHER HEESE 5 1963406 H 20194058 —2023407 A
LIAN Weiliang Government Agency Director M June 1963 May 2019—July 2023
WEA HEES s 19634F09H 2022407 A —2024403 8
XU Hongcai Government Agency Director M September 1963  July 2022—March 2024

Z R HEES 5 1967502H 20175108 —2023%04 8

LI Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017—April 2023
e BNES B 1963404 H 2020408 4 —2023403H
WU Zhenpeng Equity Director M April 1963 August 2020—March 2023
K B BANES S 196846 3 20194018 —20234 058
ZHANG Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019—May 2023
X8 BNES e 19634 05H 20214088 —2023%06 A
CUI Hanzhong Equity Director M May 1963 August 2021—June 2023
x|t BT s 1976404 20214098 —2024%01 8
LIU Jin Executive Vice President M April 1976 September 2021—January 2024

S RAEERENER
* Please refer to the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in this chapter.

e = /—fr
E$ @B Fﬁii |EH
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BR EEK NITEF SEPERRRITAIUISHALSKLE, ENIHATEITK, 259 LEM22E, Ligm
SATITK, PERRRTEIGTK, FEXK (£H) 225, ‘:F'.ﬁlﬁj(%.ﬁxﬁj SHTEFRAKRRITHITES.
T, PERIRITRIZESE K. 7K.

ZHAO Huan is Chairman and Executive Director of CDB. Previously, he held various positions successively in China Construction Bank
(CCB), including Deputy General Manager of Corporate Business Department, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Branch, General
Manager of Corporate Business Department, General Manager of Shanghai Branch, and Executive Vice President. He also served as
Executive Director of China Everbright (Group) Corporation and China Everbright Group Ltd. and concurrently Executive Director and
President of China Everbright Bank; and Vice Chairman and President of Agricultural Bank of China (ABC).

B BEZEK ATES. TK. BETPERTABMBABRMTAIGTK (EHIE) 7K, z@EATITK, PR
EEBRARAFIERK, FERIT FEATITRK, PEIRRGTHTES BITK, IMNEARBGEIEK, &
BRZARR, TMNEEFER RAIEK, SBINEARBIE (F)o

TAN Jiong is Vice Chairman, Executive Director and President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy General Manager (acting general
manager) and General Manager of Bank of China (BOC) Tibet Branch, General Manager of BOC Yunnan Branch, Chairman of Bank of
China Investment Management Co., Ltd., General Manager of BOC Guangdong Branch, Executive Director and Executive Vice President
of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), Vice Governor of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the
Party Leadership Group of Guizhou Provincial People’s Government, member of the Standing Committee of CPC Guizhou Provincial
Committee, Head of the United Front Work Department of CPC Guizhou Provincial Committee, and concurrently Deputy Secretary of the
Party Leadership Group of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) Guizhou Committee.
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ZEIK VNEERLARMUEZRRETE, RELRTHREZES. BEFRAELRNMUEZRRBI TR, MIMATE
FE.BTHK, TEEIBLE.HK, DERRLE, KAEEEE. WHK.

LI Chunlin is Vice Minister of China’s National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), and concurrently CDB Government
Agency Director. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of Shaanxi Provincial Development and Reform Commission; member

of the Standing Committee of CPC Municipal Committee, Deputy Mayor, Deputy Party Secretary, Mayor and Party Secretary of Yulin; and
member of the Standing Committee and Secretary-General of CPC Shaanxi Provincial Committee.

BlE MEVBEEBK, REXTHEES SAFERESHATEIEE. FE, LEREBBK, ARUEM
SINADANZENFBK, PAMEZRSHAEEEE

LIAO Min is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Finance (MOF) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, he served
as Deputy Director-General and Director-General of the General Office of China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC), Director-

General of CBRC Shanghai Office, Director-General of Bureau IV of the Office of the Central Leading Group for Financial and Economic
Affairs, and Deputy Director-General of the Office of the Central Commission for Financial and Economic Affairs.

HEE NEFSMEITK, REALATHRZES. BEFSHEVSIRTK. K, FEITK, HHIEFKENIE,

GUO Tingting is Vice Minister of the Ministry of Commerce (MVOFCOM) and concurrently Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously
she held various positions successively in the MOFCOM, including Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Department of
Finance, Director-General of Comprehensive Department, and Assistant Minister of MOFCOM.

KRE HZEZ. ZAPEARBRTEHENREZLEE/RER, PEREGRETESEALPTESSHIG, FE
ARRBRITEHTHIIK, BHBERITK, PFEARBITITKGE, BEAZAEO SRR K.

ZHANG Xiaohui is Government Agency Director of CDB. Previously, she was People’s Bank of China (PBC) Chief Representative for
the Americas, Senior Advisor to China’s IMF Executive Director, Director-General of Department of Financial Markets and Department of
Monetary Policies of PBC, Assistant Governor of PBC, and Dean of Tsinghua University PBC School of Finance.

kES RNEZR. EEEZINLEEBERKXIRIK, EELETFRFTK. K, PEARBRITEEMNRE
WEFERER, BFINCERB S 21t

ZHANG Shenghui is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he was Deputy Director-General of Balance of Payments Department of the
State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE), Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Supervision and Inspection
Department of SAFE, PBC Chief Representative for the Americas, and Chief Accountant of SAFE.

Bl BONER. SEVEREEMSROSSD (BISKR), WEEREES A ORI EE, MEEFRES & S
K =R R
TAN Long is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he held positions in MOF successively as Chief Accountant (Deputy-Director-General-

Level), Deputy Director-General of the Treasury Payment Center, and Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of Tax Policy
Department.

BEE RNEZ.GEPEIRRITRNES PRILERAERIETLAIRTIMEE N TE. EFE2E
B, IR EESEEARAINYES, RARREARMERAIMNBELTRRIESBRITAIESE.
GE Rongrong is Equity Director of CDB. She used to be Equity Director of the ICBC, work for Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as Deputy

Director-General of Banking Institution Management Department | and Senior Advisor, and serve as Independent Director of ICBC Credit
Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd., and Director of Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwan Hongyuan Securities Co., Ltd.
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KEEH KRNESR. BEPERFERFTEILIEEEMBAATHEREMALK. SREE . ERLEE,

ZHANG Lusong is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, she held various positions at China Investment Corporation, including team leader
and senior manager of Legal & Compliance Department and then Senior Advisor.

ABE BNEZ. SEFRARBUFIERENITBXEKEDAEITEMSE R, WBE R S &K,
BARBNAESHIRIRIFK. —RKIM A
FAN Kejun is Equity Director of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of the Department of Administration and Finance of

the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Macao SAR, and worked in the MOF successively as Deputy Inspector of the
Department of Agriculture, Deputy Director-General and Level | Inspector of the Department of Natural Resources and Ecological Environment.

EmmE KRNES (FRERSTEREREENNRE) SEPEARBRITHALTEIEE. ZHRKIAR

YAN Lijuan is Equity Director of CDB (pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities). Previously, she served as
Deputy Director-General of the General Office and Level Il Inspector of PBC.

K BITK. BERBROBASREBRLDEE. REE, NKEER (R-REH) BISKE, EBHTEIT
KOEZBHE, FMERTEIITR TR, NEREER (HZ-REM) 2L, BRNARERNLEIRE ( RHAHED
NE)BEE (F1E).

ZHANG Hui is Executive Vice President of CDB. Before joining CDB, he worked in the Bank of Communications of China as Deputy
General Manager and then General Manager of Asset Preservation Department; Deputy General Manager of Risk Management
Department (Asset Preservation Department); Deputy General Manager and Disciplinary Secretary of Shanghai Branch; Deputy General
Manager and then General Manager of Guizhou Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department (Asset Preservation
Department), Chief Risk Officer and concurrently General Manager of Risk Management Department and Director-General of Office of
Case Prevention Leadership Team.

IEER BiTK. SAERFLRTERERBRIBK, BERGELESBRIBEK, RIITHTTK, BlreiE L
FLEAEEEE, ERTHITITR IIAEDITITRK.

WANG Weidong is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of
International Finance Department, Deputy Director-General of International Cooperation Department, General Manager of Shenzhen

Branch, Director-General of Administration Office of International Finance Department, General Manager of Chongging Branch, and
General Manager of Jiangsu Branch.

HRE BTK. EEFEIRRITALERITERAESRSEENELDZE. REE, a2 1TITKEIE.
BT, AREEE IABESTIK, R LFE2 5.

XIE Taifeng is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he worked at ICBC serving as Deputy Director-General of the General Office
and concurrently Deputy General Manager and then General Manager of the Brand and Service Management Department, Assistant

General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Hebei Branch, Director-General of the General Office, and General Manager of Jiangsu
Branch, and Chief Business Officer successively.

EFRK BEITK. BEXEHVEE (THAKRSE) BIBK, WEHFZEZIRIK, MEIEFTK. K MR —R
KR, PEDITRBZREIRK (3F), BAGRSHRMITET ORI EE (3, EHFITHE) . EE(F), ERITKo

WANG Kebing is Executive Vice President of CDB. Previously, he served as Deputy Director-General of Tianjin Municipal Finance Bureau
(Tianjin Local Taxation Bureau). Then, he held positions in MOF successively as Deputy Director-General of the Department of Treaty and Law,
Deputy Director-General, Inspector and Level | Inspector of the Budget Department, concurrently Vice President of China Remote Learning
College for Accounting, Deputy Director-General (acting Director-General) and then Director-General of the Government Debt Research and
Assessment Center, and Director-General of the Department of Finance of MOF.
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BER BITK(TRERSFSERSHREENMNZE) . SEPERVEARRITIFEDITAIGTK, | AHLKEE
AERATITK, WREATITK.
CHEN Mengmeng is Executive Vice President of CDB (pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities). Previously,

he worked successively at Agricultural Development Bank of China (ADBC) as Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Branch, General
Manager of Guangxi Branch, and General Manager of Shandong Branch.

FHE EFEZFSUWPB ANRRBLELE. BEREERALRITIFE=Z[EIEK, ARTEIEE, ZRESFHABK.
BX, IEESTHTK, EREEFEK, EFERERTEILATESRK. 2#, BERARRITAZEREK.

LI Huachang is Secretary of the Board of Directors and General Manager of Human Resources Department of CDB. Previously, he
worked successively at CDB as Deputy Director-General of Project Appraisal Department Ill, Deputy Director-General of Executive Office,
Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Legal Department, General Manager of Henan Branch, Director-General of Loan
Management Department, Chairman and President of CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and Director-General of Human Resources Department of
CDB.

BEE HEEITE #SIMHLELE. SAERARRITVESREIEK, EEEEREK, MsBREK, RIELEE
%ﬁﬁ&’&ﬁ%%&, ERALRBRITHEITE K
YANG Baohua is Chief Audit Officer and General Manager of Audit Department of CDB. She worked successively at CDB as Deputy

Director-General of Finance and Accounting Department, Director-General of Operations Department, Director-General of Finance and
Accounting Department, Chairperson of the China-Africa Development Fund (CADFund), and Director-General of Audit Department.

WEE BHRUISE WSRRFL2EE. REERFARRGT REATEITK FFEZ_FAIBEK. BK, 2IER
K, WELERBEK.

LIU Peiyong is Chief Business Officer and General Manager of Business Development Department of CDB. Previously, he worked
successively at CDB as Deputy General Manager of Guangdong Branch, Deputy Director-General and then Director-General of Project
Appraisal Department I, Director-General of Large Corporate Client Department, and Director-General of Business Development
Department.

Fh BFEXRE.XEEERZELE. BEERARRITAZREBK. ERFTNAETREIAK, EEFO0EE,
SRRERRK, OIE2TITK, REREK.

WANG Zhong is Chief Risk Officer and General Manager of Risk Management Department of CDB. Previously, he worked successively at
CDB as Deputy Director-General of Human Resources Department, Full-time Deputy Chief of Assessment and Evaluation Team, Director-
General of Operations Center, Director-General of Information Technology Department, General Manager of Sichuan Branch, and Director-
General of Treasury & Financial Market Department.
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CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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NABIEEATHEZES. R, KB EXNBRABEERTRINES . WHABBERTEITK.

As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, TAN
Jiong was appointed as Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in
2023, GUO Tingting was appointed as Government Agency Director. As reviewed at the seventh meeting of the Board of Directors in
2023, LI Chunlin was appointed as Government Agency Director. As reviewed at the first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, LIAO
Min was appointed as Government Agency Director. As reviewed at the eighth meeting of the Board of Directors in 2022 and approved
by the national financial regulatory authorities, GE Rongrong and ZHANG Lusong were appointed as Equity Director. As reviewed at the
second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, FAN Kejun was appointed
as Equity Director. As reviewed at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, YAN Lijuan was appointed as Equity Director,
pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities. As reviewed at the 10th meeting of the Board of Directors in 2023
and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, XIE Taifeng was appointed as Executive Vice President. As reviewed at the
first meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024 and approved by the national financial regulatory authorities, WANG Kebing was appointed
as Executive Vice President. As reviewed at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2024, CHEN Mengmeng was appointed as
Executive Vice President, pending confirmation by the national financial regulatory authorities.

OUYANG Weimin no longer served as Vice Chairman, Executive Director, and President. XU Shouben no longer served as Executive
Director and Executive Vice President. LIAN Weiliang, XU Hongcai and LI Chenggang no longer served as Government Agency Director.
WU Zhenpeng, ZHANG Yong and CUI Hanzhong no longer served as Equity Director. LIU Jin no longer served as Executive Vice President.

FRE BB

ANNUAL REMUNERATION

BRAFHEE. ATATAFHmRIRBCPFREBEVATAHFMEREITEYVNIT, FMEHEBELRE
SR EHRNTHEEA BERBEEREEMINAMHREARAEREFEHMNSEIINERETZE,
REFARZZHN, RRXEFTAEEFMERCTE, REEMER REEBRETEMNETERREFFHE
FITBH MG EAEH. 20235, KITFHEZ EAMEBTF AT ARRFEFNGUEFHF LB IR

Remuneration for executives. The remuneration policy for executives of the Bank is kept in compliance with the Provisional Standards
for the Remuneration of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base salary, an
annual performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated in accordance with the base figure and performance
evaluation results released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be adopted by the CPC
CDB Committee and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review. It
is filed with the competent state authorities and announced on the official website of the Bank after approved by the Board of Directors.
In 20283, their annual base salaries and annual performance-based salaries were paid in strict compliance with the above-mentioned
standards and regulations.
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KITEE . SREEAR2023F F HMIE5R

Remuneration of Directors and Members of Senior Management in 2023

(#f7: At 10 Thousand RMB)

2023 FEMNFITRIBIBATFHHIER

Total Remuneration Before Tax from the Bank in 2023

HoRmkE., tlES, HREETRE

K 2L e RAERARE NS MRS
Full Name Title of Position T Contribution by the Employer
Remuneration . o
Prepaid to Social Insurance, Annuities,
P Additional Medical Insurances and
Housing Allowance
RN BEEK HTES
ZHAO Huan Chairman, Executive Director 65.63 8.7
B BIEE K PUTES. TK 54,69 1581
TAN Jiong Vice Chairman, Executive Director, President ' '
K HE EIEERS
ZHANG Hui Executive Vice President 59.07 18.46
x| EIESES
LIU Jin Executive Vice President 59.07 18.46
FER BT
WANG Weidong Executive Vice President 59.07 18.46
B 2% BT
XIE Taifeng Executive Vice President 4.t 511
== BEESWB
LI Huachang Secretary of the Board of Directors 123.85 21.57
mEL HEEITE
YANG Baohua Chief Audit Officer 123.92 21.07
1% 5 ELNE
LIU Peiyong Chief Business Officer 123.85 20.62
F & HEXNKRE
WANG Zhong Chief Risk Officer 123.85 21.06

A1 RIBEERBXINE, B2015F1BE, RTATRAFIIZRVHE FRE I G RAFHERZITHMEN AT, SR

2 RATE R EZMRANE EREET BB o

A3 REEREXNE, RTARAMNEMSREEAR2023FRAFHFMDERANIESR, FFHI SR EFETESTRE.

Note 1: Since January 2015, in accordance with the government regulations, the remuneration for executives of the Bank has been kept in
compliance with the Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of Executives of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities,
and has been paid hereby.

Note 2: Government Agency Directors and Equity Directors are not remunerated by the Bank.

Note 3: In accordance with the government regulations, the final remuneration of executives and other members of Senior Management in 2023
is still subject to final confirmation. Additional details of remuneration will be disclosed when they have been determined.
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ITHHNEBRES, RY N ENMERELNLLY, RANRITHNRKEER. R TREKGE, SR IRED
ERARATIZNERFEZZ RERAFEZREIN, ZRERTEMIE, FTM012FENR TR BV FE,
AREIRSMO—ELOIHREEWFESIE, £ R TRINERITRIEITRM. 20235, K {THLENBFEEZEE
B, RETIEBZURTABREIRE, 2 WREFEEERERETHE.

Remuneration for the staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures made by CDB to the staff; these include
salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing allowance, and annuities. In 2023, the Bank continued adopting
a position- and performance-based salary policy. The remuneration policy was improved to provide more effective management of
performance-based salaries. The Bank continued to give priority to staff working in the front line, holding key positions and having
excellent performance, in resources allocation, aiming to provide more effective incentives and restraints. With regard to remuneration,
the Bank strictly implemented the regulatory requirements, constantly enhanced rules and systems, and issued the Operational
Procedures of China Development Bank for Remuneration Management (2023), effectively improving standardized management. It
continued to improve the mechanism for deferred payment of performance-based salary of executives and senior management, and
strictly implemented the administrative measures on recovery and deduction of performance-based salaries. The Bank joins local
government’s social insurance schemes to fully protect the rights of the staff and provide coverage in basic endowment insurance,
healthcare, unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium in accordance with the threshold and
percentage mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to make elderly care payments to the
Bank’s staff members after their retirement. In addition to the basic elderly care, CDB, approved by competent state authorities, set up
annuity schemes for its staff in 2012. The accrued amount of annuity is based on a certain percentage of the total salaries and will be
paid as planned during retirement. In 2023, the Bank kept reinforcing the operation and management of annuities and actively adjusted
investment strategies according to the market changes, making every effort to ensure stable and sustainable operating income of

annuities.
RATER
STAFF

B E2023F K, EFAXEBERT12,173 A HPOOUW A THE AR LU EZTFH, 78R THEWRERI L
HHo

At the end of 2023, the CDB group had a staff of 12,1783, of whom 99% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 78% a master’s degree
or higher.
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REPA, KITRATREXFBERSREMIRANEXRTRENI UG AFEERER.

CDB keeps strengthening its governance system and governance capabilities in supporting national strategies, effectively integrating
the Party’s leadership into corporate governance to make sure that major decisions are well-informed, the effectiveness of execution
is improved, and the systematic supervision is enhanced. It strives to improve the compliance and effectiveness of its corporate
governance. Strictly abiding by regulatory requirements and the CDB Articles of Association, all functions perform their duties in a diligent
and standardized manner. They implement the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Second Plenary Session of
the 20th CPC Central Committee, the Central Financial Work Conference and the Central Economic Work Conference, promoting the
implementation of the major decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on all fronts. The CPC CDB
Committee takes the initiative to play a leading role in steering the direction, managing from a big-picture perspective, and ensuring
implementation. The Board of Directors conscientiously fulfills its responsibilities as the main body that makes business decisions by
developing strategies, making decisions and preventing risks. The senior management strictly follows the instructions of the CPC CDB
Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors in making operational plans, strengthening implementation, and enhancing
management. The Bank establishes and improves the democratic corporate management system based on the employees’ congress
under the Party’s leadership to ensure that staff representatives participate in corporate governance in an orderly and law-based manner.
Through building systems and mechanisms, CDB continues to improve its corporate governance system with “rights and responsibilities
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clearly delineated, all functions performing their duties, businesses operated in a coordinated manner under effective checks and
balances”, providing robust support for stable and standardized operation of the Bank.

Upholding and Strengthening CPC Leadership. CDB upholds the centralized leadership of the CPC Central Committee over finance
and keeps improving the system for the Party committee to study and deliver General Secretary Xi Jinping’s instructions, and establish
and refine the working mechanism for the Party committee to implement the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee
and the State Council. It adheres to the fundamental principle of supporting real economy, develops a deeper understanding of making
financial services more politically-oriented and people-centered and firmly stays on the path of financial advancement with Chinese
characteristics. It consolidates the studies of the Party’s innovative theories to enhance cohesion and forge the Party’s soul across the
Bank with Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era. It carries out themed educational activities on
studying and implementing Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, and transforms the achievements
made through studying the Party’s innovative theories into the practices in supporting high quality development. The Bank makes of the
Party’s political building a top priority and strengthens Party building in all aspects for continuous improvement. With in-depth reviews
over the central inspection and corrections against problems identified in auditing, the Bank also intensifies efforts to counter corruption,
enhance integrity and improve conduct so as to build a clean political environment.

Improving corporate governance mechanism. CDB revises the rules of work of the CDB Party Committee, strictly implements the
major matters deliberated and decided by the Party Committee. It streamlines the agenda of the Board of Directors and its committees,
and further clarifies their boundaries of power and methods of duty performance. It formulates regulations such as the administrative
measures of the Board of Directors on duty performance accountability of senior management, the rules on the duty performance
evaluation of senior management, and the regulations on the business performance evaluation of executives. On that basis, it organizes
duty performance evaluation on directors and senior management and operation performance evaluation on executives in a standardized
manner, keeping refining the internal evaluation and incentive and restraint mechanisms. The Bank promotes the standardized operation
of employees’ congress at the head office, all branches and majority-owned subsidiaries, effectively protecting the rights of employees to
be informed, participate, express and supervise.

Strengthening corporate governance and operation performance. It strengthens the integrated arrangement of subjects and
proposals of the Board of Directors, deliberates on subjects and arranges meetings as per plans, and keeps refining the proposal
communication procedures to improve the quality of decision-making by the Board of Directors. It further improves the feedback
mechanism for the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directors and opinions of directors, ensuring that there are relevant
records, supervision and feedback. It revises the regulations on information disclosure management to reinforce the information
disclosure management, faithfully performs information disclosure obligations, and standardizes the disclosure of major information. It
enhances special corporate governance training to improve the awareness of corporate governance compliance across the Bank.

In the reporting period, there was no significant difference between the actual corporate governance of the Bank and the normative
documents issued by regulators on corporate governance.

RRIER
SHAREHOLDERS
R, ATRABRREZ. BE2023ER, KRR LB ERA S LLHRATE:

Within the reporting period, there was no change to the shareholders of the Bank. CDB’s shareholders and their shareholdings by the
end of 2023 are as follows:

RARBR BFHERMN AL
Shareholder % of Total
T BB

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
FRCERAFBRFTELT

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 34.68%
BANRAFAERFELT 07 199,
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. e
LEMSREESESS 1 59%
National Council for Social Security Fund o970
P

ait 100.00%

Total
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The MOF is a macro-regulation body under the State Council, responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure, formulating
fiscal and tax policies, and exercising fiscal supervision. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government to perform the
responsibilities as an investor of central state-owned financial capital in a centralized way.

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People's
Republic of China. As authorized by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions,
and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owned financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas
projects, equities, debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.

EER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EERAER

Members of the Board of Directors

RBESRMEN(ERFLBRITERY), ATESSHIBZESHR, BFESBNITES (BEFEK). 48HFE
EMEERNESE. A, RMTESKABNRIER, BIESKABMEME, NTESFERE: BXEM, KEESH
RRERUEE. MEE. §5M. ARRITEERIEMEARALME, 81 THK. BIR. BEE. KRS, RINE
EHRABMIAK, B1F: KES B ERE . KENR.ARE. INE - EFSWH: FUE.

As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three Executive
Directors (the Chairman included), four Government Agency Directors, and six Equity Directors. The incumbent Chairman is ZHAO Huan
and Vice Chairman TAN Jiong; the Executive Directors are ZHAO Huan and TAN Jiong; the Government Agency Directors are each
appointed by the NDRC, the MOF, the MOFCOM, and the PBC. They are LI Chunlin, LIAO Min, GUO Tingting, and ZHANG Xiaohui. The

shareholders appoint ZHANG Shenghui, TAN Long, GE Rongrong, ZHANG Lusong, FAN Kejun, and YAN Lijuan* as Equity Directors. LI
Huachang is the Secretary of the Board of Directors.

S0 T FERESIER .

* Please refer to the Changes to the Board of Directors and Senior Management in the previous chapter.

BFERAR

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

ATESSERBEXEREINE(ERARRTERY)BTRA. EE<NRANTIECSRE  IIEFEUSMELE.
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BAIME, NER. WMEHEEASIEGE, AEEERY, —RIBRIINM IR E  BHEMBEST R, B
HITERMFEETETY, FERSES, RENATESKRELECERNBRNETS.
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The Board of Directors fulfills its responsibilities as per applicable laws, regulations and the CDB Articles of Association. Its responsibilities
include making annual financial budgets and statements, profit sharing plans, losses compensation plans, rules of procedures of the
Board of Directors and related revised plans, and policies and systems for information disclosure of the Bank. It reviews and approves
medium- and long-term development strategies, annual business operation plans and investment plans, annual plans on bond issuance,
plans on capital management and issuance of capital replenishment instruments, major projects, management rules on risk management
and internal control, internal management structure, plans on the establishment, adjustment and cancellation of tier-one branches in and
outside the Chinese mainland, charters, annual working plans, and annual reports. It decides on the authorization to the Chairman and
the senior management.

P

Work of the Board of Directors
20234, z&"%%’—\%é%%ﬂﬁq:% ESBRRREE, hEREERMERBVRESFFENMMENTIE, B
47ﬁu371_502u%ﬂ§%% A, B AR BRTEIEAEM S MRTIREEN, BRERSERLR, (REERMA
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ERERET1H.
In 2023, the Board of Directors of CDB faithfully implemented the decisions and instructions made by the CPC Central Committee and
the State Council, always making its plans and advancing its work in line with the bigger picture of the causes of the Party and the
country. In further studying and comprehending important instructions of General Secretary Xi Jinping, it focused on its mandate as a
bank for infrastructure, prioritized supporting national strategies, fulfilled its duties in compliance with laws and regulations, and made
prudent and well-informed decisions. It maintained the leading role of CPC CDB Committee, and supported the senior management
to strengthen operational management. CDB exerted greater efforts to research and decide on major matters concerning its reform
and development and promoted the implementation of the plans for reform of category-based management for specific accounts. It
enhanced strategic management and control, improved the business layout, refined the functions of internal organs, and strengthened
the vertical risk and compliance management. It developed reasonable appraisal targets and schemes and strengthened the financial
budget constraints. It continued to enhance the incentive and constraint mechanism and promoted CDB to make new achievements
in supporting national major strategies, boosting development of real economy, and preventing, mitigating and resolving major risks.
Over the year, the Board of Directors convened 11 meetings, at which members reviewed 62 proposals, including the annual business

operation plan and financial budget plan, heard eight special reports on data governance, IT development and other efforts, and
deliberated on, among others, 71 reports on financial operation and business analysis.

EERENERE

Committees of the Board of Directors

ATEERTREABLARMRFEEZAS AIHEAS AREEZAS  XEXSGBEHERS . AS
REENENERE . BENERASREEESENRIE, HEEEA R,

The Board of Directors has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human

Resources and Remuneration, all of which discharge their responsibilities as mandated by the Board of Directors and report to the Board
of Directors.

BEARMBRBERZRS TEATHFNATRKBLAREMBNZEEEER, REVSFERZ W, SELEFE
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Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development
strategy and the overarching goal of business management of the Bank and provides suggestions on business changes; monitors the
execution of the annual operational plan, investment plan and the fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities; studies national strategies
and the supporting policies and advises the Board of Directors. In 2023, the committee strengthened strategic planning, deliberated
on major matters of reform, development, operation and management, refined the classified management system, intensified capital
management, and handled existing risks in a prudent way. It convened nine meetings to review 27 proposals and hear special reports on
the implementation of business operation plans, and among others, investment schemes.

HItZERS TEATHZAMBETEZERN LRSS, SR KBTI MEEF TR, 55 BB 2%
AMENAEME TR, WENITFNIMEE A TR, REPEBEITAMIEIE S EHREINE. 2023F, RITHITE
REFEBEMZET ARBHREITTERRL REFHELEEESAMMNERE, ARAARESSNSRE
BARBIRRIFMN, RIREDRBIZIT RFUBH . @FEB 1RSI, FII0INNE, WM SIET. WMEITEL
BUCHR 16106

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and approves medium- and long-
term audit plans and annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on
external audit; and advises on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2023, the committee continued to supervise financial
operation, internal control, and audit, evaluated the compliance and effectiveness of operation and management, and organized the
duty performance evaluation on senior management by the Board of Directors, promoting steady operation and improving the operation

quality and performance. It convened 14 meetings to review ten proposals and hear 16 special reports on financial operation, and among
others, internal auditing.
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Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the senior management in their
comprehensive risk management and control of various risks with regard to credit, market, and liquidity; conducts regular assessments of
risk policies, management, and resilience; and advises on how to improve risk management and internal control. In 2023, the committee
continued to coordinate development and security, improved the risk management system, refined risk management measures and tools,

and strengthened risk monitoring and early warning, making consistent efforts in promoting risk control. It convened seven meetings to
review ten proposals and hear four special reports on risk management, and among others, compliance management.
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Committee on Related-Party Transaction Control. This committee reviews major related-party transactions, handles the filing of
general related-party transactions and hears the report on the overall situation of annual related-party transactions. In 2023, the
committee kept improving the management of related parties and related-party transactions, promoted the development of an intelligent
related-party transaction system to improve the capability to identify and control related parties and related-party transactions, and

prevented the interests tunneling risk effectively. It convened two meetings to review one proposal and hear three special reports on
related-party transaction management.

ABEHFHMERS TEZATHFURTHHARFENER, 0EESRENTEZHNSREBARFHAZE
W, HFREDEIE, NEESFHSAEEARNETEFNTE, SEEFRBIEHRITVLERHODESZREE
WE 20283, ATAEZEFMERSRPLEZTIMNY, BLNBEZTTRR . ALSERNE  RESHEX
EHEFARIE RRREEEARN ARAFREZFZYESZERIFN . ARALEWSEE%, HENR R
AR EFBFFOREIW, BHII6TUX R



NTAE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 21

Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of
the Bank, proposes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and senior management, advises the Board of Directors on
remuneration plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and
senior management, and preliminarily examines the qualification of candidates for the directors and senior management and advises
the Board of Directors on the matter. In 2023, the committee brought into full play its professional advantages, advanced its work by
strengthening the board building and senior management, improving performance evaluation, and gave advice and recommendations. It
organized duty performance evaluation on directors and business performance evaluation on executives by the Board of Directors, and
promoted the efforts to reinforce internal incentives and restraints. It convened nine meetings to review 16 proposals.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The Bank’s senior management includes President, Executive Vice Presidents, Secretary of the Board of Directors, and other senior
management members. They discharge duties in operational management as mandated by the CDB Articles of Association and the
Board of Directors, and reports to the Board of Directors. In 2023, the senior management of CDB played its role in making operational
plans, ensuring implementation, and strengthening management, under the authorization of the Board of Directors. It faithfully
implemented the instructions of the CPC CDB Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors, formulated working instructions on
senior management, and standardized and strengthened its decision-making mechanism and working procedures for the management of
the senior management in line with authorization. It intensified operation and management coordination, improved the business analysis
and scheduling mechanism, enhanced the quality and efficiency of project development review, and brought into full play its counter-
cyclical and cross-cyclical role. It systematically improved the credit system and mechanism and continued to make credit management
more well-informed. It intensified penetrating management and witnessed significant progress in liquidation and standardization of
subsidiaries and affiliates. It concentrated advantageous credit resources to facilitate policy connection, and increased investment
and financing to support key industries and under-developed sectors such as major infrastructure, self-reliance in advanced science
and technology, and high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It continued to improve the comprehensive risk management system,
strengthened vertical risk management in both the head office and branches, intensified internal control and compliance management,
and tackled risks of key projects effectively, boosting its risk control capacity. It enhanced assets and liabilities coordination, promoted
risk prevention and resolution, prioritized cost-reduction and efficiency increase, and improved the quality and effectiveness of operation
and management on all fronts, fulfilling the annual business objectives set by the Board of Directors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2023, CDB continuously strengthened internal control management. The structure for authorization management and mechanism for
differentiated authorization and dynamic adjustments were strengthened, and dynamic adjustments of basic authorization in branches
were carried out. CDB summarized and verified the campaign to strengthen the internal control compliance of credit business. It
summarized and promoted the scenario-based defect analysis method for internal control compliance, and made the internal control
compliance management more scientific and refined across the Bank. CDB improved the internal control evaluation index system
for branches and enhanced the rating and scoring model of internal control efficiency, with a full coverage of all branches and major
business activities. It launched Year of Internal Control and Compliance and coordinated key tasks such as educational motivation,
management supervision, business line improvement, institutional guarantee and team building. It also circulated a compliance proposal,
held the competition for internal control and compliance skills, and conducted tour lectures on legal compliance for the front-line
employees, to improve the ability and legal compliance management awareness of all staff members. CDB further improved its internal
control evaluation system and carried out evaluations. According to the assessment, no major defect was discovered in the internal
control system during the reporting period, pointing to effective work in this area; improvements were made where necessary.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
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As mandated by the CDB Articles of Association, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors.
In 2023, CDB implemented the guidelines set at the meeting of the Audit Commission of the CPC Central Committee, met regulatory
requirements, focused on solving problems, and laid stress on value increase. It carried out follow-up auditing of implementation of
five policies including CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund and its supporting loans as well as the reform of category-based business
management for specific accounts, ensuring that the major strategies and policy measures of the state produced their intended results.
Business operation and management auditing was carried out in eight branches both domestic and overseas to promote their prudent
operation. Special audits were also carried out for NPL transfer and write-off, capital management, implementation of the expected
credit loss method, and IT management to promote business operation compliance. CDB went all out to make corrections against and
held those accountable for problems identified by the National Audit Office, and implemented the long-acting mechanism for correcting
problems identified in audits, addressing both the causes and symptoms. In-office accountability audits were piloted to encourage
appropriate and prudent exercise of power. Public complaints concerning CDB’s asset security were handled in a transparent manner,
coupled with follow-up checks and risk reminders. The Bank promoted the coordination of audits with disciplinary inspections, tour
inspections and other supervisory inspections to form supervisory synergy. It kept refining the integrated management of auditing,
improved the auditing system, and intensified process management of audit quality. Special efforts were made to enhance IT support
for auditing and promote the use of off-site auditing. It strengthened training and qualification management of auditors to raise auditing
efficiency continuously.
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KEXRZ 5

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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In 2023, CDB formulated the rules for related-party identification, integrating the requirements on related-party transaction management
into relevant business systems to further strengthen the standardized management. During the reporting period, the Bank’s related-party
transactions were carried out in accordance with general commercial terms in compliance with laws and regulations. Such transactions were
priced according to fair commercial principles, and no behavior was found detrimental to the interests of the Bank and its shareholders.

At the end of 2028, the balance of credit related-party transactions of the Bank totaled RMB69.026 billion, the total amount of service
related-party transactions reached RMB180 million, and the total amount of deposit and other related-party transactions amounted to
RMB146.127 billion. The balance of credit extended to a single related party (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposit
certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.40% of the total net capital at maximum; the total balance of credit extended
to a single related corporation or a group customer of an unincorporated organization (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged
bank deposit certificates and treasury bonds deducted) accounted for 2.40% of the net capital at maximum; and the balance of credit
extended to all related parties (with the amounts of margin deposits, pledged bank deposit certificates and treasury bonds deducted)
accounted for 3.75% of the net capital, all meeting the regulatory requirements for related party transactions.

For detailed information on related-party transactions defined in accordance with Chinese laws, regulations and accounting standards,
please refer to Notes 10 to the Financial Statements: Related-Party Relationships and Transactions.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
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In 2023, CDB conscientiously implemented relevant regulatory requirements for information disclosure and continued to intensify the
whole-process information disclosure management, with the focus on improving the information disclosure performance. The Board of
Directors and senior management of CDB took the initiative to fulfill their information disclosure responsibilities, strengthened overall
coordination and supervisory review to urge relevant functions responsible to faithfully perform their information disclosure obligations by
duly disclosing important information, so as to constantly improve the transparency of operation. It revised its administrative measures
for information disclosure, further standardized the information disclosure content, clarified the division of information disclosure
responsibilities, and specified work requirements and approval process for different information disclosure. It carried out training on
information disclosure to promote the implementation of measures. It formulated and duly released its annual report and sustainability
report, and standardized disclosure of major information on changes in the Board of Directors, accountability for and corrections
of problems identified in both internal and external inspections, and the utilization of the funds raised through green finance bonds,
accepting public supervision on its own initiative. The Bank also organized evaluations on the implementation of information disclosure
regulations to ensure there was no false or misleading information or major omission in information disclosed.
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In 20283, CDB faithfully implemented national policies, remained committed to its mandate, supported national strategies and contributed
to the performance of the real economy. The CDB group saw an ROA of 0.47% and an ROE of 5.32%.

7 55 W sz
INCOME AND EXPENSES
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In 2023, the CDB group made a net profit of RMB87.417 billion, in which net interest income, as the leading source of the Bank’s
income, reached RMB160.313 billion.

(Bfz: ARTEF T Million RMB)

2023 2022 Ghange+/()

Bk FiE
Operating Profit 102,359 97,138 5,221
Hep: F 2FIEA
Including: Net Interest Income 160,313 170,310 (9,997)

FaBRMAEFBA

Net Fee and Commission Income 530 1,504 ©74)
FAINEIN (ZH) 18 9 9
Net Non-Operating Income/( Expense)
Frigfi 2t A
Income Tax Expense 14,960 12,807 2,158
#F5iE

Profit for the Year 87,417 84,340 3,077
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
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At the end of 2023, the CDB group had total assets of RMB18,654.522 billion, growing by 2.26% year on year. Loans remained the
dominant assets, with RMB14,244.743 billion of loans and advances, up by 2.49% year on year and accounting for 76.36% of the total
assets. Total liabilities stood at RMB16,974.792 billion, up by 2.08% year on year. Debt issuance was the primary source of funding. At

the end of 2023, the group had a balance of RMB12,724.297 billion in debt securities, up by 4.93% year on year and accounting for
74.96% of total liabilities.

(#Ef: ARMEA T Million RMB)

2023 2022 B
Change+/(-)

P> A
#FEat 18,654,522 18,243,083 411,439

Total Assets

N& R FHRITRE W FKIN
Cash, Balances with Central Banks and Deposits with 241,788 227,186 14,602
Banks and Other Financial Institutions

L&og%wfanﬁifdvances to Customers 14,244,743 13,899,107 345,636
%v%eﬂs;ctgr:ﬁnt Securities 2,776,027 2,894,338 (118,311)
/OH\tﬁw{%rS 1,391,964 1,222,452 169,512
%)1i?&£bilities 16,974,792 16,637,502 337,290
Deeft%ec:r}geflssued 12,724,297 12,125,956 598,341
(6 BURF AN L fth & B AL fE 30 673,951 572,568 101,089

Borrowings from Governments and Financial Institutions

ERIZc3Eenps T ecE
Deposits from Banks and Other Financial Institutions and 3,369,604 3,703,798 (334,194)
Due to Customers

Hth

Oihore 206,940 234,886 (27,946)
FrEENmaIt

Tora! Eauis 1,679,730 1,605,581 74,149
LU R 421,248 421,248 -

Share Capital

RANRABRAIR
Capital Reserve and Surplus Reserve 412,927 897,475 14,652

—pa o + A2
Gjﬁﬂﬁé%irve 278,378 260,425 17,953

ROEF A E A
Retained Earnings and Other Equity P 000,678 10810

|» b B £
D E A A 26,989 25,755 1,234
Non-Controlling Interests
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB faithfully implemented the guiding principles of the Central Financial Work Conference and the Central Economic Work
Conference, and integrated the support for infrastructure development with technology finance, green finance, inclusive finance, elderly
care finance and digital finance. It increased medium- and long-term loans to support key infrastructure projects, and kept improving
the quality and efficiency of financial services to better support high quality development of the real economy. At the end of 2023, the
Bank witnessed its total balance of infrastructure loans exceeding RMB7.8 trillion, with over RMB1.5 trillion issued across the year. The
Bank channeled long-term funds across society to support modern infrastructure development and granted IDF-supporting loans totaling
RMB170 billion.
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Networked infrastructure including transport, energy, and water conservancy

P4 Bz EMISHE TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE

RIEXLRBERESE. ERGELERREMAYNE, RETKPKEMAXIURURE . K=f. BERE
X AR EFESERERAXBRRAR, ERXF" /YW SHRETARAEKREL . ER RIEHMRKRE.
SAaRBRA. BEKRBBEINNERYT ERESERNL. FEXFLARBRER, ERXFERSELABNFHRE
BEEIRAAF BT B0E, L&+ R X102 E X TI2TE o AR S5 3 358 h B &0 h B 328 — 1R 1L
AN (RB) SREEM AR () LA LT R HNERIBINE ik B E2023F K, ABTIYARDRAREA
26,443{Z7T, WHHMEBE BT AR D EFRREND,68712TT. MR FHFRBO T WALk EREARR . A HEMIZHE
2ig, UEERSEEMENZER . AFEERAFELS . TIRALE SFHB LAEBSTEBONELEZRIN
BURFEZEIME . RIRFRMAGE R, MAEANZHE TRENXT BEMENERIEFNE, £FX
MRRITMLTT, ERFRERNIZ . BEIVFIIG . FEa 8. E8ERVZT B2SmE.

Sy



HRIEES STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 27

CDB implemented the strategy of building China into a country with strong transport networks and the National Comprehensive Three-
dimensional Transport Network Plan, and focused on the medium- and long-term railway network plan and national major regional
development strategies covering Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze River Delta, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and Chengdu-Chongqging economic circle. The focus of CDB’s support was on the nationwide high-speed railway network composed
of “eight vertical and eight horizontal” lines and their connecting lines, inter-city rails in priority regions, integrated transport hubs,
and electrification and capacity expansion of existing rail lines. CDB continued to support highway construction, and prioritized the
improvement of the national expressway network, including the construction of unfinished sections and the expansion and renovation of
congested sections, and 102 key projects prioritized during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. CDB advanced the transportation integration
in urban agglomerations and metropolitan areas, and vigorously promoted the construction of intra-city and suburban rails and urban rail
transit projects in cities with more than 1 million urban population. At the end of 2023, CDB’s balance of loans to the highway sector was
RMB2,644.3 billion, and its balance of loans to the urban rail transit sector was RMB968.7 billion. CDB took the initiative to support the
construction of specialized port terminals, collection and distribution systems, public infrastructure, and a national high-level waterway
network. In 2023, it gave priority to construction projects in major ports such as Tangshan Port, Ningbo-Zhoushan Port, Yangpu Port,
and Beibu Gulf Port, as well as Pinglu Canal. It facilitated the construction projects in the civil aviation sector, increased financial support
for hub airport construction, relocation, reconstruction and expansion projects, and granted loans of RMB37.4 billion throughout the year,
with a focus on supporting projects including Dalian’s new airport, Xiamen’s new airport, Jinan Airport (Phase Il), and Shanghai Pudong
Airport Expansion.

Wl ) KFEAiEH WATER CONSERVANCY INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB gave priority to national water conservancy projects and under-developed areas in major national water conservancy projects
including projects for flood control and relief, rural water supply, and water ecological restoration, supported the construction of a
national water network, and improved the capacity to guarantee water security. By the end of 2023, CDB’s balance of loans to the water

sector hit RMB495.5 billion, with RMB122.7 billion of loans extended across the year, bringing into play its role as a lead funding source
for the sector.

</ﬁ> B £ Atli& i ELECTRIC POWER INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB supported the building of a new power system. It financed clean energy bases such as large-scale wind power and photovoltaic
bases mainly in deserts and national water-wind-solar complementary bases and offshore wind power bases. It promoted the
development of clean energy sources like hydropower based on local conditions, and helped improve the capacity to ensure traditional
energy supply. It promoted the construction of coastal nuclear power plants and participated in funding all nuclear power projects newly
approved by the government in 20283. It also provided vigorous support for charging infrastructure and issued a work plan to further
support a high quality charging infrastructure system. CDB also supported such projects as ultra-high-voltage (UHV) power transmission
corridors, strong distribution networks, and smart grids and the consolidation and improvement of rural power grids to help increase the
security and stability of the power system.
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<; ) SHEEMMIBHE OIL AND GAS INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB boosted the construction of the oil and gas production, supply, storage and distribution system and the improvement of
underdeveloped infrastructure, facilitated the development of a nationwide network to improve the national trunk pipeline network and
promote the connectivity of oil and gas pipeline networks. Throughout the year, RMB30.2 billion of loans were issued to oil and gas
pipeline network infrastructure, with priority given to projects such as Sichuan-East Gas Pipeline 2, West-East Gas Pipeline 3, and West-
East Gas Pipeline 4.
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Infrastructure for industrial upgrading such as information, science
and technology, and logistics
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CDB supported the construction of network infrastructure for 5G and fixed broadband. It promoted the development of industrial internet
and digital transformation of the manufacturing industry, helping businesses to improve their quality and efficiency while reducing costs

SEEMIEE INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE

and emission.

< ) RHLERIZHE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE
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With an aim to gather high-end innovation resources and improve the overall innovation efficiency, CDB took the initiative to support the
building of Hefei Comprehensive National Science Center and Xi'an Science Park High-energy Sci-Tech Innovation Platform. It helped

to enhance original innovation capability and foster scientific innovation in key sectors by supporting scientific research facilities such as
national key laboratories and projects such as Tsinghua Science City, Xiamen Science City in Lianhe area and Jiuxikou area.
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() YREMIBHE LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE

NERDRCAMMRIRERRRNES, RAXFELUELOATYRKESHESEERBLIE. GHRERY
MEBIE (—H)SMERIR. & F LMY REMIRIE R8T,
Focusing on national logistics hubs and modern logistics systems, CDB provided financing support for projects including the integrated

pipeline corridor for long-distance transportation of bulk materials in Caofeidian, Tangshan and Hengyang International Logistics Port
(Phase I). The Bank has granted loans of RMB9.8 billion for logistics infrastructure in 2023.
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Urban, rural and agricultural infrastructure
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Centering on the key sectors identified by the national 14th Five-Year Plan, CDB focused on supporting integration of urban
agglomerations, urban governance, and urban green and low-carbon development. It explored market-based financing models to help
local governments revitalize stock assets, maximizing the synergy infrastructure, industrial facilities and operational and service facilities to
promote high quality development that is mutually supportive, integrated and interconnected. It intensified efforts to support infrastructure
construction by market-based methods to help build livable, resilient and smart cities, promoting people-centered new urbanization. At

the end of 2023, the balance of loans to the infrastructure sector in cities (counties) amounted to RMB1,079 billion, with a total of over
RMB280 billion of loans extended throughout the year.

(dea) RlRFEMEHE RURAL AND AGRICULTURAL INFRASTRUCTURE
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CDB provided targeted support to weak sectors and underdeveloped areas in agricultural infrastructure. It introduced special loans
for farmland construction and modern protected agriculture, totaling RMB100 billion respectively, and optimized resource allocation to
increase investment. It offered quality and efficient financial services to accelerate agricultural modernization, prioritizing sectors such as
rural transport, energy, living space infrastructure, water supply, telecommunications and radio and television facilities, rural circulation
systems, and public facilities.
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Dual-use public infrastructure
that can accommodate
emergency needs
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CDB established a policy system to support dual-use public
infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs. It
strengthened institutional building, adopted differentiated
authorization, and improved project identification and pricing
management mechanisms. It helped to deliver pilot projects of
this kind, such as large suburban warehouse bases.
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MODERN INDUSTRIAL SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the instructions of the state on new industrialization, and sped up new
industrialization with a focus on building China into a manufacturing power. It made great efforts to promote the
deep integration of technology and finance and provide targeted support to key national technology projects and
leading technology businesses, granting technology loans amounting to RMB230 billion across the year. It continued
to improve the structure of manufacturing loans and promoted the development of high-tech manufacturing. At the
end of 2023, CDB saw its balance of manufacturing loans hit RMB1,189.9 billion.
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The supporting facilities for Sanya Yazhou Bay Science and Technology
City are a key project for Hainan Free Trade Port to implement the

strategy of building China into a strong maritime country and fostering
national champions for marine scientific research.
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NATIONAL STRATEGIES FOR REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT

2023F, RTMMEAMBE LI EF L BILESIMESREERELHT KR RERXRS  HIAESD R IR E
REFFWENEEHER®, HAXTXHSMESRBRRBELZNXMOIEER . REFHRARILLERHT
AR BERURKEMBARRASNA, BGREENEALAR. KILFFTEAR. EBRAXNERER . K=F—1K
HERR. BAREESERIFHNSRELR . RN AMIBLS LM, MBREE, BUERFRRFRE, IIXE
RIBMEENDE , RS KIgHKR B RYIGEH— 4R T

In 2023, CDB actively implemented the guiding principles laid down in the important speeches delivered by General Secretary Xi Jinping
at meetings such as the Symposium on Advancing the High Quality and High Standard Construction and Development of Xiong’an
New Area and the Symposium on Promoting the Full Revitalization of Northeast China in the New Era, and released the /mplementation
Opinions on Supporting High Quality and High Standard Development of Xiong'an New Area and the Work Plan for Supporting the Full
Revitalization of Northeast China in the New Era. It established a leading group for coordinated regional development. Centering on the
national strategies for regional development, including the coordinated development of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the development
of Yangtze Economic Belt, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta integrated development, the
Yellow River Basin ecological protection and high quality development, the Northeast China revitalization, and the rise of Central China,
CDB strengthened overall coordination, enhanced the guarantee of credit loan resources, and increased support for coordination of
major projects, elevating the quality and efficiency of its support for regional strategies.
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RURAL REVITALIZATION
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In 2023, CDB faithfully implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on consolidating
the poverty alleviation achievements and advancing rural revitalization in all aspects. It increased its financial support for “Agriculture,
Rural Areas and Farmers” and extended RMB534.5 billion of rural-related loans, achieving great progress in supporting rural revitalization.
It focused on priority areas such as rural infrastructure, featured industries, and follow-up livelihood programs for relocated families,

and granted loans of RMB276.2 billion to areas that have been lifted out of poverty. It adopted differentiated supporting measures and
granted loans of RMB59.3 billion to 160 counties prioritized in the national rural revitalization assistance program.
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The project of high-standard farmland and industrial integration development in Kaijiang, Sichuan adopts a “farmland + industry” model

to upgrade farmland infrastructure, increase agricultural production and income for farmers, and improve the rural living environment.
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In 2023, CDB implemented national policies to ensure people’s wellbeing and continued to support subsidized rental housing and the
renovation of dilapidated housing and shanty towns, helping meet the housing needs of all people. It issued loans of RMB146.3 billion to
the housing sector for affordable rental housing, benefiting over 480,000 households. It promoted the pilot program for the rental housing
loans. CDB steadily advanced the renovation of shanty towns with projects that were implemented in a comprehensive, balanced
manner, and helped over 30 million households to move into new apartment buildings from shanty towns. It promoted the renovation of
dilapidated housing on all fronts, helping bring a better living environment for a total of 1.10 million households in old residential quarters.
It made great efforts to extend special loans to ensure the delivery of pre-sold housing, helping to “guarantee the delivery of presold
housing, people’s livelihood and the stability of society”. It issued loans to the first for-sale subsidized housing project (Shuanglong New
Home Affordable Housing in Fuzhou City) and the first urban village renovation project in China (Dazehu Area Urban Village Renovation in
Wangcheng District, Changsha).

CDB made great efforts to provide financial services for the elderly care sector. It supported the construction of inclusive elderly care
infrastructure, and actively promoted the implementation of the national strategy addressing population aging. It supported the high
quality development of private medical institutions and the development of medical partnerships, and helped promote the balanced
development of high quality medical resources, contributing to a robust healthcare service system. By the end of 2023, CDB had
provided a total of RMB70.7 billion loans to the elderly care sector, and RMB128.9 billion to the healthcare sector.
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Jiangtou Yiyang North Park Elderly Service
Center in Nanchang Economic Development
Zone, Jiangxi has 1,767 beds.
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Seeing culture and tourism as an economic driver, CDB financed conservation of historical and cultural cities, towns and villages, and
made plans for national cultural parks and cultural and sports infrastructure, to help improve people’s livelihood and build up China’s
cultural strength. CDB actively implemented the strategy of developing China into a leading country in education by focusing on priority
areas including educational infrastructure and vocational education. The Bank provided lending in parallel with investment from the
Infrastructure Investment Fund to projects such as Qingdao Jimo Vocational Education Park (Phase Il) and Jingyang District Vocational
Education Training Base in Deyang to facilitate the high quality development of the education sector. At the end of 2023, CDB’s balance
of loans in the culture and tourism sector hit RMB131.9 billion, and that in the education sector RMB75 billion.

CDB further expanded the coverage of the student loan policies to meet the borrowing needs of students with financial difficulties. It
lost no time to implement the policy of increasing credit lines and reducing interest rate on student loans, waived interest, and deferred
principal repayment. It also supported CDB Suzhou Branch in issuing the first student loan in digital RMB. In 2023, CDB issued RMB59.9
billion student loans, supporting 5.63 million students with economic challenges.

CDB improved the coverage, accessibility and satisfaction of financing services for small and micro businesses through on-lending loans.
Issuing RMB377.9 billion on-lending loans throughout the year, it improved the quality and efficiency of on-lending loan policies and kept
reducing funding costs for the real economy.
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Hong'an County Center for Student
Assistance Administration in Hubei, where

applications for hometown-based student
loans are being accepted.
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on ecological
conservation. It took comprehensive measures to improve the governance system for green finance, and integrated the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) concept into the policy framework and management process. It promoted national EOD projects and
supported priority areas such as regional pollution control and ecological protection and rehabilitation to boost the building of a Beautiful
China. It made great efforts to carry out the green low-carbon finance strategy, and continued to increase support for key areas of green,
low-carbon and circular development. CDB supported key ecological projects such as national forest reserves, comprehensive prevention
and control of desertification, and the Three-North Shelter Forestation Project, promoted the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”
strategy, and constantly practiced the Two Mountains Theory through development finance. At the end of 2023, CDB’s balance of green
loans reached RMB2.5 trillion.

Making full use of the Carbon Emission Reduction Facility of the People’s Bank of China, CDB continued to support carbon emission
reduction in priority areas and the green and low-carbon social and economic transformation. CDB issued RMB55.7 billion of loans for
carbon emission reduction in the year, achieving carbon emission reduction of approximately 15.38 million tons. It increased support for
pilot projects for climate investment and financing. As a bond bank, CDB issued the first green bonds in climate investment and financing
worth RMB6 billion to explore a new model to support climate investment and financing, and pool funds for climate change response.
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The national forest reserve in Qingyuan, Guangdong
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CDB actively played its guiding role as a DFI to promote high-standard, sustainable
and people-centered development. Through financial connectivity, CDB promoted
the physical connectivity of infrastructure, the institutional connectivity of rules and
standards, and jointly built the “people-to-people connectivity” with the partner
countries. It has become an important financial force that firmly supports the steady
and sustainable development of Belt and Road cooperation.
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Saysettha Comprehensive Development Zone in
Vientiane, Laos, a key overseas BRI industrial park




HRIEES STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 37

HE —®—RB"ENRETER, ATEFABTHRERZ RESRSENZSTNE ENEEZSLSRSENS,
RAHHSHEZERERIMNERSRIENSILEE, MRS EEREMAE, BERSHEZ —F—K"
TSN BME2023F R, RTRERY P E —RREIREKE . AE — IR AEFREKAE . AE—RBRKEK. $
BE —RBARKAE. PESRSEREKE. PRALRMERSIENHS L ERSENG, REHS5RI18XE
BOEEES, NEERFREVIABEREFE, ARHREAHE " —F -8 RERBRBOIAFLED N B
ERNBERUNESZIEERR.

RITIRIZS,500{C TARTRBEAMSOCETEREREBNEMR £ FERERARE" —HF— B TMEFER,
XFHMRED &%, BAMIRERKE. BFERMESBEHHEN ARIE RRERRTRES —HEAMR
JE. SR EREH HERASWHNMENSERHR, ARRHALIHELFTHELR, TMPTESHEERE
FHR HBELER E2023F R, KTEEEN1,3002N" —H—B" MERBARERKRS, L5BS1181)
HE - B ER, BRRETAAMESHSIN I CRENISEXRSHFSESHE —F B NRELSHE
B XTeEEE(ARTERIHLBDEREMY (" —F—B"FERFTRUNE, BEEE. KB URKLHARIH
REFIHHRR, BUIEEBSMERMNEERE, SORAHRE " —F B REENREN SRS .

FATRREE "B MR NERS, ANIMNTREREZSHENEN, THNEZSSFERA . R HMERRR
FE REERABESROBE. +ER, ATRITHG " —% — B "HBXEREM7TERRED, BH136E5,504
AR R —H—H"EWMEFE, RIHBERE6,1005 7T, REAMEMBEXEREFLEL590A K.

Over the past decade since the proposal of the BRI, CDB has adhered to the principles of extensive consultation, joint contribution
and shared benefits, focused on financial cooperation and diversified collaboration, promoted the establishment of multilateral financial
cooperation mechanisms, and deepened multilateral and bilateral cooperation with both financial institutions from partner countries
and international financial institutions. It participated in international financial governance, and pooled financial services to form the
BRI synergy. By the end of 2023, CDB has initiated multiple regional financial cooperation mechanisms such as China-CEEC Interbank
Association, China-Arab Countries Interbank Association, China-ASEAN Interbank Association, ASEAN-plus-Three Interbank Cooperation
Mechanism, China-Africa Interbank Association, and China-Latin America Development Financial Institutions Association. It initiated or
participated in initiating 18 multilateral or bilateral cooperation funds, building sound platforms for financial exchanges among different
countries, injecting lasting momentum to improving the quality and efficiency of the BRI financial connectivity, and translating our shared
visions into results of practical cooperation.

CDB introduced RMB350 billion financing window and USD5 billion special facility for Global Development Initiative (GDI). It continued
to bring into play the role of special loans for Belt and Road cooperation, witnessing important progress in a number of projects in the
sectors such as infrastructure, production capacity cooperation, financial cooperation, and people’s livelihood, including Jakarta-Bandung
High-speed Railway in Indonesia, Lekki Deep Sea Port in Nigeria, Shymkent Oil Refinery Modernization in Kazakhstan, and credit line to
the National Bank of Egypt, which effectively promoted local economic and social development and achieved win-win results and joint
development for both China and partner countries. The Bank had provided quality financial services for over 1,300 BRI projects as of
the end of 2023, covering 118 Belt and Road partner countries, which effectively brought in to play the role of development finance in
leading and pooling domestic and overseas capital of all kinds to the BRI cooperation. CDB fully implemented the Common Principles
for Responsible Financing and the Green Investment Principles for the Belt and Road, incorporating green standards and environment
and climate risks into overseas investment and financing evaluation, strengthening project cash flow and risk management, and providing
better financial services for Belt and Road cooperation.

CDB actively leveraged its advantages in “intellectual support” and “financing”. While engaging in investment and financing cooperation,
CDB took the initiative to build communication platforms with governments, enterprises and people of partner countries to promote
policy and people-to-people connectivity. Over the past decade, CDB has held a total of 174 exchange activities for BRI-related
countries, covering 5,594 participants from 136 countries. Besides, CDB established the CDB BRI Scholarship, through which RMB61
million has been spent to support 590 overseas students.
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In 2023, the Bank carried out annual monitoring and medium-term evaluation of the CDB Business Development Plan for the 14th
Five-Year Period, to promote the effective implementation of the Plan. It provided intellectual and institutional support for priority areas
such as infrastructure, transformation and upgrading of manufacturing, green and low-carbon development, and balanced regional
development. It strengthened coordination and cooperation with government ministries and commissions, local governments, and
corporate clients, achieving a number of results in planning and research. CDB established a working mechanism of leading groups of
sector-based research and advanced the development of high-end national think-tanks. It joined hands with government departments
and international organizations to hold a training program themed “Green and Low-carbon Development and Sustainable Finance—China
and BRI Promoting the Implementation of the UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the Paris Agreement” to share global
practices of green and low-carbon development and sustainable finance.
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In 2023, CDB adhered to long-term, stable, sustainable, and cost-controllable fund-raising strategies and provided strong financial
support for business development of the Bank. Over the year, CDB issued RMB2.25 trillion financial bonds, with a balance of over
RMB12 trillion bonds. International ratings agencies like Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s consistently rated CDB at the same level as
China’s sovereign rating. It provided diverse investment products for the market. It issued RMB80 billion floating-rate bonds on a regular
basis and successfully offered RMB50 billion secondary capital bonds and RMB21 billion themed green bonds for Climate Investment
and Financing and Environmental Conservation and Green Development of the Yangtze River. It strengthened the interaction between
CDB bonds at the primary and the secondary markets, continued to carry out market-making support operations, and improved the
market-making evaluation system of CDB bonds, maintaining the leading advantage of CDB bonds in liquidity.
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The purpose of CDB’s capital management is to promote national development strategies, comply with capital management regulations,
and preserve and increase the value of state assets. CDB manages its capital in a way that supports, directs and guarantees the growth
of its business. In 2023, in line with the principle of preserving asset value and seeking modest returns, CDB strengthened its capacity to
independently generate capital, and successfully issued secondary capital bonds of RMB50 billion through market-based channels. With
its capital structure remaining stable, the Bank saw an increase in its total capital stock. Following its capital management philosophy, the
Bank enhanced its capital restraint mechanism centered on capital adequacy ratio, and strengthened the role of capital restraint to guide
business development as mandated by the Bank’s mission. CDB carried out internal capital adequacy assessment process, developed a
group-wide management plan for capital adequacy ratio, and established a capital budgetary system. Capital management continued to
perform better, providing capital support for fulfilling the development tasks while meeting the regulatory requirements.

As calculated in accordance with the Administrative Measures for the Capital of Commercial Banks (for Trial Implementation) and other
relevant regulations, as of the end of 2023, the Bank, on a consolidated basis, had a total capital of RMB1,912.305 billion, total Tier 1
capital RMB1,569.809 billion, total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,568.398 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.65%, Tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio 9.54%, and Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.54%. As for the parent company, the total capital was
RMB1,879.604 billion, both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital RMB1,542.911 billion, capital adequacy ratio
11.562%, and both total Tier 1 capital and total Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.41%.

IS g

CREDIT MANAGEMENT

2028F, RTAF U S REENKEHE, SREFRRETHFFMA I ARTPRKAREEERESUET, B
NEZEEFRW, REEUEEMAMN, #—LREEMKEW SMFLML S, FHEL/TE, HE—HER" +XT
A"MYMERIERBEMNEMRERAESEERFMBRE. RIELRUKERLZ, W REVIEAMRERITER
BEEMNKEER, HIEREEBNGMULT R, REAURBLZERE, FERAREBEENZNUKTE, RES
WS RERZE. ARG . SRzk. REFTELH, RIERRTSEMIRERTIREELOHILHERL, 5
MHEWSRRED, TFRFEREBBR " AGE", 18" ZATRE" EMRESE . ZHRHIT25RD 1T
TR RTERUBRE—RFRERR. 2E0% Bt RAE TR EI TR BREITOREXK,
ZESRBRAT ML, £ ERRT A, EARARGTRZFLNAEN. T UMK,



40 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

In 2023, CDB maintained a good balance between business expansion and risk management, and carried out credit extension and
review efficiently. The total line of medium- and long-term credit in RMB remained at a high level, providing strong support for loan
issuance. With a fully improved credit structure, it focused on infrastructure and development business in priority areas, and promoted
credit extension for a group of key projects in the 14th Five-Year Plan and projects supported by CDB Infrastructure Investment Fund.
CDB deepened reform, formulated a scheme to improve its credit system and mechanism in compliance with the reform requirements
for strengthening its mandate as a bank for infrastructure, coordinated and streamlined the entire process of credit business, and
kept improving the well-informed credit management, to ensure that all business lines are closely connected, effectively balanced and
efficiently running. CDB followed fundamental principles and broke new ground, and took the initiative to explore new areas and business
models that are in line with its mandate as a bank for infrastructure. It effectively stimulated business development vitality. Focusing on
national strategies, CDB adopted a package of credit polices to serve national strategic priorities, including differentiated authorizations
for subsidized housing, renovation of urban village and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs, the
broader infrastructure sector, and “one branch, one policy and one client, one policy” for a total of 25 branches in three batches. It
summarized and carried forward the credit culture of “promoting national development and people’s livelihood, keeping exploring to
break new grounds while following fundamental principles, being honest, trustworthy, professional and progressive, and making prudent
decisions and taking decisive actions”. CDB built a team of high-caliber professionals, leveraged its advantages as an “expert bank”, and
prioritized improving the integrity, professionalism and capability of its credit review staff.
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In 2023, CDB served as an underwriter for 103 clients, completing the issuance of 178 debenture bonds for a total of RMB251.6 billion.
CDB mobilized financial resources on the markets to help businesses access direct financing, support key national strategies, and
reduce financing costs for the real economy. CDB’s intermediary services such as bill acceptance, discounting, re-discounting, domestic
factoring, and entrusted loans developed steadily, effectively meeting diverse financial service needs of market players. CDB generated
an annual business volume of RMB50.4 billion, supporting key industries such as green development, transportation, advanced
manufacturing, municipal facilities management and energy supply, and supporting key clients such as CHN Energy Investment Group
and ZTE as well as key projects like the urban renewal project in east Xingiao of Bao’an District in Shenzhen. It continued to implement
the national policy of reducing fees and cutting costs, and control the prices of financial services.
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SETTLEMENT AND OPERATION
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In 2023, CDB strengthened the payment and settlement capacity on all fronts, and continued to improve the quality and efficiency of
operation services to satisfy the needs of customers. It handled settlement of RMB16 trillion in local and foreign currencies, clearance
of RMB218 trillion in local and foreign currencies, and settlement of fund transactions and bonds of RMB188 trillion throughout the
year. The Bank provided services for the construction and operation of major projects covering subsidized housing, renovation of urban
villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs, and took concrete measures to ensure smooth
operation. It fully strengthened operational risk control and compliance management, and strictly guarded the bottom lines of safe
operations and business compliance.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2023%F, KITERAUEFTHRUEE, ARRSERLEE, HEAXEFEIREF LR RARARVSRELZR, £
FHERATREDMB.67127T, MERERITFUANE —, IFEMIRME. BRI St HIE . BT~
WREIFERERE. Z2MNEX. SRERE —HF K" SELMBRE. FENBERAEE, HRERASIEN
MSEE, SHEEITRLES), KRE, BB AELFMK, #— P RAF LSRR/ NI R

In 2023, CDB kept deepening its cooperation with other financial institutions, took the initiative to support national strategies, and jointly
boosted the development of the real economy. It ensured good performance in loan syndication, with more than RMB1.6 trillion of new
syndicated loan agreements signed, remaining China’s top provider of syndicated loans. CDB supported the development of priority areas
such as infrastructure, sci-tech innovation, advanced manufacturing, strategic emerging industries, and major regional strategies, rural
revitalization, and high quality Belt and Road cooperation. It kept enhancing on-lending cooperation, expanding the scope of institutions

for on-lending cooperation, and strengthening interaction with on-lending banks for greater a synergy. It made financial resources
accessible to the real economy and provided better and more efficient development finance services for small and micro businesses.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2023, following the CPC’s guidelines on organization, CDB continued to improve the professionalism of its staff members. Answering
the call of the government to stabilize employment, CDB recruited staff members from various channels and offered better career
development prospects to motivate staff members. Based on its mandate as a bank for infrastructure, CDB further improved the
organizational structure of its Head Office, streamlined some departments, and established the Asset Preservation Department. It also
improved the staffing management mechanism for branches, streamlined the internal organs, and strengthened the allocation of staffing
resources. At the end of 2023, the CDB network included 37 primary branches and four secondary branches on the Chinese mainland,
one branch in Hong Kong, 11 representative offices in other countries, and six majority-owned subsidiaries.
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STAFF TRAINING
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In 2023, CDB adhered to the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, thoroughly
implemented the general requirements for Party building and the Party’s guidelines on organization for the new era. Based on educational
activities centering on learning and implementing the guiding principles of the 20th CPC National Congress, the Bank focused on
improving political integrity and empowering and supporting businesses with pragmatic and effective measures for joint contribution and
shared benefits. It promoted education and training for staff at all levels and of all types in a holistic way, striving to enhance the relevance
and effectiveness of such education and training and supporting the high quality development of development finance. The Bank held over
20 training sessions on theoretical studies and over 150 sessions on professional knowledge and skills throughout the year.
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In 2023, CDB delivered the strategy of Digital CDB and accelerated the promotion of key tasks for digital transformation. It supported
business and product innovation in priority areas, completed the configuration of product and accounting parameters for systems in
relation to subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency needs.
It promoted reforms such as the reform of category-based management for specific accounts and the reform of the credit system and
mechanism. It successfully launched the new financial sharing system and the new core second-stage system cluster of CDB Hong
Kong Branch, and advanced key tasks such as “smart credit” and the new risk system cluster. It sped up the integration of business
and technology, improved the IT governance system, and continued to enhance its cybersecurity capabilities, constantly improving

its capabilities for independent and controllable IT operations. Efforts were made to improve infrastructure in the three centers in two
localities and ensure safe operations at important times, so as to provide strong IT support for business activities.
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SUBSIDIARY MANAGEMENT
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd.
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd., with a registered capital of RMB87.687 billion, was founded in August 2009. In 2023, focusing on its mandate and
the role of guiding investment in various specialized platforms, it supported strategic emerging industries and key areas of technological
innovation with national strategic funds. The company also provided more resources to support the development of key national strategic
regions such as Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, Yangtze Economic Belt, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and Belt and
Road cooperation. It continued to follow the guiding role of Party building and resolutely carried out rectification requirements identified
in inspections and audits, thus promoting its high quality development. It has made significant advances in preventing and resolving risks
in a continuous and effective manner, improving its operation and management performance, and promoting business development. In
the year, its annual new investment exceeded RMB21.8 billion, and its net profit was RMB5.418 billion. At the end of 2023, its total asset
was RMB174.3 billion and the asset under its management was over RMB266.5 billion.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company in August 2017, with
a registered capital of RMB 9.5 billion. In 2023, it made great efforts to build itself into a distinctive professional investment bank. It
won the Junding Award for Supporting Projects of SOEs in the Chinese Securities Industry by Securities Times, and the Best Securities
Company Supporting National Strategies by Financial News. Other honors won the by company include Outstanding Underwriter
Supporting National Strategies and one of the Top Ten Cases of the bond market supporting real economy by Shanghai Stock Exchange
(SSE) and Outstanding Bond Underwriting Institution by ChinaBond. In 2023, the company underwrote RMB361.9 billion bonds, an
increase of 62% year-on-year. It was rated A in terms of the quality of bond business practices. At the end of 2023, its total asset was
RMB46.3 billion.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion, was listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in July 2016. In 20283, it has thoroughly implemented the new development philosophy and further grasped the political
significance of financial work and made financial services more people-centered, and provided high quality financial leasing services for
economic and social development. Through combining “financing” and “assets financing”, it continued to improve its capability to support
real economy and invested more resources in key industries and underdeveloped sectors such as technological innovation, advanced
manufacturing, green development, and medium, small and micro businesses, to better support major strategies including innovation-
driven development and coordinated regional development. By increasing efforts to the transformation and innovation of traditional
businesses, it optimized its structure of assets and liabilities and improved its capital strength. Its leading position in the industry was
continuously consolidated, which further improved the effectiveness of its support for the group’s strategies. At the end of 2023, its total
assets were RMB409.695 billion.
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China-Africa Development Fund
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China-Africa Development Fund was established in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specializing in Africa
investments, with a total fund scale of USD10 billion. In 2023, CADFund, committed to its mandate, advanced high quality development
of its investment business in priority areas such as the Nine Programs of the Eighth Ministerial Conference of the Forum on China-
Africa Cooperation (FOCAC). It committed USD680 million for investment in Africa throughout the year. During the Third Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation, CADFund was selected into the Achievements and Prospects of Belt and Road Integrity Building
as a typical case of clean investment. The cooperation achievements of CADFund were included in the List of Deliverables of the Belt

and Road Forum for International Cooperation, including the Green Development Investment and Finance Partnership participated by
CADFund as an initiator, and its subscription to Egypt’s Sustainability Sovereign Panda Bond. At the end of 2023, its total investment

commitments in 39 African countries reached USD7.3 billion, which could mobilize USD31.6 billion of investments from China to Africa.
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CDB balances development and security, continuously improves the risk management system and mechanism, and optimizes the
methods and tools of risk management to improve its performance in risk management. It has strengthened risk control in priority areas

and taken concrete measures to relieve risk and recover losses. It continues to intensify efforts to prevent and resolve financial risks, and
firmly holds the bottom line of risk prevention.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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CDB practices comprehensive risk management following the basic principles of symmetry, full coverage, independence, and
effectiveness, establishing a robust risk governance structure, which works efficiently to keep risks under control at various levels. In
2023, CDB maintained its prudent risk appetite in response to the complexities, risks and challenges at home and abroad. It made
a special effort to strengthen its risk management system to create a clear governance structure and fully-developed procedures,
modernize the toolkit and carry out effective monitoring. It refined its risk management system, processes and tools, and effectively
handled various sources of risks. A group-wide exercise was carried out to identify, evaluate, and categorize risks, screen out hidden
risks, and determine responses. A CDB group risk appetite statement was prepared and multi-layered risk appetite management
framework established for intensified risk appetite implementation. CDB continued to optimize the group’s client management
mechanism, consolidated the whole-process business management, improved the tiered management mechanism, and diversified
risk management tools, to better support the development of the group’s clients with risks effectively prevented and controlled. It kept
promoting the risk penetration management in subsidiaries and conducted evaluations on their capabilities of consolidated statement

management to execute strong guidance and supervision on the risk compliance line of subsidiaries. Risk awareness of the entire staff
was strengthened to enhance CDB's risk management capacity and promote a risk culture.
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CREDIT RISK
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In 2023, CDB strengthened its credit rating management, developed an ESG rating model, and applied the results in credit rating for
clients. It revised the operational procedures for handling major risk incidents in client credit rating, fully implemented the Measures
for the Risk Classification of Financial Assets of Commercial Banks, and reconstructed its risk classification system. Annual credit
policy guidelines were circulated to guide the credit business in key sectors across the Bank, and clarify differentiated policies and risk
prevention and control requirements. CDB refined the early warning and management mechanism for credit risk and intensified the
application of big data and information-based measures in risk monitoring, constantly improving the timeliness and accuracy of risk early
warning. CDB intensified risk management in key areas, carried out quarterly reviews in branches, and monitored clients in high-risk
areas on a monthly basis, making its risk management more forward-looking and targeted. It implemented the work requirements of early
identification, early warning, early exposure and early disposal of risks, and strictly classified risks in accordance with the new regulations
on risk classification of financial assets. Key risky clients were put on a special list and plans were tailor-made to enable proactive
measures. CDB established and refined the mechanisms and system for defusing debt risks and took proactive measures to support
resolving local debt risks. It continued to improve the performance of risk mitigation and loss recovery and optimized the accountability
mechanism for projects involving major risks. The Bank adopted classified measures for NPLs, both large and small, by customizing
resolutions one by one and assigning responsibilities to each person. It intensified dynamic adjustments with a focus on major NPLs and
adopted multiple measures for recovering after write-offs. It adhered to making selection after full comparison and disposal at proper
times to seize the opportunities to recover debt-expiated assets.

17 XS

MARKET RISK
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In 2023, CDB kept a sharp eye on the developments in international and domestic financial markets, continued to observe and analyze
the macroeconomic landscape, established and improved the prevention and control mechanism combining regular management and
emergency response, with a prudent market risk appetite. It focused on the risk conditions in the monetary market, bond market and
other business areas, promoted the development of systems related to market risk closely following business needs, and coordinated
the integrated market risk management across the group. The Bank dynamically tracked and analyzed the trends of exchange rate
and interest rate and intensified risk appetite implementation across the group. It formulated risk management and control strategies

consistent with its risk appetite, and actively took measures to mitigate and control exchange rate risk and interest rate risk, to ensure
that risk levels were controlled within target limits.
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In 2023, CDB consistently followed a prudent approach to liquidity risk management, and continuously improved its liquidity risk
management mechanisms, taking into account the sources of funding and purposes of financial services of a DFI. It constantly updated
strategies in light of business growth and market changes and achieved a good matching and structural balance between the total
amount, maturity and schedule of assets and liabilities. The management framework covered the whole spectrum of CDB’s services,
including the upper, middle, and lower streams, and provided multiple tools to monitor risks to ensure reasonable liquidity reserves. It
paid great attention to preventing various risks from turning into liquidity risks and kept enhancing its emergency response capacity to
liquidity risks to ensure the bank-wide liquidity safety.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2023, CDB continued to improve its operational risk management mechanism and optimize its operational risk management tools. It
refined the basis and dimensions for measurement of operational risk losses and specified the standards and contents of the operational
risk evaluation on new products. It carried out a re-inspection on key indicators of bank-wide operational risks, revised the self-
inspection index system of operational risk and control for the entire bank and branches, and intensified the requirements for operational
risk incident reporting and management. In accordance with regulatory requirements, CDB launched the implementation plan for the
measurement of capital involving operational risks under the new standardized approach. It promoted refined management of outsourcing

risks, streamlined the procedures and management requirements for outsourcing activities, specified the standards for outsourcing risk
evaluation, and organized outsourcing risk evaluations.
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In 2023, CDB constantly improved the top-level design of its compliance risk management framework. The Board of Directors exercised
strategic decision-making and supervisory powers over the bank-wide compliance management; the senior management assumed

leadership responsibilities in managing the critical tasks of bank-wide compliance management. The governance system of compliance
management was further improved to strengthen whole-of-procedure management. Greater efforts were made for compliance coordination

and pre-examination, in-process monitoring and reporting, and post-examination and correction to fully utilize the “three lines of defense”.
Corrections were made upon investigation across the group under centralized management to implement regulatory advice efficiently and
consolidate gains. A compliance culture was fostered that encouraged all to take responsibility and increase awareness.
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In 2023, CDB improved the operation mechanism for the whole process of public opinion monitoring and analysis, response and
disposal, and feedback and evaluation to enhance its front-end research, judgment and investigation. It made great efforts to carry out
daily management of reputational risks and improved the efficiency of response to public opinions. By formulating response standards
and responding to appeals in a timely manner, the Bank properly handled various public opinions and established a more positive image.
Besides, it carried out compliance inspections, strengthened publicity and confidentiality management, and fulfilled the responsibilities for
reputational risk management.
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In 2023, CDB kept improving the system for managing country risk and risks in international business; closely monitored and took
effective measures to respond to changes in the international political and economic landscapes; timely monitored and analyzed
incidents with country risk and risks in international business for early warning and reporting, improved the methods for setting country
risk limits, and strengthened country risk limits management, and classified risk control; fully executed strategies for country risk appetite
and management; and systematically conducted special studies and quarterly reviews on major risks. Strong country risk management
provided support, incentive, and guarantee for the growth of CDB'’s international business.
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In 2023, CDB thoroughly implemented the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council. Making
high quality development a top priority, CDB stayed firm in returning to its role as a bank for infrastructure, focused on its mandate, and
prioritized the support for the development of infrastructure-related sectors. It made great efforts to accelerate the construction of major
projects including subsidized housing, renovation of urban villages, and dual-use public infrastructure that can accommodate emergency
needs. It translated the decisions and instructions of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council into its key tasks and reform

measures. Thanks to its continuous monitoring on the driving factors of strategic risks, no major strategic risk incidents occurred during
the year.
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In 2023, CDB continued to strengthen its IT risk management system and improve the defense structure and management procedures.

It carried out IT risk evaluation, monitoring, control and reporting, and went all out to promote the development of business continuity
management system across the Bank, making great efforts to improve its IT risk management.
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In 2023, based on its role as a bank for infrastructure, as mandated by its mission to support national development and deliver a
better life for the people, CDB thoroughly implemented the guiding principles of the Central Financial Work Conference and the Central
Economic Work Conference, and fully play its role as a DFI to actively promote major national strategies, key industries and under-
developed sectors. It further grasped the political significance of financial work, made financial services more people-centered and
created economic, social and environmental benefits. It also made great efforts to develop technology finance, green finance, inclusive
finance, elderly care finance and digital finance, to provide high quality services for social and economic development and strong support
for advancing the Global Development Initiative (GDI) and implementing the UN 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

The CDB Sustainable Development Report 2023 shall be released to communicate the Bank’s approaches and practices in performing
corporate social responsibility and boosting sustainable development.
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HONORS AND AWARDS

Ministry of Finance

49

rhRERhAr St B (W55 THE)

PERTLHE

Role Model for Central Financial Enterprises (Financial)

China Banking Association

2023 F R “QUFT AR " 4F T 1E)

(ERERTIRY

2023 Best News on Innovative Development in the Banking Industry

Financial News

2023 E MM EIEE -2 RR "FEKE
REemMMEEMIREERRT R

(HEHZ £/IRY

Bank of the Year for Infrastructure Development 2023

China Urban-Rural Financial News

CEMIRS 2 RIRX ISR E R R

(ERBFHLYRE

Case of Excellent Practice of Financial Services for Rural Revitalization

Financial Computerizing

TRAHN AR

FESHMFASEHBRETIZERS

Fintech Application Innovation Award

Fintech Committee, China Society for Finance and Banking

REIEMERERRE

RESNCR S H D

Achievement Award for Projects of Best Practice Value

China Foreign Exchange Trade System

2022 F RATESINC T IZRER S EIRS A

TAFEEERIANS

2022 Best Post-trade Service Institution in the Interbank Foreign Exchange Market

Association of Development Financing Institutions in Asia and the Pacific (ADFIAP)

T ARFREERINANE2023FREREIMER

ADFIAP Outstanding Development Projects Awards 2023
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IBDOZ

=L IR F[2024]852ZA31156S

ERFRBTERES :

=] e
BEERS $1+l§\lj_lb
HMNEHTERFLRITOMSIRE, B1F2023F12A31BNEHRIRTHEFARE, 2023FENEHRRITIER. GHRRTABENSLENER.
BHRBRITRESRERURIB XM SIREM T,
HAVAN, EMEOMSREEMBEATEZRBENSIDENNRERST, ARKRRTERFLZIRIT2023F12831HNEH LRITM SRR AR 20235
ENEHRROTEERRNMESRE.

- =]

Z. EREITERNEM

EAVZBAREIMS I ERIDENRMERIT T EITIE. \FIHREN IRt M ESREFITHRE BoE—TER THRNEXLEN TR
o BBAREFMSITIPRWEZFN, RIMBRZFERFLRIT, #ABTTRVESAENEMET. RINEE, ROKMPTINEERRS. EX
B, AEFREITELIRME T EM.

=, XEHITE

KEETEHEHAVRBIRL AL, AN EABYSREFHRAZENET. XEBTOEY ANV SREBEHITHRIAZATHEINTSR, )
T XLEERBIREZEN

HANEFITFIRA HORBEEITEINC20TF -

(=) REEFMNBER. ®RIKENMSEREFOTIBERIRKITE

(Z)  #EMEEENEH
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(=) RBEFMBR. FREENVSERSANRBERAREITE
ERFABRITEARTAGRPURRAA T ENLREIRNERILHTAIARD
148,865.66127T, HNHIANTAMERREERNARTO6,962.4512 7T ; HFHIKE
M HEREBEHENARTI6,096.00127T, HWEHIANTITAGERANART
201.5912 7T, 2023F F & FHAERFHINN L BT ARMEBIR. RPKBENM SR
ARERARERKSHMEITAART799.3512 7T
EHBRHMBRTAAERRERES. RIRENYSBREDIT ARRARRTE
FALBITEER(UTEHR SER" )RB(ELSIHENS22S - R TAEHIA
T EIOHE, RAMBEHRKER, EVSREAN B ERRERMEORE
fEite
BEBESIFEEMERAMER. RRFENYSBREDOERRNK BV EEIAG
RERZEM, SA=ZMBRESEE T ERPERRE. WFUMRRATEBHELM
WHRMB. URSHRAFENYSBREED, CEELEANELHEREHEERE
AR BARER. BYRNKRBNTNEE X RSHHONE S BEEEIFGERE
o
TS RIRKITEREFESNEAETERHMMNBREEZARE .
(1) BEBEUEARKBSENLSUAND—MEE, EBFERLANITEHEE, HH
ETBAEXNERSY
(2) ERRKEZHEN. BHOMELESRRENHBITE ;
(38) BTFHIEMITENEFER. EFESREANENRA ;
(4) F=MEZMERMBROARMESRIAN
ERF LR RITHIAIE R IR R RBRL T X HPAERAZFIR FILH o
ERFLBTOABERRKITE, EHETERXNEE, ZHTAENSHMEIE,
BMBERRAESMItAGESHER, SREATERHMABIE. RILHNH
EHAXBEITE.
HAXWESDMESBERDED. 7, MHER. 1, HEE/N 6, BBE/N 25, BHE/\.
ABRMEEFZL 20

)
)

RANFNINA T SERARADR. RRKENYSBRADOTER RN &

BXNRBEHRI RETOERE, EBOR :

(1) SEEZECNEE. WA, WSS ROKELEX0MN SRS ;

(2 SABUASMMEITE. BERDLEE. SHHT EARREFEM. B4
HIE R FDRERET, DU B IE M R XS A48 22 26 L 0 1 470
HARX MR ;

(@) SHETBERNXHRBIANEHIENRELAXORBERH ;

(@) SEZMRAMRIRABROFRALHTNARE EAXNQRBRH ;

() SHETEMANEERENBEH.

RIONTOREIERS, TR0 :

() RMEATRSERAKANMEA RS, WASYS. RRAE X025
# EAHABRO ST T T G ROVBERIETHROEHE, L
HItRERRTR YRR T ERERS ORI

@ EFERANMENENSELRAMAPEENESRE, RIVAEFET
EIRENERRGRE RN, 15050 2R 4 (5P R I R PR 601 2
e

@) WFARMTE, RNEKTEREEMOLFIER. SFHRRNEORD
HIRER, VAT BTN AR,

() ROERLETREHBFEROXRBIBOTIN, Q5L MR 8O K
B, PERERIEN R, ROV XRMEEED BRI ENERR
SRR B TRERE, UEERIENR .

() NTEZMROLMARODLK, ROGWER, ©BT EREETFERAL
BRANMSELE. BRANORNFENE. XHoFEIRERESDRE
ERBRNTOHARNE R B RITNE I HOREES

(Z ) EMUEBnaH
ERFRBITOEMUEREIBEORELT. L. EERREANEFEHUTR. &
FEETRESE, F20235F128318, HMEREFRENBAS T CEN
MU ERHNRFAENERFRBITRT. REREBNURANGFSEENEHIL
FUPRFAESFIAART125.1MZTMART1,469.22127¢ ; thoh, BRARR
TRENBEMNELIT. ZERSEHRNAEGHEENSLLZENOKENER
ARH177.601Z5T

ERFARBTBELIFEUTHAEHM EREMUETURRERTENANEGHUEZRET
& :

o WEMLERAAENRD ;

e BESS5EMUTARNBXEDNMEZENITEER ;

o HENZAFEMUEGHHORAEMERFLRITERSTMOTELER.
ERFLRBTEMUTERNESTELR, CERNEMUEIRRHIOTE, SREXH
W, B, RMEEWEERNEHHTENXERITE.

MEXFESNMEM. 29, HEER. 2HME/N. 47,

HNHNARLENEMU TR, THENEIHEFEEEALE

(1) LRI S T B9 H B AE € 49 4 3R 42 i B9 IR THRIE 7 A0 B SO AT 348
st

(2) BIEREGEIFMETABRSEMN T OGRS URERFLIRITHE
MU TR ;

(8) EHRZATTERSWMMNE, TRERBFERRFEAZ~EEARR
SNHWRENAE. BEORRKE, URRENEMUETERRERTRINMES
BRHAMSS

@) DEMTFEERFRROINEMUEEREREEE. FETEEARRSI
WABMREBHOREMAKE. REFEEMEMAEERPHEMNGERABYTREIRN
RELUREMS ST HERNTREARF, DA ERFLRITEEMUEERR
SHREEREBEAZRIEREANEE.
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M. Ht52

EREMHMERAR. HtESSEERFRRT2023FFERETRENER, EREEUSREMNBRNVEITRE.

RO MBZRELRNEHBARNEZHMES, HNEAHEMEERREARANEILESL,

FEBRNHEMESRENE T, ROPVRERLMZEMER, AltiZEHS, EEEMEERETESUSREIRNERTIRT TRINBEAFEEAT—K
FEUFEFEERER.

ETHMNENTHINE, NRFNHERAMEEFEEAER, RNEAREZEL. EXHH, RN EAETRHFERS.

h. EEEMAEENMSZRRNFE

EEEARRRAUSIHENNMERHMSRE, EEIARRRE, HRiT. ATHNLEFLZOREIRE, LUEMSREFFEHTHEESBRSH
HERER.

ERFIVSREN, EERARITHERFRRITOFELER), RESHELLEAXNEI(WER ), FzABEELERE, KRIFTWHITESR.
LI EEHR A T H I L AIER

AEEARBEERFRRITOMSREIRE.

— N A\ = N ==

7~ GEMRIHIN M S REREITEE
RNHUEGENVYSRREBAREAFAHTHESBERSBNENBRANAERIE, HHAEGSWITBELNEITRE. SERIERSKFNRIE, B
HARERIERBRERIDENATHF AR -—EXERFENDHELN. BRUEHTHFIHRZSYN, URAETPERERITCSERTEELI SR
RERABRBEVSRRMELOEFTREK, WBBANERREAN.

ERBRERIDENHITEIT TENEREFR, RINEARLHE, FRSRVIRE. B, ROBRTUUTIE:

(=) RIAMTERTEERBRSBOMSREEAERNLE  RITHXEEITREFURNXLERE, FREAS . EBINEIHEE, FARRFITR
REOEM. ATHETHELLRER. HE. HEERR. ERFAIRETABENZ L, RELXVNATEESBNEAERONKES T RELINA
FHIRSBHERERINE.

TREEITEXNREES, ORITHEEHEITER.

TMERREBSITBERMESIEMEE ST RBEXIRENSEN.

IERNTIEN

HNEERERFELERINEINBELE L. BN, RERBOEIHEHE, ATESBENERFRRTHELEERNFEERRERNZIARBER
EEFAEATHEMREEL. NRENBLEELANNFEEATHEN, FIHENERBENEFHREPREREEAE IV SREPIAE
XIE  MRKBEARS, BNNIRRELREEL. HNWERETFEEFTITREATRENER. AT, RERNEARBERTESHERF
RBITREEREEE,

(B) WHMESREROS2EIIR(BERE ). SHARE, FINUSRERTARRMBXZZMET.

RERFRRITFLERRNZFHNMSELSRMES . BLENEINEE, UNMSRELZREXETEL. RNARES. BENRITERARIT, H
MEITRAAE LRI,

ENSBEERITHWOEITEE. HERHMNEARITRASEIAITAE, SEABHNERITPIRIEESOIHNERIZHRE.
HMNAEFECET SR MBXWRWERERE@BERRMER, HF5BERABTRESIDANZMEAVRZMEOAEXRMAMEBEI, LILAEXEIB
SEEHE (AER o

MNSRERABENETRSD, HNBEBLEIYAPUYSRETTRAEE, EMARXEFITEDR. RNEFIHREPHAXLER, RIFAREN
ZIPAFFRBEXLEER, FEROBELT, NREGEMPAEFITRETAERFIERN AT EREBIEARFN BT E~ENEL, RIHERLEH
IHRE P IBBIZET.
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SERITIESAR FESEMEITID - RER
(FHEBEBEK) (mBEAA)
FEeLE
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BHRIRITR™ A

2023128310 (BRBHETHAN, &HBENHYIARTEIIT)

A EEH T

N& RFHRFRBITHRIM 1 98,366 113,860 97,823 113,314
FFRUE b FRIT 2 143,422 113,326 140,421 146,482
FEARS 3 544,247 471,537 554,200 476,496
PTEERE~ 4 3,569 11,093 2,893 10,269
ENBESRA > 5 477,525 404,823 477,456 404,823
RINGER AR 6 14,244,743 13,899,107 13,756,973 13,391,556
SREA

R HHERE = 7 902,061 931,128 675,568 696,949

AR # 8 700,985 935,357 696,356 933,716

H ARG 9 1,167,521 1,022,499 1,131,498 989,327

Hihila TREHE 10 5,460 5,354 2,000 2,042
KEARAN R 2 11 522 458 533,050 530,630
& E %~ 12 133,253 121,427 14,529 14,768
TEEIRE 1,057 1,581 997 1,534
TRRE™ 13 1,887 1,696 1,586 1,368
WE 14 713 712 - -
BERERE™ 15 192,263 174,366 172,582 158,311
Hthm = 16 36,928 34,759 12,450 13,951

BrEBIT 18,654,522 18,243,083 18,270,382 17,885,536
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BHRRITETAGE - &

2023FE12A31H

(BAEEIRAN, STAMHIARTEL )

EHA &IT
Bk % H Ath & @A FER I 17 2,506,350 2,536,074 2,516,386 2,545,846
= BUF A H fth & R fE K 18 673,951 572,862 385,980 329,012
N 19 43,265 38,869 27,617 24,689
T 5 EE R 20 2,621 2,495 = -
PTEE R AR 4 8,271 18,351 8,025 18,339
SEHEMSRE =K 21 17,090 15,392 1,132 -
R 77 5K 22 863,254 1,167,724 1,017,412 1,289,644
Rz A+ BR T3 B 23 3,627 3,352 2,810 2,605
RN 24 38,391 55,865 36,785 54,000
it s f5% 25 20,733 23,999 20,489 23,756
ERTHREIES 26 12,724,297 12,125,956 12,679,504 12,078,952
1 JE P S L 1 B 15 6,589 8,136 - -
HAth R 27 66,353 68,427 31,331 36,090
ARET 16,974,792 16,637,502 16,727,471 16,402,933

KU FE A 28 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
RAEARTR 29 182,650 182,650 182,195 182,195
Hibsr Al 30 (4,740) (13,098) 8,541 1,314
BEAR 31 229,477 214,825 229,477 214,825
— R A 32 278,378 260,425 272,496 255,123
KO EFE 33 545,728 513,776 428,954 407,898
PHEFEAIMEENGEEIT 1,652,741 1,579,826 1,542,911 1,482,603
DB RN S 34 26,989 25,755 = -
FEENEETT 1,679,730 1,605,581 1,542,911 1,482,603
SR EENE 2T 18,654,522 18,243,083 18,270,382 17,885,536
& B SR SR M E D A SRR AR EB .
AMEREBHATINORALSE .
BFEK T FEMEEITK ik
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2023FE (BRAAEMN, STEMIIARTEST)
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AEH 17
—. BlREAN 209,658 239,530 167,316 206,642
F 2N 35 160,313 170,310 141,673 158,178
F BB 642,040 633,280 614,095 613,333
B X H (481,727) (462,970) (472,422) (455,155)
FEHERAEFRBEAN 36 530 1,504 164 611
FEHARMEEA 1,450 2,410 844 1,212
FEHERAEIE (920) (906) (680) (601)
REWE 37 28,918 21,717 19,121 14,912
He . WREMSGELWHRARR 69 345 = -
PR AT RN SRR =L L HIA= £
il 28 (186) 32 - -
ARMELHRE 38 (5,127) (14,184) (3,760) (12,040)
CHMRE 39 4,522 43,734 4,839 42,601
HAthlr SN 40 15,420 14,108 307 135
Hetlas 5,082 2,341 4,972 2,245
Z.BElREH (107,299) (142,392) (83,330) (127,436)
Bi & XMt A0 41 (4,689) (4,421) (4,405) (4,088)
W& RERR 42 (13,501) (13,064) (11,292) (10,885)
5 ARERK 43 (80,089) (115,426) (67,557) (112,461)
HAR = RE#R K (1,575) (3,031) (76) (1)
HAth b 5 B A 44 (7,445) (6,450) = (1)
=, BlFE 102,359 97,138 83,986 79,206
o E SN 94 86 24 63
o B (76) (77) (67) (72)
. e SE 102,377 97,147 83,943 79,197
B PRS2 A 45 (14,960) (12,807) (10,136) (6,479)
. O&EFE 87,417 84,340 73,807 72,718
REFEASRAEENEFE 85,283 82,728 73,807 72,718
DERERE 2,134 1,612 = -
N, Htg SR AR RS 30 8,378 3,307 7,184 (1,657)
PEFEAIMBENEMGERENTE 2 8,315 2,392 7,184 (1,657)
(—) MEARRES X BERANEMEERE 18 (94) 110 514
1LEHITEREZHITW TN 118 22 118 22
2HMME TERANANEES (100) (116) (8) 492
(Z) MERESEHRENHAMBE SRS 8,297 2,486 7,074 (2,171)
1T HEMGBEIEEARNEEZS 7,048 (2,623) 6,833 (2,417)
2 HMBRAEAREES 85 164 95 (5)
3R SIRRITEZM 1,359 4,204 147 237
4 it (195) 741 (1) 14
AETF OB R H AL &I TR %5 63 915 = -
t. GElkEEaH 95,795 87,647 80,991 71,061
HETFEATIMEENGERESM 93,598 85,120 80,991 71,061
BFEFLERENGZEWE S 2,197 2,527 = -

JE B S5 4R AR BT A A SRR AAAREBSY .
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2023 (BRAEEIMI, STMBMAHMIARTERAT)
HEFBARREENS
—. 202341 H1EEH 421248 182,650  (13,098) 214,825 260,425 513,776 1,579,826 25755 1,605,581
Z. AERETHER
(—) %708 = = - - - 85283 85283 2,134 87,417
(Z) Eem il 30 - - 8,315 - - - 8,315 63 8,378
SelEsM - - 8,315 - - 85283 93,598 2197 95795
(Z)FEERNRD = = = = = = - (254) (254)
() #5858
1RRERAR 31 - - - 14,652 - (14,652 = = =
2RR—BRE A 32 - - - - 17,953  (17,953) = = =
3B ENSE 33 = = = = - (20,683)  (20,683) (709)  (21,392)
(&) Hfth - - 43 - - (43) - = =
=. 20235 12A31 H&H 421,248 182,650 _ (4,740) 229,477 278,378 545728 1,652,741 _ 26,989 1,679,730
—. 202251 A1HRH 421248 182,650  (14,988) 201,134 258,519 465,883 1,514,446 23,834 1,538,280
Z. AEREEHEH
(—) %7058 - - - - - 82,728 82,728 1,612 84,340
(Z) Eealkas 30 - - 2,392 - - - 2,392 915 3,307
SREBHERH - - 2,392 - - 82728 85120 2527 87,647
(Z) FADRERD - - - - ®) 8 - (73) (79)
(M) 85 E
1TRBEBEAR 31 - - - 13,691 - (13,691) - - -
2R — MRS & 32 - - - - 1,914 (1,914) - - -
3B HEMNHE 33 - - - - - (19,740)  (19,740) (533)  (20,273)
(&) Hft - - (502) - - 502 - - -
=. 20224 12F31HE&H 421248 182,650  (13,098) 214,825 260,425 513,776 1,579,826 _ 25755 1,605,581

J5 B T 55 HR AR BRHE A AW S5 IR RAGB LR
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WITHEEN LR

2023FE (BRAAEEMN, SHERIHIIARTEST)

—. 202341 H1EEH 421248 182,195 1,314 214825 255123 407,898 1,482,603
Z. AEBTHER
(—) % FE = = - - - 73,807 73,807
(Z) Hft ek 30 - - 7,184 - - - 7,184
SRKHE D - - 7,184 - - 73,807 80,991
(=) FENE
1RRBRAR 31 = = = 14,652 = (14,652) =
CRE—BREESR 32 = = = = 17,373 (17,373) -
3B BN 33 = = = = = (20,683) (20,683)
(M) Hifth - - 43 = = (43) =
=. 20234%12H31 A% 421248 182,195 8,541 229477 272,496 _ 428954 1,542,911
—. 20221 A1HEH 421248 182,195 3473 201,134 253382 369,850 1,431,282
=, MEEETHEH
(—) %FE - - - - - 72,718 72,718
(Z) HfbirE s 30 - - (1,657) - - - (1,657)
SEWR B - - (1,657) - - 72,718 71,061
(=) FaE
1 RBRBRAR 31 - - - 13,691 - (13,691) -
2RER—BREEE 32 - - - - 1,741 (1,741) -
3XWEBENAIE 33 - - - - - (19,740) (19,740)
() Hfth - - (502) - - 502 -
=. 2022412531 A%H 421248 182,195 1,314 214825 255123 407,898 1,482,603

T B I 55 R o BV E A A Y S5 4R AR A A AR 4
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BHERRITHUERER

2023FE (BRAFIPN, 2HMBEMIIIARDTEATT)

AEH 1T
Lp=TAN 20234 20224 20234 20224
—. BEEHFENRERE -
TFI R SRR TN E] A SR IR % R D B 29,411 39,773 29,388 39,054
& P TER A E) b 1F R I 4 3 N AT - 212,623 - 234,565
EES IRk PN S ek 51,111 - 2,396 -
BEBFR. FEHERBEHIE 630,265 605,237 590,132 572,714
KB HMSREFNEXNUS 111,958 284,081 82,505 263,827
ZEFEHAETNNT 822,745 1,141,714 704,421 1,110,160
KRR TS IG AR (408,620) (1,118,929) (418,879) (767,188)
EEMESRNMEFEANR 3R DT - (27,393) - (32,926)
1m At & R A9 R £ 4518 AR (55,263) (86,772) (60,263) (91,672)
& P IE RN AL 17 R TEOR D B (339,545) - (307,518) -
TAFE. FEHERBLHNE (82,029) (86,289) (73,926) (79,000)
INERIEARIZANAS (7,868) (7,851) (6,612) (6,625)
TR & TR (96,924) (60,590) (81,911) (53,016)
XA HMEZEFHHERNAS (27,146) (88,384) (22,983) (9,768)
ZEEHASTHNT (1,017,395) (1,476,208) (972,092) (1,040,195)
ZEERNTERNINEREBSEM 46(1) (194,650) (334,494) (267,671) 69,965
. BRESHFENRERE
W ER FE R IS 1,564,244 1,005,027 1,469,504 962,884
BERARGREINIE 66,101 65,374 76,123 70,537
REFRAIREME W EMRE RS2 - 280 = -
BRI HMBERAENEXNIAE 2,423 6,416 268 162
BREHA RN DT 1,632,768 1,077,097 1,545,895 1,033,583
BARZANRS (1,473,526) (1,042,373) (1,361,657) (1,417,302)
gl?%rﬁﬁfﬁ TR F=MEMKIR =X (21.551) (14,974) 679) (591)
e
BEEDHUETH /T (1,495,077) (1,057,347) (1,362,336) (1,417,893)
BRABHEENRNEREST 137,691 19,750 183,559 (384,310)
= EREHTFENRERE -
R R K BN & - . _ _
Hep . FAIRKDBERREETREIHNE - - = -
RITRSIEFREINI S 2,377,639 2,631,402 2,369,010 2,607,488
EEFE G SR ERKEINNE 102,536 72,297 104,992 72,092
WEHMbEERENEXNIAE 1,458 533 = -
EREHRMETNMIT 2,481,633 2,704,232 2,474,002 2,679,580
BEEREIANRNE (1,898,590) (2,098,725) (1,883,270) (2,069,793)
SERM. FESEATEXAFNIE (409,734) (393,597) (407,258) (391,965)
HAp . FASXMHAEDEBEROBRF . 78 (365) (437) = -
XA HMEERFNEROAS (1,714) (1,998) = -
EREHMETE M (2,310,038) (2,494,320) (2,290,528) (2,461,758)
EREHENRERE R 171,595 209,912 183,474 217,822
M. CETEHNAERASENYHIFNE 7,416 14,834 3,354 11,525
. HERNEENIER D 122,052 (89,998) 102,716 (84,998)
. FURERALENY R 666,383 756,381 704,200 789,198
N, ERRNERMEENMRET 46(2) 788,435 666,383 806,916 704,200

J5 B T 55 HR AR BRHE 0 AR 53R R AV ARLER



2023 F U SRR ME

(B 2HEMS, 2MRAIIHARTETT)

—. BEXxER

ERARBT (TR A ) 05 5 H M F199443517
AWEARFSRIG, GESRICE, HRFRHETF2008
F12A 1B EGRHIARFRATRGERAT, BPEAR
SAEMEE (WU TEH MEES) PR SBAERFLA
S UTHHR LeAT ) HAERE,

ZEXLHEESELE (T20234F38160 , # R EHFETH
EEEEEZRLEMEARTA) HERR. THHTREEN
FKIZATERIL, F017F48198, " BERXRALXRITEHERL
B EBREEN BRARRT AARXHBENERLAIEE
HERFTELS, ARGERTTHEBEEER (R EZTIH
THREER") ZARKFE—#SERKE911100000000184548
S0WEAEVHE, FF017H6813HLERS M LB EE
BB H %X G0001H111000001 S £ R F I iF, TEZREWF
ATEFMNFFAABHXESHEE M, TEBICE, KITR%
TEERAEXRTERBERLIEIWHES~ . RS S,

AOEFAS (UMTER AEA") N EREN HERE A
iy, REESRSEREFERTRKARRER KEFKH
BRRANGELRRSILY, EETSUHETS IHEMK
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| 2023f12[31H  2022412F31H  2023%12A31H 20224127318
EERE 2 3 2 3
B HRBITRI 98,364 113,857 97,821 113,311
Ait 98,366 113,860 97,823 113,314
2. TFHE] L TR
AEH AT
_ 20224120318 _ 2022412 H31H
FRREAEMBRT 90,664 60,318 106,352 106,659
BEREANERT SR 651 13,417 637 13,348
FRIRSNEAMRT 51,879 39,455 33,435 26,475
FRIEESNERITS RN 70 56 = -
A1t 143,264 113,246 140,424 146,482
RitHFLE 217 80 - -
REn 143,481 113,326 140,424 146,482
AR
Hi BB (59) - (©) -
AR 143,422 113,326 140,421 146,482

F2023F 123310, AEAFTHEWKIF R EFRAART169.64127T (2022F12831H: ART182.70Z7T), TE AKX EKH
TASATRITERN RN E T RAERTETZEEMRNERATHORILE.

3. IR &K &
A EH 1T
| 2023%12A31H  2022412F31H  2023F12A31H  2022412F31H
FIIEA EAMRT 480,281 371,284 480,281 371,284
AR NI RIT SRR 15,000 14,001 24,900 18,900
FRIRINEAMIRTT 48,108 85,537 48,108 85,537
&it 543,389 470,822 553,289 475,721
Rz itF S 1,167 772 1,220 832
B 544,556 471,594 554,509 476,553
A EEE
. B (300) (52) (300) (52)
B ) (%) ©) (6)
AR 544,247 471,537 554,200 476,496

4. TEERMH~RARK
(1) fTEEmMIA
PHEERTIANSR/BAXETTUAR S ARRAFIANATL AR L2 ANERBLEREY, EHF-—ERKIZIRENARKIN
EREBFLUFAANE, BFA—ERRRAKAMARNERARNERTHAR. TELRIENAANEBESESAZREX
T HMERMINOCREREBHAR TR, BN ARARKTEANSRTIGR 0, XL 0T E AT R ERRNE.
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&R

2023F12H31H

CERLGETH
RHER (BFETXEHFERER) 445,774 2,269 (7,197)
SO ERFSNCEIR 1,278 19 =
N7 2,288 (7,197)
FEETETR
FIR 5 # 159,477 1,281 (1,074)
F ZHAAN 5,135 = =
Nt 1,281 (1,074)
&t 3,569 (8,271)
2022412H31H

CEETETR

BhER (BRI KD ERER) 687,294 7,667 (15,376)

SMTIZEAF SN HARX 3,607 23 (4)
N 7,690 (15,380)
FIEETETR

F 2 420,050 3,403 (2,971)

F AR 6,011 - -
it 3,403 (2,971)
&1t 11,093 (18,351)
&7 2023412H31H

CETETR
BHER (BFEIXEMHELTR) 424,563 2,090 (6,958)
SNTAZ HAFI ST HAX 52 1 =
N 2,091 (6,958)
FEETETR
FIZE B # 138,983 802 (1,067)
S0 5,135 - =
N7y 802 (1,067)
&it 2,893 (8,025)
2022412H31H

CERETETR
BHER (BFEIXEMHETR) 679,893 7,624 (15,349)
SMCIERF SN EIR 3,747 24 (4)
N 7,648 (15,353)
FELTETR
FIZ B # 403,847 2,621 (2,986)
FFREIN 6,011 - -
N 2,621 (2,986)
&t 10,269 (18,339)
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5.

ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(2) EfsU

iy 2AMNEES

AEAMBAEERERTHEZNSBHAANELTNHTELRRE, HEPMBAAEARTHARTHILEHHEE, Jx
FHR&AfRE REER P, T2023F12831HMNEXAE HART75.42{27T (2022F12A31H: ARM82.821Z7¢),
AEAEHTENLAANMETCNHERT B BEHRE RS RENL2ANMETNRNEFRIANERTLR D = £ MRS
HAREK.

(i) WEREEH
AEAFMAHEEREENFEENSHNALRELNHTENRE, REHNE AAEAFREELSHEEBRITHRAN
B MAXXBTHELRGANAECEENSENASAELTNHTENARE HEHPMB AT TETFASIERESH
AERNERATETHMGRSE., Hf MREHEL S T2023F 12831 HNEX AL HART155.991Z 7 (2022128 31H .
ARM173.96127T), T XK HHEHHREL W K F20235F 12831 AXHEMAART3.40127T (20224E12831H : &),

FT20235F12A31H K2022F12A31H . ARAC KT AHEMEESRENASRAEER IR AANERS“ENRITREURE
MM ENRAL WG REK.

FINBEEE R~

—

pie=3 AT

HIBRMFIR
R 477,507 404,935 477,284 404,707
Hith 1,161 1,322 -
&it 478,668 406,257 477,284 404,707
RZitF S 172 116 172 116
B 478,840 406,373 477,456 404,823

A AR

Hi E—HE - - - -
-l 12 - - - -
EZMER (1,315) (1,550) -
NG (1,315) (1,550) = -
SR 477,525 404,823 477,456 404,823

FEATENRERZ 7T REMBRYERT+—. SEBRYTINE.

6. RMETRRINE N

(1) EMEFRFMBASHERNT

AREH AT
| 2023%12H31H  2022412F31H  2023%12H31H  2022412A31H
IS R AT B2 E(a) 14,190,321 13,851,010 13,702,551 13,343,459
MagMETE8EEIT AL B D) 54,422 48,097 54,422 48,097

&1t 14,244,743 13,899,107 13,756,973 13,391,556
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(a) MRERARATEMERERMERDAMT .

IR EEH AT
| conFRASIA 02FI2A3A | 20WERANE 202F12ANA
E-Y SN T 14,646,153 14,222,605 14,327,107 13,897,307
N R B ER R H M 203,494 204,533 = -
N7 14,849,647 14,427,138 14,327,107 13,897,307
RitFIR 36,919 43,075 34,983 41,381
BE 14,886,566 14,470,213 14,362,090 13,938,688
Hei E—ME 13,372,962 12,892,388 12,949,557 12,402,611

B 1,325,842 1,344,107 1,226,631 1,304,921

EZMER 187,762 233,718 185,902 231,156
AR EEE
Hi B (238,554) (209,408) (230,177) (199,604)

B (329,057) (254,675) (302,302) (242,949)

EZME (128,634) (155,120) (127,060) (152,676)
N (696,245) (619,203) (659,539) (595,229)
BN 14,190,321 13,851,010 13,702,551 13,343,459

(b) UAAMETEEEENTALHRAENERRERMER S FOT
AEH X6y
| nFRASIA 02FI2ANA | 20WE2ANE 202F12ANA

BERARBRMBRAEAS 54,855 47,786 54,855 47,786
NRMELZE (433) 311 (433) 311
&3t 54,422 48,097 54,422 48,097

AEFARERMY R EEENYRERMT+—. SEERYPIKE.
(2) R SERFB TR E ST

EH

202351818 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203
B B 557

REE-MER 46,845 (46,845) - -
BEE MR (14,613) 34,105 (19,492) =
BERE=MER - (5,727) 5,727 -
i 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
EHiTE(@Q) (26,283) 109,287 2,937 85,941

| HAsk i E (21,208) (22,939) (7,815) (51,962)
2 - - (11,210) (11,210)
W B 2 4% 55 TR - - 5,205 5,205

HAithZEwh 431 1,334 (1,855) (90)

2023%E12H31H 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
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20224E1 B 1H 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
BB # %

BEE—MR 8,489 (8,489) - -

BEETHE (18,017) 28,073 (10,056) -

BRE=MER (8) (57,215) 57,223 -

iz 44,932 19,506 4 64,442

EHitEQ) 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664

E|#AS45 [E] (22,645) (13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
A k] - (148) (9,612) (9,760)
Bl 2 %58 K - - 6,255 6,255

Hith 2 wh 1,124 7,951 5,451 14,526

20224E12831H 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203

T

20234110 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229

B R 75 .

BEE MK 44,145 (44,145) - _
BEEMR (12,495) 30,878 (18,383) =
HEEZNER - (5,257) 5,257 -
g 42,476 4,872 - 47,348
EHITE(Q) (24,214) 92,428 2,821 71,035
e (19,744) (20,687) (7,459) (47,890)
PR - - (11,112) (11,112)
Y m E % $E TR = - 5,205 5,205
HthE 405 1,264 (1,945) (276)
20234124 31H 230,177 302,302 127,060 659,539

20224E1 B 1H 185,832 215,214 80,742 481,788
B R 75 .

BEE-MER 6,593 (6,593) - -
BEE MR (17,704) 27,732 (10,028) -
BERE=HER - (56,581) 56,581 -
wig 41,313 18,509 - 59,822
EHITE(Q) 3,836 48,656 39,922 92,414
G- E (21,336) (11,923) (16,839) (50,098)
IR % M - - (9,407) (9,407)
U E A% 5H Bk - - 6,255 6,255
HAth 2 zh 1,070 7,935 5,450 14,455

2022 12A31H 199,604 242,949 152,676 595,229
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(a) BERESHMNEMEN (LNBARE sAREAXNER)  BTEARRXNERNEANEEE RS, iSBEFARK
MBEREE-MR. E-MR. E=MRZBREED, NERBAESBRAAENITEEMRA12D B MENFLHTIERBR
RZERIER.

(i) 2023 K. NAKHAMKEFRENRAZMHNEARARNBERESRH TR O

FUMBE— KRR ARFER G EERRRAANERSTMN0%, MIEENBRKFTEARFEMR—RMERMERKE £
B9 BT 293% TS

FYNR KA IR ER G BELRRAMERSHMN%, HNR—FEBENMR-_NEAS EMR-FNAREN1%;

FHMHBEZRMRRAER S BERERERANERSTN1%, ENBR B ENBR=ZMNAS MR ZENAEL1%, 2023
ENBRZAMRANERARESERRZE ST S ENRMA12%, BB BHH RERSBOREEFHIGIN,

(i) 2023 K ZEFARERAWNEREBEH (KSBRFLUERIA) MSBEEXRIREAEASHNBEZEBENEZ SENE=
FMR-ZHEINBE—NRREKASTAEAL.

(3) BIHILE AR IR T

MRFFASGFZE@ME, WZERED LB R, T T U EARARNBERNRRFER, R HAAFEE, W%

REEBRII WA K N BT .

A EEHF 8
| MAMA 3fAEE 1EsE sEME AW

2023%12H31H
FEAER 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147
RIUETERK 615 6,786 2,177 672 10,250
EELSZRAE

— MR B 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 46,271

- B 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&it 36,724 12,173 36,656 28,185 113,738
2022%412H31H
(R 10,671 9,323 14,220 626 34,840
RIETTRK 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378
EELSYIE

— IR 22,873 1,396 18,721 16,049 59,039

— B TERR 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238
&it 64,351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495

AT 1A
| MAWA fAEE 1ESE sEME A

2023%£12H31H
(B EN 976 49 20,487 11,470 32,982
FRAE B3R 615 6,718 2,177 672 10,182
EES U e

— IR 15,033 1,562 10,355 11,042 37,992

— RIRGERK 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
&it 29,558 12,105 35,612 27,951 105,226
2022%12H31H
(B EN 10,671 9,323 14,062 626 34,682
RIE TR 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378
GEELSYIE

— ALK 12,295 1,396 17,413 15,739 46,843

— B TERR 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238

A1t 53,773 15,088 37,164 22,116 128,141
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7. ERRE - XHMEMET

s Sl T

MEZZENFENERATREMBUARNEITE
BHEEMITASHRENSHAS

B R AEBURI A RS 2,122 4,241 2,122 4,228
Uk N 41,457 60,308 40,335 58,822
AT MRS 10,299 17,024 9,555 15,788
ERZE3=] 117,890 68,507 117,890 68,507
BRI 321 368 = -
RERESE/E 13,294 16,568 = -
1T RITHEY ™ 3,743 3,450 = -
e 712,537 760,072 505,268 549,014
INF 901,663 930,538 675,170 696,359
BEMAANETEBERTH A YHREN
SRR
N E R 384 576 384 576
REEETR 14 14 14 14
Nt 398 590 398 590
&it 902,061 931,128 675,568 696,949

ARAEZAUMAANETEARLHTANLSHRENERAT TR NARA00FERMUZARTEM ™ aMEEAE . &
RFBHERANTER>,

8. SRIRE — HBAURH

P 3 T

BUR ROEBUR 655 592,081 826,566 592,041 826,566
SRVEHRE 240 500 - 500
AEFFH 105,936 103,989 105,532 103,773
RIS 20 - = -
BRI REM 5,453 3,220 = -
NG 703,730 934,275 697,573 930,839
RtHFE 8,888 13,097 8,858 13,065
BE 712,618 947,372 706,431 943,904
He . E—HE& 710,920 945,348 706,431 943,904
- 7424 28 - - -
BE=ME& 1,670 2,024 = -

A R EEE
Hep B (10,129) (10,209) (10,075) (10,188)
BB (6) - = -
E=MER (1,498) (1,806) = -
N (11,633) (12,015) (10,075) (10,188)

HEN 700,985 935,357 696,356 933,716
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(1) AR A REEEEE
KEH 20234

2023%E1H1H 10,209 = 1,806 12,015
R #EF5 .

ME=ZMBREBEE MR = 13 (13) -
il 45 = - 45
EFitEQ) (247) 6 - (241)
F s 4 El (51) (13) (299) (359)
SMBITEZER 173 - - 173
2023%12831H 10,129 6 1,498 11,633

20224

20224E1B1H 5,214 - 1,790 7,004
B R TS .

EIiTE() 4,451 - 25 4,476
F sk 4 El (52) - - (52)
B - - (11) (11
SMNRITEZER 596 - 2 598
20224E12831H 10,209 - 1,806 12,015
4T 20235

2023%FE1H1H 10,188 = = 10,188

EE g {C) (246) - - (246)

EEiEg | (40) = = (40)

SN EEZE 173 - - 173

2023%E12A31H 10,075 = = 10,075
20224

202241 B 1R 5,191 - 231 5,422
EHITE(Q) 4,452 - - 4,452
BHs s E (51) - - (51)
REHH - - (231) (231)
SMHITE ZR 596 - - 596
2022#12831R 10,188 - - 10,188

(o) M ETEOR/BOME FUREAXESHNEN. EMBREBIHE/BERNERRELES.
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9. ERMIRE - BB H

AEH T
| .NFRASIE 02512A31A | 208F12A3  2022612A01H
BUF X ABURIEHES 551,841 429,534 527,032 412,679
SRV GRS 9,381 6,797 8,231 5,987
AEMRS 222,894 162,708 215,801 151,622
=S 166 285 = -
ERIZ:3: 373,033 414,787 370,639 411,071
it 1,157,315 1,014,111 1,121,703 981,359
RiTH A 10,206 8,388 9,795 7,968
Ait 1,167,521 1,022,499 1,131,498 989,327
Hep B 1,167,504 1,022,466 1,131,498 989,327
1424 - - - -
BE=ZMER 17 33 = -

TFo023FEEK2022FEE, AEARATEHMGENRRESMBE A EHBHNETAEK.
(1) EfbEAUE RREESTH
A 20234

202318 1H 128 = 1,324 1,452
b 84 = = 84
EHiTE(Q) 59 = 10 69
Ak 4 Bl (35) - ®) (43)
2023%12831H 236 = 1,326 1,562
&M 20224

202241 B1H 17 - 1,034 1,151

B B 5575

NE—NBREBEE=MNE ©) - 9 -
iz 56 - - 56
EHITE(Q) 9 - 281 290
R (46) - - (46)
SNTITE Z 5 1 - - 1

2022#12831H 128 - 1,324 1,452
AT 20234

2023181 95 - - 95

i 79 - - 79

EHITE(Q) 59 - - 59

B HAs s E (12) = = (12

2023128318 221 = = 221
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1T 20224

2022¢£1 B 1R 76 - - 76
i 56 - - 56
EHitE(a) 8 - - 8
Bl (46) - - (46)
SRR ZE 1 - - 1

2022¢E 128 31H 95 - - 95

() EFITRIBOEEHRE SHRARESBNES . ANBEBIHR/BROERRELES.
10. &R 2T — HAMm TRIEH

AEHF Fixy
EATREAR 3,460 3,354 - 42
E sl iy 23 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
&it 5,460 5,354 2,000 2,042

AEABERHUNATERAFTHELEENUAANETEEETNITARBEARENSREA ™. ELEN, ZFNAE
IARARTITARMBEGARENAANELNBISHED LB HRAE.

T ARHARRAR 3

ZEEH AT
| comE2ASIA 202%12A31A  2020M2ASIH  2022512A31H
N F R B HIR T - - 552,003 549,583
WEKEMEE LW HRE 522 458 = -
it 522 458 552,003 549,583
W REREE - - (18,953) (18,953)
R 522 458 533,050 530,630

F20235F12831H R2022F12A31H, AEBANBKEMEELCUHNRALTRE. RTNFASINRERELEERTRLEL.
ATEETABRNERAER BAMEL. ARANKENSELUNRASHTREK,

12.EE & ™
AEEH K17
Fi&(a) 180,466 161,038 25,772 24,898
23H71H(a) (41,578) (33,776) (11,876) (10,810)
REAE () (6,268) (6,537) = -
& & 7 A TR 633 702 633 680

Hit 133,253 121,427 14,529 14,768
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(@) BIEH~RE. RIFIRRBEEESEITOT:

|
i
=]

RiE

2022£E12H31H 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 161,038
2023£E12H31H 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 180,466
Rit#rIA

20224E12H31H (8,624) (2,797) (3,623) (18,732) (33,776)
2023128310 (9,499) (3,143) (5,192) (23,744) (41,578)
BEAE

20224E12H31H (72) 17) (575) (5,873) (6,537)
2023%E12H31H (73) 17) (845) (5,333) (6,268)
KEME

20224E12H 311 14,202 774 30,697 75,052 120,725
20234128311 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 132,620

| -ﬁ-
-\
gi

BfE
20224128310 21,687 3,106 105 24,898
2023128310 22,472 3,198 102 25,772
Fit# A
20224128311 (8,220) (2,496) (94) (10,810)
2023128312 (9,092) (2,692) (92) (11,876)
WEHHE
20224128312 13,467 610 11 14,088
2023%F12831H 13,380 506 10 13,896
13. k&=

EREFHFRE. BIMHEDETITOT:

|
i
=

RE

20224E12H31H 1,289 2,269 3,558
20232125310 1,238 2,695 3,933
Rt HisH

20224E12H31H (390) (1,472) (1,862)
2023128318 (404) (1,642) (2,046)
KEME

20224 12F31H 899 797 1,696
20234128311 834 1,053 1,887

FIRPEEHEIR () 21-36 1-10
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T
o seeRAR R &b
RE
20224£125 315 930 1,992 2,922
20232125315 930 2,361 3,291
Rt
20224E 12831 H (296) (1,258) (1,554)
20232125315 (319) (1,386) (1,705)
W N E
20224E12H 315 634 734 1,368
2023%E12H 318 611 975 1,586
FIRPESHERR (£) 21-36 1-10
14. 5%

‘
i
M

THE R A 1,247 1,246
B EAEE (534) (534)
WEMNE 713 712

AREEAFAOTHE LT, AT EREY ST ERSHOTRKALRTN, ARARBUTHEKEF AT
WIRE AT TN, TR PRI Rk 5 4R 6 A 4 0 R

F20234 12310, AREAMBEFERE. RESTHARTS.3HLT (20224128318 . ARF53425T).
15. B IE AT 1SR 57 R S fiR

&R Fixy
B RRA 192,263 174,366 172,582 158,311
BEFEH AR (6,589) (8,136) = -
N 185,674 166,230 172,582 158,311

(1) BEMEHHIEHNERIROT:

2023%1H1R 166,230 158,311
TR (HEE/N. 45) 21,777 16,592
TTAHfhLR &l (FHE/\. 30) (2,329) (2,321)
Hity (4) -
20234128 31H 185,674 172,582
20221811 129,853 121,800
TEANIRE (FHEN, 45) 36,783 36,812
TEAH LR &S (HHE/\. 30) 678 785
Hith (1,084) (1,086)

2022128 31H 166,230 158,311
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(2) EARATHLSBERT SR AT RA GRS EERITHT:

AER 2023412H31H 2022412 H31H
BIEFTEH R

BREREES 712,529 178,132 628,362 157,090
SRIERANANMEL 49,012 12,253 60,542 15,219
it R 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,779
HAth 3,198 807 2,237 470
NIt 784,654 196,171 714,259 178,558
BRIEFTSH R

SRERAANMEES (37,302) (9,325) (42,934) (10,733)
Hith (6,921) (1,172) (8,729) (1,595)
It (44,223) (10,497) (51,663) (12,328)
R 740,431 185,674 662,596 166,230
1T

BIEFEH R

HEREES 675,199 168,800 606,617 151,654
SRR LAANEE 8,037 2,009 18,399 4,600
it fa R 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,780
NIt 703,151 175,788 648,134 162,034
BRI TSR SR

SRR LAANEE (12,824) (3,206) (14,892) (3,723)
R 690,327 172,582 633,242 158,311

RER B AT TR AR B EEAGRBINE TG
16. Hfth 33 7

ZREH AT
| comERAIIA 202%12A31A | 202BF1RASIE  202512A31H
SR REINASE/SI 13,815 11,889 300 307
ISave Ny 7,933 7,824 7,859 7,786
BR M B~ 1,954 1,876 = -
i A = 1,145 991 885 842
KHAFHER 1,080 859 251 266
EHEXHEEENS 147 260 = -
Hith 13,228 13,050 3,344 4,771
it 39,302 36,749 12,639 13,972
BRI EAEE
He IH 8 (107) (15) (82) -
Hith (2,267) (1,975) (107) (21)
it (2,374) (1,990) (189) (21)
#ER 36,928 34,759 12,450 13,951
17.E )k K HAth & B LA 77 BRI
ZREH AT
| .xF2A3IE 202F12A31A | 202BF12A3IE  20212A31H
BRHMET 2,430,145 2,472,383 2,430,145 2,472,383
BERIERTESRNS 44,845 31,552 46,860 33,678
BSNH MR TT 28,876 29,854 28,876 29,854
FANERIT SRS 687 103 8,522 7,701
INF 2,504,553 2,533,892 2,514,403 2,543,616
RHFIB 1,797 2,182 1,983 2,230

&1t 2,506,350 2,536,074 2,516,386 2,645,846
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18.[E B AT E Ath & B A4 fE =X

AEH T
| ;m3%12A31A 202512A01H  2020F12A31A  2022612A31H
RAEMRTRIERTSAIEER 566,003 485,154 349,539 295,235
BN MRITRIFRTESRIBERK 70,666 55,733 827 2,959
SMNEBUF AR 29,443 28,941 29,443 28,941
INF 666,112 569,828 379,809 327,135
RitH 8 7,839 3,034 6,171 1,877
it 673,951 572,862 385,980 329,012

AEFARTEBUFNE th SR (BN 5 BRI A DE+—. SIERY PIREE.

19.3FNEE
AEH AT
RRAEMBITHRA 19,609 14,161 4,000 -
BN MERITIRAN 23,304 24,471 23,304 24,471
it 42,913 38,632 27,304 24,471
NiTFIE 352 237 313 218
&it 43,265 38,869 27,617 24,689
20.x S SRR

Fo0236 12431 H K2022412A31H, ARAX B U SO KT BN RRAENO KB REFROERK.
21.32 H [ M & b 3 7= 5K

Fis 3 T

ZBHRMIIT

&% 17,039 14,937 1,125 -
BNz - 430 = -
N 17,039 15,367 1,125 -
NIHFS 51 25 7 -
&it 17,090 15,392 1,132 -

AEABTFERHEML S HIRRIRMERE+—. SEERYPRE.
22. IR UG TFFK

ZEEH T
| 2;m3%12A31A 202612A01H | 2020%12A3NH  202%12A31H
1 SEERTFERR 647,531 949,186 758,433 1,052,467
A EEIFRK 104,916 110,442 147,664 128,911
A RIESFR 1,938 1,426 1,938 1,426
KA1 EH TS 106,253 104,665 106,253 104,665
it 860,638 1,165,719 1,014,288 1,287,469
NItHE 2,616 2,005 3,124 2,175
&1t 863,254 1,167,724 1,017,412 1,289,644

AEARTREFHRZ S MREIRMERNT+—. SERYPIKE.
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23. Bz FER T#r A

IR EEH]

20234

TR & EIEFMIG 1,515 5,960 (5,688) 1,787
BR T 3@ # %% - 211 (211) =
BIARIEF 1,005 (110) (58) 837
HERE FHRIFTRE 6 1,393 (1,358) 41
FEBEAR 1 424 (424) 1
TSK{HMRILEELE 825 253 (117) 961
Hith - 36 (36) =
Ait 3,352 8,167 (7,892) 3,627
20224F

TH. e RIEMAE 1,282 5,793 (5,560) 1,515
IR ta# % - 241 (241) -
BIRIEFI 1,044 5 (44) 1,005
HSRE 5 R AN TARE 242 1,245 (1,481) 6
FEEAR 1 393 (393) 1
ISEHBMRILER 700 248 (123) 825
Hith 1 27 (28) -
&1t 3,270 7,952 (7,870) 3,352
T 20234

TR e ZIEFIE 916 4,935 (4,735) 1,116
RItaF % - 181 (181) -
BRIREFI 987 (111) (42) 834
HEREREIPTRE (12) 1,194 (1,155) 27
FEELARE 1 372 (372) 1
ISEBMNRIHELR 713 218 (99) 832
Hith - 32 (32) =
&t 2,605 6,821 (6,616) 2,810
20224

IR e NG 786 4,768 (4,638) 916
RIAEF % - 201 (201) -
BATEF 1,042 (14) (41) 987
HRRE /R TR 184 1,071 (1,267) (12)
FERARE 1 345 (345) 1

ISE{HBMRILELR 606 211 (104) 713
Hith - 25 (25) -
&it 2,619 6,607 (6,621) 2,605

F2023%F 128318 &2022512H31H ,

AEALANARIHMAT T IH LB TR EROREA,
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24. FIR R

‘
i
=

SR 43,434 38,913 (56,486) 25,861
BER 11,050 34,742 (34,583) 11,209
KRNRYEMB & 82 888 (891) 79
Hith 1,299 4,907 (4,964) 1,242
&1t 55,865 79,450 (96,924) 38,391
Pixy
SR 42,104 26,728 (44,144) 24,688
BER 10,683 32,810 (32,653) 10,840
KRINRYEMB & 69 697 (701) 65
Hith 1,144 4,461 (4,413) 1,192
&1t 54,000 64,696 (81,911) 36,785
25.%iit faf&
AEH by
GEEOKIE (1) 19,909 23,090 19,909 23,091
MR (1) 250 271 6 27
BRHFERNEIMESIRIE 574 638 574 638
&it 20,733 23,999 20,489 23,756
(1) BFRERMEBRAETE
A EEH 20234
2023415 1H 7,880 15,237 244 23,361
5.
MNE—MBEBRELE_NER (956) 956 = =
MNEZMBEBESE—NER 2,763 (2,763) = =
FHITE() (1,946) 4,093 = 2,147
g 2,841 = = 2,841
B #Ask 4% [E (3,087) (5,197) = (8,284)
NFECE= 1] 10 84 = 94
20234 12831H 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
AEEH 20224

20224E1B1H 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
%75,

ME—MBREBEE MR (5,079) 5,079 - -
MEZMREBEE—NER 879 (879) - -
EFtEQ) 6,910 4,175 - 11,085
iz 3,008 - - 3,008
EEE =] (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
SMHHTEZER 31 532 - 563

2022127 31H 7,880 15,237 244 23,361
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&1T 20234

202341818 7,881 15,237 = 23,118
2

MNE—MREBEE MR (956) 956 = =
MNE_MBREBEE—NER 2,763 (2,763) = =
EFITE(Q) (1,946) 4,093 = 2,147
g 2,841 = = 2,841
E|#As4[E (3,087) (5,197) = (8,284)
SNTITEZER 9 84 - 93
20234128 31H 7,505 12,410 = 19,915
4T 20224

2022415 1H 4176 12,930 - 17,106
®.

MNE—MREBEE MR (5,079) 5,079 - -
MNEZMBREBEE MR 879 (879) - -
EEFITE() 6,754 4,175 - 10,929
i 3,008 - - 3,008
F) HAsk 4% [m] (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
SN EZER 31 532 - 563
20224128 31H 7,881 15,237 — 23,118

() BRERAESHMNENERLMBAME SARIXNER. ATRRRKERYSEREAREEEEMKLEFEHREE. T
SERFEABRERMESEREE MR FZMR. F=NRZEAXEEY . DEARSBREA A& NITEEMEIPBNESD
FEANTUREBRA Z 8 MR,

26. BER{TIRFIES

AEH AT
| 8%12A31A 202512A01H | 2020%12A3IH  202%12A31H
KA & BR RS (1) 12,301,027 11,730,446 12,261,614 11,688,618
R AR B S 2 30,010 30,010 30,010 30,010
R ZREARGR (3) 154,692 134,665 149,776 129,837
It 12,485,729 11,895,121 12,441,400 11,848,465
RitF 2 238,568 230,835 238,104 230,487
A1t 12,724,297 12,125,956 12,679,504 12,078,952

F2023F12831H 20225128318, ARFARAFTEATHRSIEFZEHIEREAS . F EHEEFMAENER.
(1) Mt &pEE

RERARAELT 2023%12H31H
o meER HBEER O EEAE% RE
BAXTART &GS 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
BARXTARTEIRS 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.69-4.27 926,084
BINETART£RGSHE 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4.50 14,490
BINRITING @RS 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 64,678
AATR 4 & B iR RE 12,261,614
FRERIRITHIIND Z 2014-2023 2024-2027 1.38-5.77 25,673
FRAIARARITHAR M HRE 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
FRIAEIRITHARTEE 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
B RERNEEHENAERARTHRS (2,842)

AERRFEMEFRT 12,301,027
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20224 12H31H
o wti®R HmER REAE% #E
BERNATART SR HRE 2002-2022 2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749
BRNEXITARTEM S 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1,063,885
RRARTHIT&mES 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
BINRTART&RKGHE 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
BIMNRITHINT SRS 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
AT ERRSE R 11,688,618
FRABFEINKITHISNG R B 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
FARENEITHART GRS 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
FRAEFIRITHARTRE 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
- ERANEHENAEARTHRS (4,693)
A& H R &R RF R 11,730,446

(2) B RFHESE

AEAREIT 2023%12H31H
AERARATREALXTART AR RS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010
2022412 H31H

AEARKTREAXFTART AR GRS 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

ROTRTOREEHIM A AT ATRIBEENER. EAERRBHERTRTERERRF . fGHENEANRESTE,
(3) BIff ZHFmALR

ER R AT 2023412H31H

AFERNETART ZRALGE 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,776

FRABBIIRITERZRRAEMR 2020 2030 2.88 4,916

AEARTZREARRAIT 154,692
2022412H31H

AFTFERNLTART ZREAR 2018-2022 2028-2037 2.85-4.45 129,837

FATEIRITERZRRAEMR 2020 2030 2.88 4,828

AEART_REALARAETT 134,665

REFADHT20206F . 2022F M2023F 177 ZRFAGE AR EHN XGRS, ASNERSHMEEERLARAERRERTT
XHPAENREZFANERLT, AEAANERETARGSFRERIBENNITSFEFENRE—B, BEAE—RXERI SR
BeEZE GRS . MARATTEREN, BEHNRERFFE.,

ERBHEREE_RAATAEMRCHE, SREXOTXHEFATHEERRKEEN, AEATNBERRENASETLIRIC,
FfT RN RRE AT BT B,

27 K fifix

AEH AT
| comEIA3IA 202%12A31A | 202BFASIE  2022512A31H
R B R ERNEHME S 19,676 23,721 19,676 23,721
HEAR 10,357 6,501 864 936
TR 9,277 10,116 4,234 4,467
ARRIES 6,906 7,242 = -

H#iEEES 2,689 2,344 =

RIELIEHK 1,439 71 = -
N EFERETEEMITEERR 7,505 9,328 = -
Ht 8,504 9,104 6,557 6,966

&it 66,353 68,427 31,331 36,090
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20234 2022412 831H
T BLED 153,908 36.54
C&AF 146,092 34.68
BIEMERFEEERRTLAE 114,537 27.19
2EMHSREESEES 6,711 1.59
&1t 421,248 100.00
2023 R2022FEE, AT RKEBRATR SR E LT,
29. (A NTR
AEH 20234 20224
BEA I 182,650 = = 182,650
&1T 20234 20224
BEA AN 182,195 = = 182,195
30.Hftz S =

(1) MiARPEMESWHRELZE:

FRESXHRANEMEAKE

EMTERER ST ARSER~HNED 118 22 118 22
Hitbam TERAAANEL (88) (119) 4 489
R g RS (12) 3 (12) 3
Nt 18 (94) 110 514
RENXFRBENHEMEERE
HthFEIER A AN EES 9,160 (3,620) 8,893 (3,252)
B BT AR SIS YR ARR 276 7 218 30
HFRRAGERREES 110 300 126 18
SMHIRFTEZR 1,416 4,509 147 237
Hib (285) 1,544 (1) 14
R BrSELsm (2,317) 675 (2,309) 782
Nt 8,360 3,401 7,074 (2,171)
&it 8,378 3,307 7,184 (1,657)

(2) AFERERPHEMEE YR :

I EH

20224E1A1H (77) (20,518) 8,267 704 (3,076) (288) (14,988)
REEHED 22 (618) (2,623) 164 4,204 741 1,890
20224E12831H (55) (21,136) 5,644 868 1,128 453 (13,098)
REER T 118 (57) 7,048 85 1,359 (195) 8,358
2023%12831H 63 (21,193) 12,692 953 2,487 258 (4,740)

(1) FEERALREEHNERRS.
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202241 A1H (77) (36) 3,538 76 (26) © 3,473
PN i) 22 (10) (2,417) (5) 237 14 (2,159)
2022¢£12 4318 (55) (46) 1,121 71 211 12 1,314
KRR AT 118 35 6,833 95 147 ) 7,227
202341283180 63 1) 7,954 166 358 11 8,541

M.BRAR
RIEERMGAEEEENT, ATARBLVS AN TH2FEIERI0%ENEERE AR, ¥ATEERRAREIM AT
KA REE50%E  TUFBRN, QES2MA, KTEROEERSARTATFHRIATHN S RN ER M ATIIRAAR, #1
SKARE, IBENEERRARTBLFATLREAN%, B, ATEEELHARREZRLR AR,

32. —fRRLRE e

&R AT
A17(1) 272,496 255,123 272,496 255,123
FaE2) 5,882 5,302 = -
&3t 278,378 260,425 272,496 255,123

(1) ATERMBEC RO VEESITREENENM£[2012]205) WAE, ERBAFRELASNEM L BT —RAKAES
P RABRANRAT i ARIR B B9 5 KBS B 48 X BB FE T B4R K L SR — AR RS R A IR T MBS = S R R A9 1.6%.

(@) BEXEEAE AT FARERDEFEHRR—ESTIEA—RNKEAEE.

33. R 4B A
AEH AT
e zmE | 2E 2f
FHRE 513,776 465,883 407,898 369,850
V3B FEAS A ERNEFE 85,283 82,728 73,807 72,718
W RBUEEREAT() (7,381) (7,272) (7,381) (7,272)
REEERELAREQ) (7,271) (6,419) (7,271) (6,419)
RN — R XUBG E # (2) (i) (17,953) (1,914) (17,373) (1,741)
BEFI 43 BL (2) (iii) (20,683) (19,740) (20,683) (19,740)
Hith (43) 510 (43) 502
FRRH 545,728 513,776 428,954 407,898

(1) 2023 FEFIEHER
AFTIM2023FE R AR, REBUAER R ARARM73.81{Z 1T N20234F B, 2023 HFEH A A REFEESHE.

(2) 2022 EFIEHER
EFEELT2023F12A 26 B AR TT2022F EFENBE T RMOT

() REEEREARARM72.71{Z7T,
(i) RE—M XS ART173.73127T.
(i) A EIMEBF AR T206.83127T. LLFIES BT N2023F &,

F20235F 128310, BrE F2022F 4 FERMANZEERRATRARM72. 72 TEITT N2022F EW iRz, ERFIESEE
TTA2023FEM SkEk, LRASHRFELTREL .

(8) F2023F12831H KX2022F12A31H, AEBA RS RFBEFHEEFLAIRBRABATZENRBEAREIUTIART
105.581Z 7t R AR M85.291Z7T.
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4.0 BB AR A
REE D BBRETIRIOT

EFemMARIELS 10,367 10,252
EREmBERRNAERAT 13,273 12,205
EFESROERAE 3,349 3,298
Ait 26,989 25,755
35.F 2 iHIN
AEH AT
L e e 2028E 202
F BN
R GEFR AR 555,443 553,119 529,796 534,625
RETRERD) 59,864 60,841 58,732 59,962
FHAESREINBRE LA~ 23,301 17,185 23,500 17,228
B RBITREFRE LR 3,432 2,134 2,067 1,518
Hity - 1 = -
INF 642,040 633,280 614,095 613,333
FIEXH
ERTTHRFIESH (387,149) (376,594) (385,534) (375,017)
5 Ml R LAt S BRATL A 7 BRI (61,634) (65,531) (62,053) (65,657)
R U 73K (10,135) (7,804) (11,486) (8,463)
15) B A0 EL b BRATL A 155K (21,171) (11,915) (12,377) (6,317)
Hith (1,638) (1,126) (972) (701)
NIt (481,727) (462,970) (472,422) (455,155)
F 25BN 160,313 170,310 141,673 158,178
(1) REIEKRFBWABRBHEDIRE | EMAGEHRE T BB
36.FEHRAEFBN
AEH AT
L s e 20mE o
FHEHARAEBA
2R S EIRR S % 565 906 509 674
R HE B 228 280 228 280
BV S (18) 83 (18) 83
5] 714 18 2% 196 535 5 3
Hith 479 606 120 172
it 1,450 2,410 844 1,212
FEHERBEIH (920) (906) (680) (601)
FEERBEEBAN 530 1,504 164 611
378 B
AEH ¥y
L mmE oo 20mE o
TH MR 27,873 21,526 6,336 7,683
TTESRMIA 2,356 149 2,279 145
RV H (186) 32 - -
H g & (61) 159 (218) 29
Hihiza TEER 167 129 1 2
KEARANIR H 69 573 12,017 7,863
Hith (1,300) (851) (1,294) (810)
Ait 28,918 21,717 19,121 14,912
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38. AR MEL FIRT

AEH T
THMEITE (4,031) (11,993) (2,632) (9,836)
TTHESRIA (210) (395) (242) (408)
R GE RN IR (886) (1,796) (886) (1,796)
At (5,127) (14,184) (3,760) (12,040)
39. L
LCHBZTEGFIINMEIMHRFMAGRITESENRE, MEINCETESm TR~ £ MNRE.
40. E Atk g N
AEH Fiy
[N 12,386 12,490 131 101
Hith 3,034 1618 176 34
&1t 15,420 14,108 307 135
41. 5 & B Bt hn
AEH Py
WP B R 2,439 2,203 2,311 2,110
BE MM 1,743 1,612 1,651 1,545
Hith 507 606 443 433
&t 4,689 4,421 4,405 4,088
R2EFREERE
AEH &7
RI#%HA 8,285 7,974 6,939 6,629
He TH. & EEFAIG 5,960 5,793 4,935 4,768
Vv&#EA 3,231 2,918 2,597 2,250
718 055 2% A 1,985 2,172 1,756 2,006
&it 13,501 13,064 11,292 10,885
VR PEREEGES
AEH pixy
R GE RN IR 83,137 104,284 70,493 102,138
R R (555) 4,424 (286) 4,401
H b AR % 110 300 126 18
GERRRIE (3,179) 6,172 (3,181) 6,172
M &BRER (23) (4) (22) (160)
Hith 599 250 427 (108)
At 80,089 115,426 67,557 112,461
44 E At &5 R A
&M 1T
ZEMEBERHIH 5,978 5,260 = -
Hith 1,467 1,190 = 1

&it 7,445 6,450 = 1
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45. A8 8% A
&R Py
LEAFF SR %A 36,737 49,590 26,728 43,291
% P15 i 2% (21,777) (36,783) (16,592) (36,812)
&it 14,960 12,807 10,136 6,479
AERARKTHRERERSSITFENBATROT.
ZAEH AT
FEBE 102,377 97,147 83,943 79,197
R ERME26%ITE M58 2 A 25,595 24,287 20,986 19,799
FATXRARER R = ERHF (106) 27 =
A ONEE A (12,617) (12,632) (12,664) (13,751)
RN TN E B M =R AT 10 26 544 = -
AN T AR H AR 2,062 581 1,814 431
rEREA 14,960 12,807 10,136 6,479
a6 ERERIMTER
(1) BEAERATALEEIUERE
A EH 1T
#FE 87,417 84,340 73,807 72,718
. ERRERSK 80,089 115,426 67,557 112,461
H = ER K 1,575 3,031 76 1
T I8 A 7,963 7,432 1,756 2,006
BEAETREIR (3,465) (848) (3,465) (848)
DEEER™. TR HEMKEE~HRE (455) (595) (142) -
NRMEENRE 5,127 14,184 3,760 12,040
EREFBN = E T BB IR 348,456 327,668 339,180 320,372
BHRMK/ (W) 11 (1,678) (11,800) (7,894)
TR (20,952) (50,158) (21,325) (45,254)
BIEFRERER (21,777) (36,783) (16,592) (36,812)
LB MR T B 97535 AR (414,430) (1,119,627) (425,683) (702,131)
ZEMRATE S (FD) HENE (264,209) 323,114 (274,800) 343,306
REFENTFENANSRE RN (194,650) (334,494) (267,671) 69,965
(2) IIRFRERERTHRERAEEMMERE:
REH 1T
FH R R R ITHE L FRI 168,680 141,569 187,161 179,386
BRGRFSHEABE=1AM.
EINBESRA = 476,884 404,707 476,884 404,707
btk 135,435 118,323 135,435 118,323
H G5 7,436 1,784 7,436 1,784
&it 788,435 666,383 806,916 704,200
A7 FEEM U EE RIS

(1) MNEIERMEM L ERK

AEART. REREENPANG I EENENUIAERAKRAREERESHLSRAE=TFERARNRINFERNGE
R AEARERERASEETUNEES. ATARANLRENUIFRENN, BIS5MXEHNZFT LMK, FAHE
NEZERMEMUETENRNNZWETEREIR, B AREEAN L REBUEEFERS.

F2023F12R31H, ERMANGIERMEMUEFNA AR AART125.19(27T (2022F12F31H : AR 146.00127T).
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(2) RMNGHEEMEBULERE

(a) AEALTT K2R EEMNEMULIHE

AEARLRIFERABNNENUIE, BRASIFIES. AFEETUNESS ARAFRMASEERS . AEHAX
RANBIEEMNERL T AL FREY SR EMIFTFIT.

TF2023F12A31H  AKFARERIMKREFOERUEENE MR AART,469.22{27T (20225£12H31H : AR ™ 1,626.68
Z7T), REFABRE T XLEME T EPMNEENEDART65.25(Z7T (20224128310 . ART84.91127T) . LRZ ST
RTAEANXEEMLEERNRAXGE MO,

(o) HE=ANBEETHEERNEWUETE
AEAFBEFDBE=ZTTVMRTRNEENEMLEENE, BINAZZMESRA -~ MEMENIRA. T2023F12331H, ¥F
ZERMABISEENEML TGRSR, TAFTRESHTHAR.

F2023FE 128318, AKRAFFEMINMETHEM U EENRERTMAART177.60127T (2022F12H31H . ARM200.4012
T P, FRGUSRBFIIROEELRANARMT76.39127T (20225125318 . ARM197.55125t) . THMGENIEESIR
IR RETMAANRT1.21{2T (20224128318 . ARM2.85{Z7T).

48. ERER R

AERAFAULFHEERATH, REHOED . 7@)FMOER . 409 A MHRE, RBARMNRMORERZEREERFTEE, D40
FIMT R B L EFIMARERHR~.

FT2023F12A31H. AKAMEEBERT TR SIHILS HFILERINHANERE“RENKEREAART.43ZT
(2022 12/ 31H: ARM1.48{Z7t) . REBIAARE T HREBLEEILF MRS IR, i HARLIEFIA,

F2023F12A31H, ARBALTHALE S NNEIULERAT TSR EHBINFHNERILERA =R,

. SEERE

AEFABISHERADBREHFTUSIINIFRERBNDE. DA ERRREAEANBEERMRE—BHTNHTIIR.
DEEZHE—RELZFREEERT. ABRZRULENSRTHHREE, FETEIBHLSRR T RBR,
AERATEZUAT WS EBHTIIR:

RITA 5

ZAMEIRBRAARTLS RTHEFLERASLS. AIRTLSERNERARK. FRRS. KBRS, BES5E5 8RS,
NEEERS CHRMNEERS  AERSERERBSE. RORFLSHANEFTLEIRASKE. A2V FSEREETTHRS.

SMCTHIAR S RETHR S REIMNCXZETERGEAFNREHE.

B AL B3l 55

AN EBBIFERAIR RN F .

eSS

ANEIEFEAEAEALHANREHAEVSREAERE NS,

EE %

APHBFBIEFNELLLE. BELVESRIESFRHE IS,
&R
20234
Fl BN 630,685 2,044 11,682 1,182 (3,553) 642,040
FIE S H (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,555 (481,727)
FI BN EET 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
Bt B ERNFET 158,274 205 1,510 324 = 160,313

S EBEF SN #ET 151 (18) (233) 98 2 =
FEHEBRMLEBRAN 164 150 (86) 272 30 530
R 3G F L5 R FRN 138 151 (25) 266 = 530
7 BB1E] F £ R F RN 26 (1) (61) 6 30 =

Hitng logN/ (X ) 26,399 8,173 15,021 261 (1,039) 48,815
Bl X (95,630) (376) (10,755) (488) (50) (107,299)
B SN %R 19 = (5) 4 = 18
FiERE 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 (1,057) 102,377
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I EH

2023#12H31H

T ERR = 17,998,894 236,084 407,672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259
KROBEH™ 192,263
BRE™ 18,654,522
S E TR 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119,869) 16,968,203
RAEC R 6,589
Bk 16,974,792
Hith.
HIRFIRESH 1,756 142 6,098 55 (88) 7,963
BARM I H 1,297 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
ERARERSK 79,644 (407) 744 (66) 174 80,089
HAbF =B ER K 76 - 1,499 - - 1,575
(e ¥ 3,626,788 244 - - (17,432) 3,609,600
20224
Fl BN 623,239 766 10,758 1,128 (2,611) 633,280
FlEXH (454,946) (1,903) (8,207) (531) 2,617 (462,970)
F BN EER 168,293 (1,137) 2,551 597 6 170,310
B X GFERNRE 167,271 (64) 2,726 377 - 170,310
5 BB IE] 7B KN 5 BT 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 6 -
FEFRMLEBN 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
B I ZFLEH#HRMFEHEN 559 592 (10) 363 - 1,604
5885 F 4 # RN E F N 50 - (41) 10 (19) -
HAE WA 47,413 6,042 14,296 676 (711) 67,716
Bl X (128,631) (724) (11,836) (1,098) (103) (142,392)
ERIRIN SR R 1 2 2 ) 7 - 9
F3E B E 87,686 4,775 4,958 555 (827) 97,147
2022412H31H
ERR 17,651,016 226,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
ROEE 174,366
BB 18,243,083
HEB IR 16,322,299 62,195 318,893 28,126 (102,147) 16,629,366
ROE R 8136
B 16,637,502
Hit:
HrinFEsE 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7,432
RAE S 647 315 14,059 9 - 15,030
ERRERK 113,425 4 1,227 548 222 115,426
HME = RERK 1 - 3,030 - - 3,031

EREE 3,737,608 244 — — (9,000) 3,728,852
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T. XEAXRERRZS

1. MEBER
MBEHEE S BRAAMRIEI]. F20234 128318, MEE54 41736 54%K BN (2022412 A31H . 36.54%),

AEASWBEMHTHEFLSXFRETHILERET, TREFELAATIMIRLILVEBLTHERS. THAS fRE
H. ZFXZHMERERNOT .

EREAEH 54,987 56,248
Fi 2 X [a] (%) 1.65-4.42 1.99-4.42

Fl BN 1,736 2,137
BRIk 34 74
2. iC&RT

CEATRHERAERFELAINERFAS  EMM AR EILE SFMBERHDARTS,282.0927T. LE£ATEEERIEN,
WERSBNAETRGEER, FTNEEMF W HELEED. TS ATRRPEBFMRETENATHORFFX %, F20234F12
B318 ., L&A SFFE A1734.68% M AN (20224125 31H . 34.68%),

FARAFAGRRE, AEABENLLATRTHRS IERARAEHRBNT -

THMEERE 634 1,706
H AR H 93,612 83,106
Fi R X 8] (%) 2.44-4.20 2.15-4.23

FI 2N 2,522 2,240
BRI 16 78

AEASLEATNREFHRAREFHNASHTHEE LSS BREBEH L FRET.

. BN RTERREELR
BB AT AARFEAT (U THR ERNLE) RBESINLCERREARIN— AHRFTAT ., SEEENHEMINA
BRI R B SRR A SREE RAEE (RAASHENTE . SEXARIIER T IARESEED).

F2023FE 128310, 1B A TIHFERIT27.19%HIBEAN (20224128311 . 27.19%),
AEASERWAIREEH EAREFNATHTHNEZE VSRS HEEH W ERIHET.

. 5FAAMES
AOTRFARERNEFEESTRAIXSGHIKENET =ET .

w

D

b
S

HE#ES 9,953 4,959
PTH SR = = 1
RN GER AR 44,831 41,406
Hth# ™ 20 22
R

& Mk & At BRATLAD F AR IR 10,037 9,771
FTHE SRR - 15
R U 77 3% 154,158 121,920
EXRTHEFILES 2,902 4,569
HAth it 9 6

T2023F12A31H . 57 AR RHRERITTHARRHRIBRFFAHART174.32127T (2022128310 . ART90.001Z7T).
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AOFERNEFEESTRASNRETRIROT .

U ON 1,853 1,816
FIE (1,864) (1,003)
FEHRALEAN 51 60
FHHERFELIH (5) (10)
[l e 12,018 7,863

AOE5FREAZENZFIZB—RFWERMES L SEFHTT.

5. SREMGEQRANZS
AEASHENAEATZBHXPU—BX BN D EN BT, RER T U KKHET, FLOBER022F, KEEKSHER
BEANRETRAXBTRS . EROEEARET R

6. XEEEAR
XPEBARRIEHRI A BN ARAFNOAR. T023F R20226F, RERRMFMIN, KREASXRERA
RNXBETHAEA.

7. Rl EFEE

BRIE® B RSN, T2023F R2022F  AKRAR AT SATRIMF SN MRKEERKEKITIZ S .

tT—. REEFHRAKIE

1. EEBIRR
F20234 12310, ARRRAGHEEE TARFAER, AT ERRANLSEERLNBARALE BRI ARARKTH
MERRRBE MR EEABW,

2. FARMKIE
AEH AT
BEARMT
— AR 41,341 47,833 = -
- EEASRE 27,279 38,001 579 669
&1t 68,620 85,834 579 669

AERAMBEER=RARETENUWZHEEAEER~NRARMRE, T2023E12831H, A ER WX E B EE R~ HOR AN
FRIEST N ART267.001Z7T (20224128310 . ARM373.32{27T).

3. FhekiE

B
o
=
7
1

TEROR 3,603,476 3,716,738 3,620,909 3,725,739
FHRARBR 3,347 3,703 3,102 3,458
RITRFELCE 1,623 6,375 1,623 6,375
FHEAIE 1,154 2,036 1,154 2,036
&it 3,609,600 3,728,852 3,626,788 3,737,608

F2023%F 128310, RRARETRFEARIPHAE-—FEUNANNEIMAIARMTO01.47127T (2022F12F31H . ARM507.931Z7T) ,
HARHARERGSEZIHEE—FEME.

AL R IE
FH~RERE, WINETHRARH S AERMT.

&

‘
i
=]

BRAEEARSM 36,621 28,014

F2023ER2022FE12H31H, AEHAMR B ERBE I I —FEMUNA.
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5. 8R4
(1) fEHBRYIE
BERERE, RS E M R A~ RENMEN T .

AR EH

_ 2022412H31H
fR% 18,029 18,611
A FE - 500
AT

_ 2022412H31H
% 1,132 —

F2023F12A31H, RAEBAZ LR MERE =R AEHART170.39Z7T (20224128310 : ART153.67127), Af7L LA
ERIAFRAESHART1.25(Z7T (20225 12A31H : ). Fr A B ED AR F R B,

T2023F12R31H, ARABH LKA AMER. LEMLNES. GFENEFRATERNERAYKENESITIARD
2,247 4427t (20224128310 . AR 1,589.521278).

T2023F12R31H, AKFA M55 AT RE A MBI E RS H R WE N ED B 43271 TMART13.22127T
(20224£12831H . ARM20.01Z7T: ARM8.461Z7T).

(2) Kz AR
AEAEINBREV S PERTIESEAMEIRY, T2023F12331H K2022F 128310, AKRFA LW E A U B EHHF KM@
SMEIRAYIE S IRIRY)

T=. KNEEE

1. SRR & 12 SRR
AEANEETIERSHERNE AEACLEIRRNZ LSRN REAEGHTIRA. 2. KBRS, AZREES
R SHROEE FRUSOATEEMEIREERE. Bl AERAN BRI REFREMERO TS, FRTERDRE R
FN 55 GE B ERFIZ 0.

AEATBEURTAAPRNEEHENINFRESFEERA S, FERLEATHRROAMBERTRUKENE. ARAREE S
ARFENREERSREARBENRETDIRAATNEATRELIRTARGAMHGRS RURKRERSMRADIEMFE.

ARGEEERNEARTE ARAFRTHAMTESRTIAER S, BREDZH. BHAFXEHRMFIZHNE.

AEANNKEERBRRRET SLYMNERAIES FR, FBLTENRMNNES RGN R MRFAIRITER ., AR
BRSNS REAEHHEARGERRRINR G, RNRERRRTZ. = RHORML, HEIARERENRHTERNKEEE,
AEAEGN TR SRNEXEOE. SEARK. 775N R R0 1R,

2. [FRRE
AEFAMARNEANKERER ARG FHEALRNERATRTENBERIARE. FARKEEAERALSHARNKER
R, AL EEENEARKEREEEREE. GARNRIZESETERAS . NENFERNERENTEERS LS, RIERIA
Blan S IERERMRFORE L FER AR,

AEAZREENWRTORDBFEERAREERS Fa4ARALSHERITERTRGR SFFETE AR 11,
HiEkE. TERBRGEE. ZBERAZHERANTRER NEFRINE  BARENE A ERTETITHE A EYERMBR AR
BERIUE AITR. BN, AT RIEIFRAERSEE, £HE T BRTE. TRTER . B RITHEMTLITRENRE.

(1) ERARKHER

AEANBREFZFEFHEMRR. REFEFL. IRFEFZ. FEERITRTREESHTNER LSS REITIEAERE &
HEHEISEERRERE BARINAE TREE. FERl. AXEENREEEEREEE RS NRERNR, MRA
RERUBEBERLE #H#EREERFARREESTREEARALEANFEAREERKE.,

HAEANT T AL ENRFREMIAATEZSETH TR S E =N BER -0, WG E#HTRHE. R\LESERH
JRERMATER B (1)BFIRTEEES LI, QFFEENKETEZ2RRFLEERANTHAERLGONELTEZBZEH
KR,

BERAFSGAEATREANESN STHRASLZELS AEAZREFRAEELEAKINZSN T FEEBNESRE
KHE GESERMBERITRES. MERE FEAENNIEEERAGHEARREHESF IR MELEELENER
REE#HTERE. b, AEAIFFREFIINYSEREETNRARELS ALFAZ A BATMBTAEARBEE A AROTE
M FEBSERARE AR, B RS X b2 558 AR 5k 5518 S KBS 42 1 R i R BUR SR PR RIZ 15 AR .
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(2) mEEY

AEABET —RIERAREEFRNBRMER, SEERERARMRGIY . AEANEGFERAVNTEIHHER
REGERRREESE T HRERES FERTDMARMITILE

MR TR ANH R B R, FmkEN . St~ D HEAN NERIES . WS FRUENMEE. BRBERMBR Z MY
Htb S RATHIMAIRY BT AAXSHMIRE. BEELT. KUSH T AAARMEAIFNASIFMISHEMUS
MIES, fiF. ERMEMSEFEREER, T2023F12831AK2022F 1273310, ARAFENREA~STHFEKX,

() FERITL

AEAXARBE A EATRARRENZT SN FHEAMRITEER AEXNTRENNZZN FRXATEORIBITFRIRE, E5
ABRFERER (B0 ERAEERATITLD %) BEANTRIRE ERERAMBEEEANTEL. IS, TOEERER
R EEA R AT F AU T O 8RB E SRR E R E RANE AR,

(4) BHAERmEAITE
T UEREATEMNAANETEEETNTARMGERENGSTRESRAS . AR~ NRRFRKENYSERE
B AKRZA HAERRARE MR EAE. AEAHTSRA S TG BRERENIK K 777X D e S HEEE,

MFPATHEARRITENSH TR ARATHEXSRTIANGEANEEVEHINEREEREEM EA =ZNKR AE
REG BT EHREEE . WIAMEBERBRXK.

E—ME BVERIANEERRRREZBNNSRIR RANEIDAE MK,
FMER BVRFIAEEARREZZNNSRTIE EHREEAIEREFARENSRIR RENRYUDSHEZNR.
BB N TEREGFARENSRIR AR D AE=HEK.

F-EREMIARBRELYTZESRIARKRLPARTHEARANSTIHBERIES E-MBENE=MEREMITAZR
BETZEem T ABNFEPRATHERARENSTIIEHREES.

WASREE R EFEARENSRASRIEEVERIANDFEERRENSRA ™ LR~ 1RERE D BN FEANTH
fER%K%.

AERALSENERFTRAGERREITE, THREARANITETEAT EANERMRR. ILEERNRZSRRROE
MEFIEAMERANE R (Fl, BREANTEERBERE)  AEARES AN ZRETHEBRE T FE
AT A R, 81

- RUMERANEAE YD

- FHERRKITENSH RERMETRA

- AR R E BN H W AR

- BRAEGERBENHERE

- ATHEMITENEFER. EFERRANENXA
- BEREARERTERRBORKILS RN
KOMERRREEED

FEFAKEBLOREHAENM AT E. EHTOEAN, KRAZET ERALE FUEF ERHA% BROEBEERER.
HBREGEARKEDEND TR,

T ERRAIT BN R RMETTRA

REFEEANEEERERERMURREEREGEARE AEANFRNE DA U120 B ENFLANMBIERRKLITE

RBEEE. HHAEARKTENXRSHER/REAMRE . ZORKTMBEINIEH O . AR ZE TR EEERNAEBITRE

RAEM RFECVSIDENRER, ZRHLGEITEE (OXSHHFITE BERAXRREHYES . ERTREF) NEEN TR

BIEMER, BYBAME SAMERRBANGHAEE,

HAREXMT

- BEAMXBERSAERRNOASEBNMHRESY DERTEEMXNSHTEN. ARANSAMRURIITRIZE
GRNBUMHATHEE MATERES MRREFTEAEFHETHRS AN RBEAME,

- BARIXZEAKANBANKEEERXEREREHHOTES, REZXZNFHORE BROTIMLER MEERRHN
AR, BARIEBERAE. BAREENBAREN NG HARENE DL

- EBEANKRHARE EFAREN, REANEESHSH.

AEAXAABERTARREN TN FHEABRITEER, ENFRALINNOZHNFRXATEHABMITRETR, ERKH

ENRENERARBERREEHRANTRREY, AEAEHERFECTHAEARKITERXNRER SREHRTHE

APERIBROMENTNERL.

T2023F K. it BAH X BBRERREERNL K.
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15 RS B & B0 a9 $I B iR &
AERAEBNAFARRAFEEXSHRIANCEHANKREVRRIAGESE EZEMN., KERHTERA~NRKH BN
ENEERREGANEESHUNEETUNEMSGERERENGELS SENEMEE. ARAMNERSR T ANEM Bidtt
BReEMTAGAARATMGRARESANKR SEMEFIABREBANRE MHELHR TATMITFEHRNEEFARKHNE L
155,

AEABSEETE. EMMEMHHSRTENGEANKEMBERINGEAREBREEMN, HNMFEFECRFRSASTOME
MEL FEANESENTEUNREMRBEANKEZEMNER. TANSHRTANGANK BVERIAEEEEEGING,
AERAXREFEVSITENX T ELBEORM A EAREEEENNBRE UREREELHRTIEEHENEETREEAR
B AERAREZEMTIENEANKEVNHEFIANGEFABSEEN. IRSHTEEFRRNSIANE, ERATEERHRNEFRRE
HENRBEEGRNSANS BEBAXSHNAEEKBPRERNLFMNE N FHENAFTMFERE IhzemTEHENAE
BREERNE,

B X EEARENHWNIRE

EHEREREEARENR, AEARXANAEIE SATHNEXSHIENEANEEEERRE X BNEZEEE.
EMIEIR. FEAFERSEARBERECARBER, TEXENTRE.

- ROFRESAREETAMESEMRE,

- REASBRER. MECHESASFARGHRALNAEANTEAAS. 2R, FERRENA S HFEEHBILIORX,

- BNAETFERSAMESEREANEFAEREE, A TFHRSAETATEMIBER TEHBASMEMNILD,

- BREARTEHSHHATHMERSESR.

- KRGS AMSERSEIZESRASNERTTEL.

- RIEFNMEISRE —TS A~ 2Rk T ZEERRKNESL,

SRR REGEARE BUERS N EHNERERRE. RO EMIRFINSEFAK.

BTFREMITENZFIER. 2FEERENENRA
FEARKEZEINITERTESERRANITENSREEEE. AEABSHTHLEES ., RAHZ & EKEEH
R RFEE B RANERE TG, WENLFESEH DUV EREK. BERSSEHE. XEZFIERT HE AR R LNHR
KEZNEH AP LSEEEGHRAR. REASEEZEBRIIMNIBEFRIT/THEXLELFRIRESFAMEBNTAREER >
B Ay KR, ALK T A IX L L FEARE T IEETON , FRERRNREGT. FEHRNTEER.
RERAZEEGRITHANERKHERIN. BEAREUBSE THLFHINEEANE., AEANSMERLFMNSHERTHELENE
BAEERETRREFENRIAFNEUEENTEES. FEATHHHBET FAABESNNE, FAEAFANEMZENES T
Hthips ., RERAMMRAI2ANBHAEBRE (F—0E) NN BENFESTMBEARE (FHBRERE=ZNR)iT&
HENREES ., ERMBEARK2BEBIFN—RITEMNERMH N RERINNEF.

TG ARAK RSO UM E R EE BTN, TUSBRRFIANAHEBREOMN ST RS TRRXBELE
BEETESHMNER, TR023EE, AEAZER T ARAMNENELFBEEXNEFLBEENTW, WEWEFIEFRHTEEMETUN.
Her BFEITTREGEARKNE R £ 7~ B {E(GDP) HEE LG K RE2024FE M P M IE R THUNSEEE 4.57%-4.78%,

BB F B 2555 S T5%10%, AEFT2023F 12831 BiHE N R EE S LT LAl A Bid5%,
BEBEENEXEE WS
EENERSBEMITHNEETR 22— BRERVBERONELMI0%, MEABEHONERD10%, HAHFEREEWERHNEL
10%, MEREBFEANER D 10%, KEFT2023F12A31HIHRAREES ST IHIBERBITS%,

EZM BRI KRR R LRI

AEAESMNNEN ST SEX4EGERARERFHEANARSHASAN HEB—ENMUERNAEME KEBE~ KR KN
£RANNIE.
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(5) A& B BIRY o H it 5 A 1SR 3E e A S K15 L XURE: it O
FHREAGRRE RAERREHRANGERNT.
AR EH AT

| 208%12H31H  2022%12H31H | 2023%12H31H  2022%12F31H
FRNIRE
B HRBITRI 98,364 113,857 97,821 113,311
FRUE A FRIRT 143,422 113,326 140,421 146,482
HHES 544,247 471,537 554,200 476,496
PTEERAE~ 3,569 11,093 2,893 10,269
EINBESRE > 477,525 404,823 477,456 404,823
RIXGEFR MR 14,244,743 13,899,107 13,756,973 13,391,556
oM EE 731,493 756,510 659,023 680,068
R B 700,985 935,357 696,356 933,716
H AR 1,167,521 1,022,499 1,131,498 989,327
Hith 8,536 11,571 4,719 5,238
NG 18,120,405 17,739,680 17,521,360 17,151,286
FIMNRE
BEROR A 3,603,476 3,716,738 3,620,909 3,725,739
FFHARE 3,347 3,703 3,102 3,458
RITRHICE 1,623 6,375 1,623 6,375
FFHEAIE 1,154 2,036 1,154 2,036
NG 3,609,600 3,728,852 3,626,788 3,737,608
it 21,730,005 21,468,532 21,148,148 20,888,894

LERDFIFIRT T2023F R2022F12R31 B, ARARAFTERAFERTHEBRRHA . BIRE BEM A FR AR HA
ERBRERNERANRBRA, TR~ REERNE . LR FERNEMOET R~ UERKEFET] T,

(6) EZRBMERRFK O

AEARBEFRMEZTNEBERARD D MARL". " FRE M SKE" HAR EEXANERRRKIRE, BAEN
FAREERRNEFEFANERUOEW. PR EERABSLEERARE. BINBERENELERE—EF MW, £E5F
THHEAREEAEMEMN. SRR EERABSEERITRAEE, AMEENINMIEZNHNELYTESHEAEA,
BANRRAK.

MNRETEEEN SR T AR HEMLAFRAHERRENED AT, RIEFHRE F-MERARIIATHERREL £
EE=ZMBEAKRBENFLARTIRERRE.

R FIER
ER%ER
A&
KRB 13,372,962 - - 13,372,962
RS - 1,325,842 - 1,325,842
=B - - 187,762 187,762
&it 13,372,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
B ERREES (238,554) (329,057) (128,634) (696,245)
HER 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321
T
RS 12,949,557 - - 12,949,557
R - 1,226,631 = 1,226,631
& Mk - - 185,902 185,902
&it 12,949,557 1,226,631 185,902 14,362,090
B ERREAE (230,177) (302,302) (127,060) (659,539)

#E 12,719,380 924,329 58,842 13,702,551
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ER%ER
AEH
KRB 12,892,388 - - 12,892,388
AR B - 1,344,107 - 1,344,107
S - - 233,718 233,718
&1t 12,892,388 1,344,107 233,718 14,470,213
e ERREES (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619,203)
#EN 12,682,980 1,089,432 78,598 13,851,010
4T
1M 12,402,611 - - 12,402,611
AR - 1,304,921 - 1,304,921
= KB - - 231,156 231,156
&it 12,402,611 1,304,921 231,156 13,938,688
e ERREEE (199,604) (242,949) (152,676) (595,229)
#ER 12,203,007 1,061,972 78,480 13,343,459
A& &
esgrRAGIE #-WB ®ThR s=mm &t
ERER
AEH
1R 710,920 = = 710,920
AR BS - 28 = 28
S - - 1,670 1,670
&it 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
S RAREES (10,129) (6) (1,498) (11,633)
#ER 700,791 22 172 700,985
4T
XU 706,431 = = 706,431
RS - - - -
= K - - - -
&it 706,431 = = 706,431
e ERREES (10,075) - - (10,075)
#ER 696,356 - = 696,356
e2ftABA HBR #TWR #=hR &b
ERE%
AEH
KRB 945,348 - - 945,348
oy - - - -
= A - - 2,024 2,024
At 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
W ERREEE (10,209) - (1,806) (12,015)
e 935,139 — 218 935,357
&7
1R AR 943,904 - - 943,904
KBS - - - -
= R - - - -
&it 943,904 - - 943,904
B ERREEE (10,188) - - (10,188)
P 933,716 - - 933,716




102 EIZRF445RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

H A A &
CwxsERANE #-B& $ThR s=me &t
ER%E%
AER
KRB 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
RS - - - -
B - - 17 17
A1t 1,167,504 = 17 1,167,521
ERRELES (236) - (1,326) (1,562)
4T
KRB 1,131,498 = = 1,131,498
RS - - - =
T%RL W - - _ -
&t 1,131,498 = = 1,131,498
ERRELE® (221) = = (221)
wxfRARE shR ®sThR #=mR &t
ERE%R
&M
L9 1,022,466 - - 1,022,466
RS - - - -
Sl - - 33 33
&it 1,022,466 - 33 1,022,499
ERREES (128) - (1,324) (1,452)
T
RRBE 989,327 - - 989,327
RS - - - -
(S8 - - - -
&t 989,327 - - 989,327
EAREES (95) - — (95)
B ARG

ERER

A EH

R 3,489,940 = = 3,489,940
by - 119,416 - 119,416
S8 - - 244 244
&1t 3,489,940 119,416 244 3,609,600
T

R 3,507,372 - - 3,507,372
RS - 119,416 - 119,416
= K - - - -

&It 3,607,372 119,416 = 3,626,788
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ERER
R
R 3,568,268 - - 3,568,268
KB - 160,340 - 160,340
= M - - 244 244
ait 3,568,268 160,340 244 3,728,852
AT
fERBS 3,577,268 - - 3,577,268
TR - 160,340 - 160,340
= R - - - -
&it 3,577,268 160,340 - 3,737,608
it fa i

amsAME [ #-WE #She =R &b
ERER
AR EE ]
92N s 7,505 - - 7,505
RS = 12,410 = 12,410
S - - 244 244
&it 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
1T
RS 7,505 - = 7,505
KB - 12,410 - 12,410
= R - - - -
&it 7,505 12,410 - 19,915

ERER

AREH

KRB 7,880 - - 7,880

AR - 15,237 - 15,237

=R - - 244 244

&it 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

&7

1R RBS 7,881 - - 7,881

RS - 15,237 - 15,237

= R - - - -

&it 7,881 15,237 - 23,118
EfR AN E A5 AIBLR

AEAZVNEREREEARENSRASNENERR BARRTHMBEBREA, KAREABRMBERERRETZBOXLER
MNTREER. EXEERRENSRAS NEABRKEABERITHENERKNEI =NOT .

AN EE ]

BREERABENE™

RN GER AR 187,762 (128,634) 59,128 30,352
AR 1,670 (1,498) 172 =
H AR HE 17 (1,326) 17 =
R 189,449 (131,458) 59,317 30,352
AT

BREERBENE™

RINGER AR 185,902 (127,060) 58,842 30,352

R 185,902 (127,060) 58,842 30,352
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IR EEH]
BREERBENR™
R GER AR 233,718 (155,120) 78,598 58,653
R B 2,024 (1,806) 218 -
H A AR E 33 (1,324) 33 -
R 235,775 (158,250) 78,849 58,653
T
BREERABENE™
R GER AR 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653
R 231,156 (152,676) 78,480 58,653

ERAHY A RNEST, NEFERNE —EXNRRMAERKNERARE O AR,

F2023%F 12310, ARBRATERY L EREENINERLKERETL,

(7) EHSEFRFIEER

AMRANERERESHERAATHREERARNSHHERLOT:
A EH

s aEsE sEME &b

2023%£12H31H
ERANK 497,271 1,531,358 2,384,665 4,413,294
TRIEEEER 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
HEHREERR 12,327 71,083 1,866,124 1,949,534
e 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7,280,732
At 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502
2022412H31H
AR 546,288 1,381,515 2,229,330 4,157,133
FRIEBER 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,095
HEARBERR 57,517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
BARTER 13,096 48,844 7,210,161 7,272,101
&3t 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924

T

2023412H31H

ERATNK 496,847 1,531,102 2,142,935 4,170,884
RIETER 78,947 234,696 882,979 1,196,622
HEHRBERR 12,149 46,930 1,681,785 1,740,864
FUREERR 6,719 34,521 7,232,352 7,273,592
&It 594,662 1,847,249 11,940,051 14,381,962
2022412H31H

AR 545,969 1,380,937 1,981,165 3,908,071
FRIEBER 110,217 241,503 765,477 1,117,197
HEAR TR 17,793 57,457 1,580,432 1,655,682
BHRTER 13,096 48,259 7,202,788 7,264,143

At 687,075 1,728,156 11,529,862 13,945,093
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ERERNEFIEEANTLAFERAT.

A EEHE 2023412831 20224£12H31H

Bz 2,815,160 19 2,629,214 18
A X B & 2,640,962 18 2,791,908 19
IKF) BB RIPFIA IR EIE 1,552,228 10 1,503,640 10
B R ERIKAE =R 1,529,245 10 1,436,376 10
W AHETIE 1,173,226 8 1,062,034 7
PRI 5 1,136,320 8 1,096,774 8
& e 1,084,370 7 1,015,403 7
A, AkFLT 554,406 4 570,021 4
Hitbizim 528,563 4 511,028 4
BE 312,282 2 281,996 2
P2 239,530 2 322,431 2
S ahl 161,892 1 149,456 1
BEMEME R ERRS L 72,632 1 75,979 1
HAith 1,103,686 6 1,028,664 7
At 14,904,502 100 14,474,924 100
T 2023%12H31H 2022412 H31H

i B E 2,784,320 20 2,602,595 19
WA XBIE 2,639,705 19 2,791,545 20
KA. BB RPN IR E IR 1,493,513 10 1,397,214 10
B BRREKEE Y 1,472,123 10 1,376,201 10
WHAHTRE 1,063,744 7 995,284 7
&z 968,502 7 927,462 7
& 1,042,145 7 983,843 7
Al AT 554,396 4 570,006 4
Hthizfm W 478,770 3 458,223 3
HE 311,832 2 281,996 2
KA 239,530 2 322,333 2
e 200,602 1 180,684 1
BEMEME R ERRS L 68,739 1 72,637 1
HAth 1,064,041 7 985,070 7
At 14,381,962 100 13,945,093 100

BAFRFEK

EUERREREEERARYSRAUBANURLTEZBRIRERERNELT . ARANATEERAETREERERNT
M EEERRNEERAMMERARTRESEST D IHRML A, XEERFTREERFEMER, T2023F1283318, K&H
BUARKESTAART2617.70{27x, RTEARK LT AART2,417.981Z 5T (2022F12A31H A KA AT AR M699.39

fz).
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(8) BRI

TRIFT AEARATEAREREREMER T %8I T OERITRIEHNERTRDERER.

‘
i
=]

BUF ROEBUR LA 655 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
EfFE(1) 467,873 - 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
NERE 330,701 1,053 8 192 = 2,605 334,559
SENBES 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 = = 62,357
AT RITRIER Y = & = = - - - 3,743 3,743
EHEIT i X H At 10 31 - - = 3,873 3,914
g = - - - - 335 335
B RS 180 8 = = = = 188
&it 936,982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065,884 10,556 2,055,940

|
i
=

BRERABRGGES 85,528 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1278210
EFE(1) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
AERE 271,008 2,646 717 262 - 3,571 278,204
SRV R 77,448 728 3,364 2,727 - - 84,267
T RITEVER Y = & - - - - - 3,450 3,450
FHH R At - - - - - 1,316 1,316
= EET - - - - - 382 382
RIS 257 32 - - - - 289
&it 876,020 6,072 36,069 12,565 1,190,006 8,719 2,129,451

#
i

BURF ZOEBUR LG 655 79,534 8,854 10 = 1,046,341 = 1,134,739
Bk FFE(1) 465,445 - 16,840 6,323 - - 488,608
NE RS 325,487 66 = 181 = 434 326,168
SR GRS 51,155 = 5,088 3,586 = = 59,829
BRI = = = - - 14 14
&it 921,621 8,920 21,938 10,090 1,046,341 448 2,009,358
AT

BUF R AR EES 78,331 2,666 10 - 1,180,189 - 1,261,196
EfFE(1) 438,045 - 31,978 9,576 - - 479,599
NEEE 264,202 419 - 251 - 434 265,306
SERNBES 76,508 - 3,155 2,306 - - 81,969
BEERI - - - - - 14 14
&it 857,086 3,085 35,143 12,133 1,180,189 448 2,088,084

(1) ETRTANREDELFEERANE.

2) RFRBFEABRNMHESHEATACRETERFARAEBRFIM, MYEBE. PEARRT. LA S MBEKMERT.
(3) RIFREMENMRABFBRIE A SREMR. BEMRAS AT, HULRTRAEY~RFERITUE,



(9) ERMAFREPNEIS T
RGBS H A SR FE =
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A&

2023%£12H31H

B RBITRI 98,364 - - 98,364
B E LRI - 143,422 = 143,422
HRE AL - 544,247 - 544,247
FTESRA 439 3,130 = 3,569
ENEBREESRE ™ - 477,456 69 477,525
ZHM LRI 2,122 174,616 554,755 731,493
IR R 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
HARGRANR 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167,521
Hit&r&A ™ 2,441 963 5,132 8,536
&it 1,261,053 1,726,844 887,765 3,875,662
2022%12H31H

B RBITRI 118,857 - - 113,857
A R IR - 113,326 - 113,326
He#ES - 471,537 - 471,537
ETHESRA~ 4,107 6,986 - 11,093
ENBESRE ™ - 404,823 - 404,823
M 4,741 149,231 602,538 756,510
BN 838,377 514 96,466 935,357
Hh AR % 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
HAith & Fh T = 3,467 2,138 5,966 11,571
&it 1,399,641 1,570,509 870,423 3,840,573
AT

2023%12H31H

B REBITRI 97,821 - - 97,821
U b FRIN - 140,421 - 140,421
HeEE - 554,200 - 554,200
LTHESRE > 439 2,454 - 2,893
KNBESRE ™ - 477,456 - 477,456
oM EmE 2,122 169,429 487,472 659,023
AR B 599,447 - 96,909 696,356
H A% 533,171 379,007 219,320 1,131,498
Hitt &b ™ 2,441 520 1,758 4,719
At 1,235,441 1,723,487 805,459 3,764,387
2022412H31H

B RBITRI 113,311 - - 113,311
FIE LRI - 146,482 - 146,482
HEEE - 476,496 - 476,496
PTHE SRR 4,107 6,162 - 10,269
TNIRE SRR = - 404,823 - 404,823
R 5 SR 4,728 143,935 531,405 680,068
FRAUR # 838,377 514 94,825 933,716
H FR & 418,092 417,118 154,117 989,327
HAith & mR ™ 3,467 701 1,070 5,238
&it 1,382,082 1,596,231 781,417 3,759,730
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ik

T RERIEERTHNE (FR LR RENENFRNE) OEHMERARARRAMRMLSRERMNONE . ARAHIE Y
THREETBREEBTKES T HKENNE SCENE.

AEATHRREENEGEBIRI BN THNRERER . THIRG ERITE FEENMERENZZNERZ LSS
NHHRRE . BRTHREEHNERARATEZHAEEN . KIR b UK /9T,
FEARREFLRAMBZRSENNNERIREETHRE . AR EETKALASEEREAT NG, BdEHETEW
FHEANREEERE BREMTHNENEREE.

ZEWESRITHERIRIS

AEFARENTZRE T EFETRXZKESRITKESH.

ZHWERIEAXZ BN ARMBIMEANETFENTNEAZ NS TANFRLT. ROTKERENEZ S BHHE
B RAMNTERYANZGWENRABERLFHA.

R ZMWEMBITWER T Z NG ARG EEBRNL SERBESBNRITVEE AR TERENER. £ NREERAQEHE
EOTmHRE. FRGEERSXZUSHT AR, L SRRBIATAS UHEREEREAAR], P EHETLRNEMR
PSR A BB B3R, T HA 4R ) 4R A7 TS 2 B AL R R b IR R

TR T ERARTE R %

THNEBIRAEIE. TEEM. AMDHT. RODHT. GUEMERETRETRE,

MR ZKE, AEEAR B ORFZS, EIRRIES . SURMERFAEHEFREHSERRRR.
AEAZETHNRHZRREE T WEEREEFRFREER A NEEEBARXZWESETH R ARG it
2 LEfRs.

SRITIK

MERTME, AT T BRI CERE  FIRN G QSR 2EEETHRERR. Ed, REEERBLITEER. A0
HEARNBREEETKALASRENRITEER LSERBEBSIFHRO . GUREDIT. O F T7 AT KBS T KBS
TAERIRA TR,

B SR R AT R BE AR AT AL, FEL3(N) AR RS R 3(2) TR N ( BIFERITIKENZ ZHMKE ).

(1) FZEREE

RITKEFI R ZIEFRKF  PREMERRLERFIENSBREOKERFRSMEFNEEZREONE.
AEAETERMBRAZTNVSENRIENLFEAMARRTETERAZN. TEARBTNARTEEFREL T H
E, AESRINMREFLERENE THERRFIZOKE, —RTS, B—HH. ARARGESE ™GSR HONEKRERZ.
BOKBANRXNEERTEMNRBTNZFNERDNARITNHNEZANEENT W, S ARODHT. KBS S FSRANE
WEF BIXHARASAREMENARZFTREATROTMEN T NEER. XHWEOMN KRG 2B LM KRR
BRI HH AR AT TR SO mETER.

EIEMEENERN A E, ARAEHITENTEENRAD . AREER, ITHERRMERER (RIURE) 787 SBRATE
THEX F R E ) A9 BUR M,

EEMNGRODH

RERNEXEENAMIAEFREEN L ARASTEMA T KSR O EA KRG M A 25 UKE N ET =T -

IREEH]

2023%12H31H

EREEE

N& RIFHHRBITHRIM 98,364 - - - - 2 98,366
FRE R 119,681 3,113 12,886 - - 7,742 143,422
HwERS 226,381 248,849 67,850 = - 1,167 544,247
FTEEmA~ = - - - - 3,569 3,569
ENEESRE ™ 476,884 400 - - - 241 477,525
R R MK 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743
THMEERE 15,203 120,481 10,112 36,472 70,120 649,673 902,061
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A EEH
oMAMm 9ERTA 1ESE  SE0E  108ME  kEE AR

BRI 12,607 234,774 444,585 131 - 8,888 700,985
Ht A 399,236 155,154 318,958 142,307 141,647 10,219 1,167,521
Hihila TRIER = = - - - 5,460 5,460
Hith 172 - - - - 8,364 8,536
SRBE~ AT 6,053,252 8,988,902 1,099,816 396,598 1,025,799 732,068 18,296,435
SRS

[ b & H Ath & 5l AL F R 553,566 1,944,613 100 - - 8,071 2,506,350
15 BRI fh & B AL AR 268,521 352,031 45,500 60 = 7,839 673,951
FAERE 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
T HMEm AR = - - - - 2,621 2,621
TSR R R = = - - - 8,271 8,271
ek 15,461 1,578 - - - 51 17,090
R AR 747,420 89,734 11,281 4,143 2,146 8,530 863,254
ERTTHRFIESH 1,024,225 1,108,774 5,207,684 4,360,893 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Hith 1,440 2 500 3 - 27,741 29,686
ERAMATT 2,636,158 3,512,036 5,266,516 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16,868,785
MEFHFENMRD AT 3,417,094 5,476,866  (4,166,700)  (3,968,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650

ZAERMNXEENAMIAEFREENL ARASTESHA ™ R SR 0 HRA R R A 25 UKE N ET RN T

AEH

3MAMKA  3FE124°A 1ZE54 5Z 104 10 E EER &it
2022412H31H
SRR
M e K AFHF RBITHRIR 109,410 - - - - 4,450 113,860
R L FR IR 101,591 3,311 - - - 8,424 113,326
HHES 155,609 264,786 50,370 - - 772 471,537
LT SRR A - - - - - 11,093 11,093
ZINBELBA~ 404,707 - - - - 116 404,823
R GEER AN IR 4,350,965 8,185,972 261,212 229,094 828,789 43,075 13,899,107
oA~ 31,555 53,997 25,827 50,321 78,016 691,412 931,128
AR R 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 - 13,097 935,357
HAGRAIRH 195,035 350,580 297,364 102,073 69,059 8,388 1,022,499
Hthilam TREER - - - - - 5,354 5,354
HAth 270 - - - - 11,301 11,571
MR~ ET 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,919,655
ERIfE:
&k R H At & BR AL A9 F R T 503,720 2,021,081 - - - 11,273 2,536,074
= BUR A H fth & R AL 3K 247,924 281,013 22,963 17,928 - 3,034 572,862
HANESE 22,850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
XM EmAMR - - - - - 2,495 2,495
LT SRR - - - - - 18,351 18,351
52 61 1 € Rl 7T 7= 5K 15,208 159 - - - 25 15,392
ST EERN 1,066,631 78,877 12,033 4,074 2,110 3,999 1,167,724
ERTHREIES 921,232 987,506 5,022,845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125,956
HAth 104 2 14 50 - 17,954 18,124
eRAFaIt 2,777,669 3,381,977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847

FEREHEMHEAET 2,599,996 5,776,890 (3,888,164)  (3,847,839) 273,646 509,279 1,423,808
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RERNEXEENBEMIHEFREENL, ATENLRA SRR AGF RN O DB UKENESITNT

T

2023#12H31H

EREF

Me K AF M FRBITHRIN 97,821 = = = = 2 97,823
FRUE L FRIR 132,973 12 = = = 7,436 140,421
HHEAS 226,381 258,749 67,850 = - 1,220 554,200
T ERA > - - - - = 2,893 2,893
ENRESRT = 476,884 400 = = = 172 477,456
R GER IR 4,565,640 8,234,751 231,206 210,810 479,583 34,983 13,756,973
THHESRA 11,457 120,231 9,703 34,672 4,176 495,329 675,568
AR T 12,436 233,367 441,695 = = 8,858 696,356
H b s & 398,921 148,567 298,866 134,660 140,689 9,795 1,131,498
Hthilsm TRER = - - - - 2,000 2,000
Hith - - - - = 4,719 4,719
SME~ET 5,922,513 8,996,077 1,049,320 380,142 624,448 567,407 17,539,907
ERfAE:

Bk & H At & Ba AL A9 17 AR T 556,887 1,951,142 100 = = 8,257 2,516,386
= BUS A H fth & R fE K 134,923 226,400 18,486 - - 6,171 385,980
HANAE 10,270 14,950 1,451 83 550 313 27,617
LT SR AR = = - - - 8,025 8,025
S B0 4 T 7= K = 1,125 = = = 7 1,132
Rl 77 5K 887,705 103,100 11,281 4,143 2,146 9,037 1,017,412
ERTESIES 1,015,341 1,100,149 5,184,469 4,357,288 784,153 238,104 12,679,504
Hith - - - - - 6,680 6,680
A RET 2,605,126 3,396,866 5,215,787 4,361,514 786,849 276,594 16,642,736
FEEHEMRD AT 3,317,387 5599211  (4,166,467) (3,981,372) (162,401) 290,813 897,171

RERMNEXEENBEMIHEFREESX, RATENLEE >~ X SR A GFIRXE O 25 UKENESTNT .

AT

3MAMA 3E121A 1E54 5E104 105 £ EER ait
2022412H31H
SRR
N& RFHRFRBITHRIM 108,864 - - - - 4,450 113,314
FRE LRI 138,161 - - - - 8,321 146,482
HHEES 157,508 267,786 50,370 - - 832 476,496
PTESMAS - - - - - 10,269 10,269
ENBESRE = 404,707 - - - - 116 404,823
RGN 4,338,300 8,172,647 170,801 192,855 475,572 41,381 13,391,556
R PHEERE= 27,569 52,836 24,922 49,887 8,087 533,648 696,949
BRI 28,076 300,221 535,541 56,813 - 13,065 933,716
H AR 194,436 345,771 281,250 92,925 66,977 7,968 989,327
Hihilzs TRIERE - - - - - 2,042 2,042
Hit - - - - - 5,238 5,238
SMBR~Ea 5,397,621 9,139,261 1,062,884 392,480 550,636 627,330 17,170,212
EREGR:
B % H b £ B AL R T 509,560 2,023,686 1,279 - - 11,321 2,545,846
= B A1 H fh & R AL (AR 124,341 184,628 766 17,400 - 1,877 329,012
N 8,689 13,339 1,785 92 566 218 24,689

TTE SR AR - - - - - 18,339 18,339
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T

3MAMA  8FE129A 1ZE54E 5Z 104 10 E R ait
R FF R 1,184,694 82,564 12,033 4,074 2,110 4,169 1,289,644
ERTRFIES 917,481 980,759 4,985,111 4,265,572 699,542 230,487 12,078,952
HAth - - - - - 7,150 7,150
ERUARET 2,744,765 3,284,976 5,000,974 4,287,138 702,218 273,561 16,293,632
FEBHFENHRO S 2,652,856 5,854,285  (3,938,090)  (3,894,658) (151,582) 353,769 876,580

RN R H MRS R A SUR MDA

TRITFTABRRERMERNETEASLTRI0NERNERLT, ETREPRAEANES R~ SHRAFNES, WK
FKI2HNAAFRFRANRBEMGEREM T EMNBEER I, Z2MEREMEHRAF R MEREEE . RRBRELF R
i HEAMFRESFRAER.

&M 20234 20224

KEEBAEH | EeskA RESAKE  ARSEN  Rbsaks
EF100ME S 50,438 (35,660) 44,413 (25,932)
TEE100ME S (50,438) 40,481 (44,413) 28,593
1T

KEFBAEL N

FF00ME S 50,024 (34,456) 45,166 (23,841)
TEE100 D E & (50,024) 38,894 (45,166) 26,226

X B HEANR T RIE - EF R LA HARFE O RR—FRATHEEEN NS RE ™ RERA G~ £ 89H 241K
AR, ZAOFREPRFENERAT RARAENRFEFE, REEFATH. BERRHGHRUEENANFLAER
FER.

WEMGERFNOE MR FE—EF R TN TPRFENABENRALETELEAANERSHZ .,

AEANAZBERHARERAFANESEARMNERNEERNBER, Bt LAWY RSXFEAFEESR. B, LRFIRE
HFZMO A RZIEABNE, BRES MR EBEEARARNEFHEXG KA T, FIRRBRAME LGS RSN EITES. B1%
S IE R R E IR R AR 2 SRS o) BE SR AR A9 R B A N

(2) CEMNB

REFRIBINTICRRF = ERPCENR  ZREEZmEY SRAMA SR E.

RERANKITDWERARTWS, WWHEET. Koo, BxMEMNRSI LS, KREANLCENEFTEEFEEXT. AEEE
FRCESTE T AN ETHAET M, 2023FE, ARDWNETCERREARTONBITT/1ET (2022FEREART
0.58897t/1%7T).

AEAFTEBIINCHA OCRGEM DT ER K (FaR)ZFHELR VAN RITEENZ W, FRULBLTMARE N
MHMEREN AL 5HEF TRETLRNRERE.

AEAEHHLRREHMASH, NERTASMARFTEARTKEMETRMAT .

A&

2023%£12H31H

ERE:

ReREFBFREFITRIM 95,818 2,534 14 2,548 98,366
I E LRI 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
HFHES 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
LTHESRE > 2,358 1,075 136 1,211 3,569
INBE SR 477,525 - - - 477,525
KRR MK 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244,743
TS EBE 875,009 26,773 279 27,052 902,061

G R 603,927 97,058 = 97,058 700,985
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AEEH
| ART XRHART ARTRMART ATEARTME &

HERIRE 1,129,408 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,167,521
H AN T REHE 2,000 = 3,460 3,460 5,460
Hifth 5,540 2,585 411 2,996 8,536
SRAE AT 17,039,486 1,022,630 234,319 1,256,949 18,296,435
SRS

Bk % H At & @A 7RI 2,503,915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350
= BUS A H fth @ R ALA (3K 408,894 265,057 - 265,057 673,951
HARS 18,746 13,453 11,066 24,519 43,265
X5 RRA R 2,620 1 - 1 2,621
PTE SR AR 7,212 503 556 1,059 8,271
SEH B 1 £ 38 R = 5K 15,958 - 1,132 1,132 17,090
R 75K 692,704 103,713 66,837 170,550 863,254
ERTTHRFIESH 12,628,393 74,074 21,830 95,904 12,724,297
Hith 22,327 6,843 516 7,359 29,686
EmAFHET 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 568,016 16,868,785
KW E L% 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
CELTETR (FR/EXEE) 225,654 (112,644) (73,589) (186,233) 39,421
R 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600

ARAZHHCEAEHADE, UWERFTASHNARTEARTREANEITOT

ZAEH

AR EXHART HMtmHHART SIHFARTNT &it
2022412H31H
SRR
N & RFHF RBITRIM 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
FRE IR 40,128 52,168 21,030 73,198 113,326
HHAS 367,542 91,602 12,393 103,995 471,537
BT ERAE~ 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,093
INBELRA > 404,823 - - - 404,823
BRI 12,880,055 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
o MEEMA > 901,318 27,206 2,604 29,810 931,128
IR 7 840,271 95,086 - 95,086 935,357
H A s & 973,842 38,353 10,304 48,657 1,022,499
Hthiam TEER 2,042 - 3,312 3,312 5,354
Hith 7,271 4,044 256 4,300 11,571
SRE~ET 16,535,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,655
AN
5 b &2 EL At S B AN A 17 BRI 2,521,230 6,511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
1) B O HL th & BR AN AD fE 3R 328,572 242,188 2,102 244,290 572,862
HANEE 14,153 15,238 9,478 24,716 38,869
X5 SR AR 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
LTTHEEmMAR 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
S B 4 R R 7R AR 14,959 433 - 433 15,392
R I 77 5K 1,004,043 110,364 53,317 163,681 1,167,724
ERTHREIES 11,970,722 102,203 53,031 155,234 12,125,956
Hith 15,443 1,174 1,507 2,681 18,124
SR AGAT 15,888,532 479,082 128,233 607,315 16,495,847
FMWE L% 647,342 684,468 91,998 776,466 1,423,808
CELTETR (AR/BXER) 341,191 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748

ERARE 3,560,564 121,537 46,751 168,288 3,728,852
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T

2023%12H31H

SRR
N & RIFH H RBTHI 95,319 2,490 14 2,504 97,823
FFRUE b R I 87,986 29,829 22,606 52,435 140,421
KRS 438,133 98,773 17,294 116,067 554,200
PTESRMRE™ 2,340 459 94 553 2,893
ENBRESRE~ 477,456 - - - 477,456
R GE AR 12,891,847 694,760 170,366 865,126 13,756,973
RS SrmE > 674,949 590 29 619 675,568
R R 599,447 96,909 - 96,909 696,356
HABGRANRH 1,093,385 20,798 17,315 38,113 1,131,498
HNa TREER 2,000 = = = 2,000
HAth 3,724 835 160 995 4,719
MR~ ET 16,366,586 945,443 227,878 1,173,321 17,539,907
. 3R
Bl B E fth £ B AL 17 UK TR 2,505,929 10,338 119 10,457 2,516,386
1) BT A A & B AL A B K 223,555 162,425 - 162,425 385,980
HARS 4,764 11,787 11,066 22,853 27,617
TrESm G 7,033 459 533 992 8,025
SE B & R =K - - 1,132 1,132 1,132
R 773K 821,732 124,901 70,779 195,680 1,017,412
ERTRFIES 12,614,434 46,062 19,008 65,070 12,679,504
Hit 5918 370 392 762 6,680
SR ARET 16,183,365 356,342 103,029 459,371 16,642,736
RWTA L% 183,221 589,101 124,849 713,950 897,171
CERLEETR (BR/EXEH) 220,498 (146,689) (77,319) (224,008) (3,510)
BT AR 3,499,161 103,344 24,283 127,627 3,626,788
T

AR EnxHART HttmdTART spmFART /NG &it
2022#412H31H
SRR
& RIFH H RRITHI 108,864 4,450 - 4,450 113,314
FFRUE b FR IR 97,429 28,090 20,963 49,053 146,482
HE#ES 372,501 91,602 12,393 103,995 476,496
ETH SRA 9,205 958 106 1,064 10,269
ENBRESRE = 404,823 E - - 404,823
R 12,379,739 841,759 170,058 1,011,817 13,391,556
ZH S TE = 696,929 - 20 20 696,949
AR R 838,891 94,825 - 94,825 933,716
HA R 940,670 38,353 10,304 48,657 989,327
HRETARR 2,042 - - - 2,042
Hith 4,533 533 172 705 5,238
MR~ 15,855,626 1,100,570 214,016 1,314,586 17,170,212
ERfE:
Bl B E fth £ B AL 15 UK TR 2,523,357 14,156 8,333 22,489 2,545,846
1) BT A0 H A & B AL A9 B 3K 170,111 156,799 2,102 158,901 329,012
HAES 2,581 12,630 9,478 22,108 24,689
LTS AR 16,916 958 465 1,423 18,339
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T

AR ExXIART HitmETART SPAmARTNT &it
T EET 1,104,008 128,854 56,782 185,636 1,289,644
ERTHRFIES 11,959,695 67,390 51,867 119,257 12,078,952
HAth 5,161 617 1,372 1,989 7,150
SRAFET 15,781,829 381,404 130,399 511,803 16,293,632
RNIAE K~ %5 73,797 719,166 83,617 802,783 876,580
CELE TR (GR/EXEE) 341,191 (280,283) (66,697) (346,980) (5,789)
{FEER 3,569,565 121,292 46,751 168,043 3,737,608

TRINRTAEARKTHEEIINCREHMONETESN TGRS THNARTLREAN ZH1%NERLT SMHEHTHR~S5 0
AR O R BRI ET RS TR AEMEEZH, ERCEXLTHNAEARATHEBGEREAT W AEKX,

AR EEHF T
EXHBARTICEES)
FFH1% 4,435 4127 4,424 4,389
TEE1% (4,435) (4,127) (4,424) (4,389)

DANCEEHNRAFENZ N, AEAZBELHRENESR HREEUTHEE.
- AFAEREBRAKAERILTHOMNTL,

- CEREHNEATHEZMW,

- RN TIHNRE R,

4. FREntERBE

RAMNERIEARARFEEEN, ERERNUEERARBTREEAR S M BB KA E GRS H R . st )
URERLERTEERNA FRANXSUREERBRERERRASHER.

AEART—BERDMERBIRIER SENRESPRAASRHEPINEE. EAWAITUAREZR2THE AR
MBS

2023%F , ATHSBUATEMAEFHERARR, REERSREEEELRMAMES, BFGHNREKHURBE T £/
BOHRE FEREGEIHA. EATEBELIAT S LNERERRTHRNTNFEREA.

AR E IR B AR

AEFAARSEXEEASETNER AP EEEFHFR. NN EPRER. BERS. BRAN. BETERERAGISEENET
FEMITREOMRER,

BRFNEIHERENA SRR ESECEZARAEARNMNREENERZ B/ R. AT LEEFTHENHRMA
B, ARARFASNAGRENTELREAAEN. RLEMLT TSRS KE, ERNEFESERENRE. &
FEBNERCENAT AT EHESEEEZA.

VEERBNASHERAMERARHEEEER]., AEAN RS EERESSE.
- TWEERHORNESR, HEZEERNE = HKE,

- BERSOGRSMERO,

- EEGFSIHHEMNETEMEL,

- EREGSEATL.

AEARHEBBRIETH LR THEATRNATERANNIE RSN, EHFFEREABARERIRAN M, LI, RIEHELEZ
LAY Mo AG MEHER, FASEIHERE MELBAER, EARREINATRANAETF R, KAEARE
TEEMRHSRA R,

BEBLT ARAFRPANAE=ZFLFERITENGERILARENSTETRIA S, ARREHIBERITREMEMTNHE
E—REMFAKENSH. BN, BAEARETERELSH . PUERERHAEARREH TR LFET, BLERRENE
BEMFAFDAREKRRFABNEBAET R,



ERTRRHEDN
REFAEHREDRN MR, DRFERANMERMETT . R 3R . mAfibiEas o8,
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FEANRABRENABIRERSALATINSERNRERATHNLERER, LUARMARRNEREFTEOKYE
s AR REARNRATERBAFTRESHEN. ARABIRTEENRLEINNERHEHFBEEFRRATR. X
EHEFUERBRANEFEN, MEAKASLERSHEAERSFIHAZAED. 2. RAEFENNRFNIEARARTHRETHRD
B>, T2023F12A31H, AKEAKHAR (AHAHE—FH—FNU L) ERTRFESFESEFAIUTAARTI0ITGLZT, Hith
KHRGS (BRELREMSRNOERAT. @ BFMEGSREEER RHEBSRASRMREER) KESHEitH

ARM1,618.17/Z75t.

RERAENRMKYRD L, AERAESTESRTATSTNEATLEENTELRIERMASRASRAIBIITMOT . K&
ANXEeaTAMPHNIASRES TRTNINTEFTEENESR.

KEA 2023412H31H
- R

HTEERA
N REHFRETHR - 98,167 199 - - - - - 98,366
BRELHR 928 105,054 13,504 4,190 3,178 18,418 = = 145,272
pide - = 104,300 125,791 252,532 69,379 = = 552,002
FANBESRAS 69 - 391,184 85938 408 - - - 477,599
RM SRR 46,938 = 364,740 359,579 1427679 6259123 4688322  7,348229 20,494,610
THUERAS 175,667 - 10,235 8,657 144,125 142,980 171,530 267,015 920,209
FRE 1,670 - 407 15,869 165,347 509,016 133,740 - 826,049
He AR % 14 = 328,585 72,023 174,624 373,379 174,346 175,046 1,208,017
HtETERE 5,460 - - - - - - - 5,460
Hit 301 6,296 25 41 166 1,063 708 - 8,600
FTESBASBR 231,047 209517 1,213,179 672,088 2168059 75373358 5168646 7,790,200 24,826,184
HTEEBAR
Bl & H o & BB - 74,283 29,843 454,880 1,995,050 108 - - 2,554,164
e B AT AN E fth £ RRAN A HE5R - - 29,283 187,539 361,528 105,291 7,824 - 691,465
N & - - 16,405 9,411 15,893 1,598 140 531 43978
TAMERMR = - - - - 2,621 - - 2,621
L EHSME = - - 12,557 2976 1,615 - - - 17,148
LU - 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,990 5,795 3,773 867,122
ERFTREIES - - 368,684 454448 1370054  6571,124 4979937 1,161,856 14,906,103
Hty 7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,395 = 29,760
FrEemAREH 7 785,498 471816 1152424 3843948 6697417 4995091 1,166,160 19,112,361
=P 231040 (575981) 741,363  (480,336) (1,675889) 675941 173555 6,624,130 5713823
fTEEMTARSR
BAGHEENTESRIR = - (95) 69 29 207 62 45 317
BREAENTEERTIA

UEHRA = = 79,050 51,037 310,131 15,159 - - 485,377

W&t = = (81,038) (51278) (316,259 (14,909) = - (463484)
£ TARERA - = (2,083) (172) (6,099) 457 62 45 (7,790)
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KER 20226128310
FiTEEmAT
RAERBEHHRETHR - 113,681 180 - - - - - 113,861
R LRI 13,536 90,621 2,336 - 7,084 - - - 113,557
bl ok - - 115,972 82,067 228,205 51,674 - - 477,918
INBESHAS - - 404,911 - - - - - 404,911
RMGEHAER 56,325 - 136,345 206,176 1639202 6105694 4678759 6,950,197 19,862,698
THHERA 172,776 3,450 8,604 43511 199,251 191,504 108,801 229,900 957,797
FARHA 2,024 - 407 32,794 233,050 594,644 162,614 - 1025533
HA R A 3 - 97,962 96,300 372,152 340,496 123,427 91,026 1,121,366
Hitia TERR 5,354 - - - - - - - 5,354
Hito 1,261 6,145 45 2,896 1,193 63 16 30 11,649
FOESRASR 251,279 213,897 766,762 553,744 2,680,117 7284075 5073617 727,153 24,004,644
TSRk
B R HAth & REAIAGF AT - 57,358 5,509 453194 2,046,777 - - - 2,562,838
BB FRE SR EER - - 30,315 154,677 265,007 118,552 24,667 - 593,218
KNEE - - 11,560 11,491 13,810 2,058 96 611 39,626
XMt LN 82 - - - - - 2,413 - 2,495
S EBERA R - - 14,057 1,192 161 - - - 15,410
LU - 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79,918 13,735 5,446 2852 1172524
EXTTREIEH - - 307,008 404,234 1,230,128 6379368 4953985 1,092,436 14,367,159
Hith 1,941 3,424 99 26 2,677 9,380 571 12 18,130
FESRAKEE 2,023 1,090,070 374882 1,059,765 3638478 6523003  4987,178 1095911 18,771,400
PN 249256 (876,173) 391,880  (506,021)  (958,361) 760,982 86,439 6175242 5323244
fTESBIARSR
ENEENTESRTIR - - (153) (7) (297) (127) 94 61 (429)

BREENITEERTIA

WERA - - 193,834 115,619 404,620 7,961 5 - 722,039

Yl o - - (196386) (116428  (411,359) (7,634) @) - (731810)
fTEEMIERSRAT - - (2,705) (816) (7,035) 200 95 61 (10,200)
M7 2023%12A31H
FTEERAT
RERBHPRETHA - 97,823 - - - - - - 97,823
BRE LM 928 139,496 - - - - - - 140,424
ik - - 104,300 125,844 262,556 69,379 - - 562,079
INBRECHAS - - 391,184 85,938 408 - - - 477,530
R R AER 45,727 - 361,101 346,021 1,379,005 6094411 4621756 6914528 19,762,549
THMemE> 21,557 - 6,492 8,655 143,838 142,130 169,569 200,951 693,192
FARA - - 407 15,858 163,878 506,061 133,596 - 819,800
HAp R A - - 328,433 71,764 167,089 350,749 165,764 173,654 1,257,453
Ht G TRRE 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Hit - 4719 - - - - - - 4,719

FETESRAT R 70,212 242038 1,191917 654,080 2,116,774 7,162,730  5090,685 7,289,133 23,817,569
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17 20234124310
TS RmAE
B R E At S R T - 76,298 31,217 455,149 2,001,660 108 - - 2,564,432
e B AT A E fth £ ARG 5K = - 9,857 140,632 217,618 23,698 - 391,805
i - - 5,707 4,781 15,526 1,598 140 531 28,283
S EBERAR - - - - 1,157 - - - 1,157
R zsR - 825,626 20,004 48,424 105,388 11,990 5,795 3773 1,021,090
EXRTTREIEH - - 366,894 447432 1,360,428 6541807 4981438 1,161,856 14,859,855
Hit - 6,680 - - - - - - 6,680
FESRAREN = 908,604 433769 1096418 3701777 6579201  4987,373 1,166,160 18,873,302
PSS 70212 (666,566) 758,148 (442338) (1585003 583,529 103312 6,122,973 4,944,267
fTESMIANSR
HANEENITESRTIA - - (156) 8) (173) 57 65 45 (170)
BREMAENTEERTIA
N = = 77,018 47,494 303,084 4,064 - = 431,660
Me - = (78.918) (47588)  (309,131) (4,122) = - (439,759)
TEEBTENSRA - - (2,056) (102) (6,220) (1) 65 45 (8,269)
#47 20224£12F31H
HTEERA
R&RAERFRBITHRI - 113,314 - - - - - - 113,314
R LRI 13,536 132,947 - - - - - - 146,483
by - - 115,972 83,986 231,288 51,674 - - 482,920
INBRESHA” - - 404,911 - - - - - 404,911
RIRGEFR AR 43,467 - 131,900 282876 1,599,869 5924930 4613748 6512310 19,109,100
THEEHA> 15,639 - 8,604 42,966 198,263 189,319 108,072 160,582 723,445
FRERE - - 407 32,551 233,023 593,450 162,614 - 1,022,045
HA AR A - - 97,901 95,581 366,328 321,281 112,814 88,213 1,082,118
HtRATERE 2,042 - - - - - - - 2,042
Hth - 2,030 1 2818 298 61 - 30 5,238
ForEemAS B 74,684 248,291 759,696 540,778 2,629,069 7080715 4997248 6,761,135 23,091,616
TS RmAR
ENBEL R IRALey e - 59,483 5,998 456,465 2,049,461 1,345 - - 2572752
BRI GIREE - - 9,392 113,909 143,051 54,508 17,691 - 338,551
i - - 2,298 6,543 13,810 2,058 % 611 25,416
R - 1,141,930 11,883 34,962 83,733 13,735 5,446 2852 1294541
EXfHRFLEH - - 307,034 402561 1,221,700 6338565 4955724 1,002,436 14,318,020
Hth - 3,801 91 18 2,628 518 82 12 7,150
FTESHARER - 1205214 336,696 1014458 3514383 6410729 4979039 1095911 18556430
=P 74684 (956923) 423000  (473680)  (885314) 669,986 18209 5665224 4535186
fTESBIANLSR
WRNEENTESRTIER - - (20) ) (297) (127) % 61 (296)
RRRSENITEERIA
RN - - 192,984 114,762 400,937 4,035 - - 712,718
Nent - - (195593)  (115634)  (407,954) (4,000) - - (728271)

TEEBIAREHAIT - - (2,629) (879) (7,314) (182) 9 61 (10,849)
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HF=RRRINIE
AERAGTHKE. FHRE ROTRKAZLEERFALEREINERSTREREMEIBIRHT .

AREH

2023%12H31H

BERRKIE 33,329 1,555 73,898 210,450 243,284 3,040,960 3,603,476
FFHAR B KIBR 132 300 364 2,541 10 = 3,347
RITRFILCE 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
FHERIE 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
&it 33,737 2475 76,143 212,991 243,294 3,040,960 3,609,600

2022412H31H

BRI 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738

FFHREZBR 5 - 256 3,442 - - 3,703

RITRHICE 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375

FFH 5 FIE 298 109 1,461 168 - - 2,036

&it 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,859 268,101 3,076,368 3,728,852
BrEfRBERIME

ATRFEE . FHRE . ROALCERARERIINERSTZERIARIHIRNOT .

4=

1T

2023#12H31H

BRI 33,328 1,555 73,898 210,451 249,526 3,052,151 3,620,909
FFHAR R KIBR 132 300 364 2,296 10 - 3,102
RITREILE 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
FHAERIE 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
&it 33,736 2,475 76,143 212,747 249,536 3,052,151 3,626,788

2022412H31H

TEROKIE 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,250 268,101 3,085,368 3,725,739

FFHEARERIBR 5 - 256 3,197 - - 3,458

RITRFLCE 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375

FF 1= FAIE 298 109 1,461 168 - - 2,036

&it 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,615 268,101 3,085,368 3,737,608
5. EMBMEMAGHNARMNE

ERIAANANENREIEERBRAR SR ARAEERT S L RSAROIRN, ATENERTH LRBURNE, KAEARBILE
RENGERARBESRIENARNME. HERAGRARELEAITRNE N THEE IR TR M BRGEAEAS S
iR MAKAMXANEERABGEEZETHSESZFEENIRTESENFARE, HSNANSRITREENZEFEIRRK
.

AEAGBERAEHARAIENXEENN R, BEASSNBERATHTREEN NESEMRETHIER.

AEAUDP D E-—RANERIAIZQEEIHIAXZNIESEES XRAMRESEERTHTORNMTE (REAE).
AEANDAE_ERANEHMIAETIZEARIESRE TEGN BEEANAANETEEE TN AL HRANREY L EF
BOBFERATSF ARTHFNAANEZRTREGBILAEERTELAINEELERHE I HRFHLANERREER
BRGEERPE. TEEARARNAASRENHBRR - FRREREE T AN AT HEE MEERGEESEYATHT
WEE.

FRAUNDAE=ZFRANERTIRTIBAREAFANRLER LTRNAERALTESRIENRN, EREERGERAHE
ARME. MANGEERARTBZSRASRNIE FH% THASE, ERAANENTERA T WEESEZERTZWHT
TRESH FESHTZERTHIFOEARE  IRTFRARRA KRR RN X TH T ASEHE.



(1) UARMETENEMIA

AEANAANMETTENSRTRZ=1BERITNT:
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A EEH
EREF
Dot b
CELTETR - 2,288 - 2,288
MEHFETR - 1,281 - 1,281
R GERR AR - - 54,422 54,422
SRIEE
AR FENBENERESREMIUARNE
ITHEAEEHITALBRENSHE>
% 430 53,014 434 53,878
BizEe = 117,890 = 117,890
BRERESHR 12,539 720 35 13,294
AT RITRERN = & - 3,743 - 3,743
W@ TE 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,537
REEEITR - 321 - 321
BEMAAMETEEETHIT AL AR
H SRR =
ik . 203 181 384
BEERIY - 14 = 14
HAh AR E
% 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
BRI - 373,146 = 373,146
Hthias TEER 3,460 - 2,000 5,460
ait 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033
ERAR
T 5 M & R i - - (2,621) (2,621)
FTHE SR TGS
CERGETHR - (7,197) - (7,197)
FEGTETR - (1,074) - (1,074)
ait - (8,271) (2,621) (10,892)
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ZREH
(2022f12A31t8 #-BER $ZER $=E&R &b
SRR~
ETESRA
CEREFETR - 7,690 - 7,690
MELGETR - 3,403 - 3,403
R GER AN IR - - 48,097 48,097
SRUE T

AXZENFENERAT REMBUAANE
HEAETHFITALPRENSRA >

% 264 80,831 478 81,573
ERZE3-] - 68,507 - 68,507
BRERESE/E 8,736 617 7,215 16,568
TR ITHEY ™R - - 3,450 3,450
WNHETH 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
BEEET - 368 - 368
BEMAAMETEBRREIHITA YIRS
SRt
"% - 576 - 576
REEEITR - 14 - 14
HAGAUIRE
s 4,934 602,706 33 607,673
ERZES - 414,826 - 414,826
HMNETARE 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
ait 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2,018,171
ERffR
T HMEMAGR - - (2,495) (2,495)
LR N R
CRFETH - (15,380) - (15,380)
FRLTETR - (2,971) - (2,971)
aif — (18,351) (2,495) (20,846)
AT
‘2023%12831B | ®-Bx  ®ZER  #=ER At
SRR~
ETESRA
CEREFETR - 2,091 - 2,091
FERLTETR - 802 = 802
KR GER AN IR - - 54,422 54,422
SRUE T

AXZENFENERAT REMBULAANE
HEAETHITALPRENSRA >

fR% - 51,578 434 52,012
ERZE3-] = 117,890 = 117,890
NHETH 9,346 11,204 484,718 505,268
IEEMAAMETEBREF A YR
&A=
% - 203 181 384
REEERITR - 14 - 14
H A FAIE T
% - 760,780 - 760,780
ERZE3-] - 370,718 = 370,718
HMNZETAER - - 2,000 2,000
&it 9,346 1,315,280 541,755 1,866,381
iR
PSR NR
CELTETHR - (6,958) - (6,958)
FIRELTETR - (1,067) - (1,067)

&it - (8,025) = (8,025)
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SR~
BT SR>
LCEFETR - 7,648 - 7,648
MEFETR - 2,621 - 2,621
RINGER AR - - 48,097 48,097
SRBAE

AZZHENFENERAT REMMARNE
TEARTHITAYHRENERA™

% - 78,357 481 78,838
B fFE - 68,507 - 68,507
META 11,224 17,106 520,684 549,014
FBEMAANEITERHETHIT AL RS
Sleate: b
s - 576 - 576
REEETR - 14 - 14
HA AR R
R - 578,236 - 578,236
ERIZC3::] - 411,091 - 411,091
Hhias TRER 42 - 2,000 2,042
&it 11,266 1,164,156 571,262 1,746,684
SRR
PTHE SRR
CERGETR - (15,353) - (15,353)
FELTETR - (2,986) - (2,986)
&it - (18,339) — (18,339)

2023 F EM2022F &, AEAFE —BERAME_EREMTIRAZBALTERED.
AEALRE=ZEXREMTERHMNT .

ARH SMA
L mUUIRR SSESEES  MRHRER URETARE  SRRPE

20231518 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793,015
. - (9,586) (12) = (9,598)
2 8,277 14,362 - - 22,639
“®HE (5,392) (63,449) = = (68,841)
MNEZERE&H - (8,437) = = (8,437)
WA

38 3,440 16,606 = = 20,046

At & - 242 (4) - 238
20234128 31H 54,422 692,623 17 2,000 749,062
FHENE =/ EH.

TARERP AR (RK) 3,440 6,093 - - 9,533

ARG A RS - 225 4 = 221
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HHH SR~
L AR SSMSRNT RBHRRR RRREIREN  SRESAH
20221818 45,073 717,653 103 2,000 764,829
EH - (15,873) - - (15,873)
0 9,624 92,615 33 - 102,272
#E (4,614) (58,678) - - (63,292)
ME=EREE - (3,606) - - (3,606)
BRET
3 (1,986) 8,846 (102) - 6,758
HthZR e las - 1,928 (1) - 1,927
20224F 128318 48,097 742,885 33 2,000 793,015
FRENE=/EFR.
RPNt TR EES) (1,986) 1,136 (102) - (952)
TTAEMG AW - 1,928 (1) - 1,927

AOTERE=ZFXELBTIARHMT:

G SRAF
L AHSERRR SSMERNT  RBGRRR RRREIAEN  SRESAH

202341 B 1H 48,097 521,165 = 2,000 571,262
s - - - - -
0 8,277 1,574 - - 9,851
ECH (5,392) (48,920) - - (54,312)
BAEZRX - 137 - - 137
WA &It

i i 3,440 11,377 = = 14,817
2023% 128318 54,422 485,333 = 2,000 541,755
FRENE=/EFR.

AR R F AR/ (%K) 3,440 1,604 - - 5,044

ARG E K = - - - -

ERH
S sHemmR SSHSERS  RESRRR RBRETARR  SREAH

20221818 45,073 563,630 - 2,000 610,703
Lyl - - - - -
@HE 9,624 5,022 - . 14,646
MNEZBRE S (4,614) (53,221) - - (57,835)
M@ AT

Yz (1,986) 5,734 - - 3,748
2022412318 48,097 521,165 - 2,000 571,262
FRHENA=/ G

AR R PR (RK) (1,986) (2,839) - - (4,825)

TTAH LA B - - - - _
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(2) EUARRMETEHNERTE
AEAEURAANETENSEASMOE, AAANEGTET TITTHITETRE ARNMERERIRZNDAEZEXR.

() AERFHRPREITRIM. FHRRLZRT. FEAS IARESHAS BULEHERRM. EAEHER FAAE. T

(Bt £ B0 7= 5K H A BT A0 E A 1 B — S ) HI A HoAth S ORI R A SR
HFUEERA~REMAGNIHART2E—FMUR, BESATHTHHNERSENEN, HKENERIREAANE.

(i) B

ETHIESRANARANENTRESATHRNAEM . S TELTOIESKRA, WEARNZERIZIEFRARRRER SRR

TR MBIEFR B BN ERARTE.
(ill) RGN

BT FIMERROFRTRRETEARETEANIFEH R BERLE AKANEREAANENSEEIL. BEF

ERFHAAMEURSREWIERE IHIEIE B SZTROT R AR MUAIT R E,

(iv) BEFREFAER. B FREER

EEFRZFAFR. RLFRFERNAAMENRSRENIUERE  WIRE B 51273 ERNR R HAREMURITRIE,

EROEW)FRUAANETENSRA S MARHKENEERLEARNE.
V) ERFTHRFIES

RENAANEUTZRNIBUMISEZLUSHRIAENTIRNAE. S TEERSTHRNALCUESRIATHRNORK

F. HAANENSIZHESFOR AR TR LRI E R AEMO NS REMRIEHE.
TRITTERTRFIEFAKENENREREARMNE.

2023£412A31A 20224:12A31H
| mEGME oktE EEHE st
M
ERESIES 12,724,297 13,148,371 12,125,956 12,438,951
17
ERTHRFIES 12,679,504 13,104,310 12,078,952 12,393,550

6. RAEIE
AEARTAAEENOARESLA = AERTN EENE TEEN 2. HANTEL.
- BREAEASERERETEENNEEHRRER,
- RIEAEFRFEEEENNEEBHENTEEREER.
- REREORKEMNZHVERE.

AEFAEEZETEERZASHEXES MERERSHLEBEEEARNLEENE, LN EREANEEEMEERANEA
BR.ATEZENERSREEEEARLBRMERNALRFEL. T2023512A31H, AERAXARBTMAART19,123.05(Z
T —RBRBRTMAART5,698.0927C, b —RERRBREM A ART15,683.98127T. BAFERE H11.65%, —REAFEEEK
H9.54% B —RARKEENI.54%, KRITAKLBTMAART18,796.04Z 7, — R AKX ZHAMBO—RARZFIINART

15,429 1112T, RAFT B EAH11.52%, —RARTBREMZO—RARTBEIYAH.41%.

T=. AFEABRABER
AERRATEEEAS AHRABER,

T, MEiRRZHE
ATEELT FL02444B26 R R T ATHRTRA M ERE.

Tx. SESHERERL
SLERTHBR S (BHEBAK) DAFT2023E EH S IREF IR FFE . 20235 ERIUAE M EDATRET RS,



124 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

20 L0214 B MR N IMILAE & 5%

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. CDB Securities Co., Ltd. CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
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BEIJING BRANCH

ol AR AP KEXITANARE158SITFRESE
Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

81E(Tel):(010) 63223100

1&E(Fax):(010) 66412282

B4R (Zip): 100031

KiENT

TIANJIN BRANCH

bk KIFRH I X RKEIEIS B LR P OAE26ZE
Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Center A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

E81E(Tel):(022) 85681234

£ H(Fax):(022) 88355858

B4R (Zip):300061

AT

HEBEI BRANCH

ik AREDRERRISKE 17BE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

835 (Tel):(0311) 85288100

£ H(Fax):(0311) 85288112

1R 4%(Zip):050051

WEE 54T

SHANXI BRANCH

etk KEH/NE X KAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
3% (Tel):(0351) 4937222

£ H (Fax):(0351) 4937224

B4R (Zip):030006

ARERT

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

ik FAUES T RF XM K165

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
E81E(Tel):(0471) 3310014

f&£HE(Fax):(0471) 3310021

B4R (Zip):010098

517

LIAONING BRANCH

ik SEBRT LT X FEAE1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
BiE (Tel):(024) 22952975

& (Fax):(024) 22953371

#R4%(Zip): 110014

KEDMT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KIEFPURARK15-17SERERAE25ZE
Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

3% (Tel):(0411) 82810918

1&HE(Fax):(0411) 82633839

1R 4%(Zip): 116001

BT

JILIN BRANCH

i KEMRHIAEE3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
815 (Tel):(0431) 85279600

1£H (Fax):(0431) 85279700

R4 (Zip): 130022

BRIINT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

ik BBAURHARIE X G K277 S

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
81E(Tel):(0451) 53907900

£ & (Fax):(0451) 53907808

B4R (Zip): 150028
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SHANGHAI BRANCH

ik £ TIHRKESS

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
E81E(Tel):(021) 20266688

1& H(Fax):(021) 58883659

B4R (Zip):200120

SIAT

JIANGSU BRANCH

bt : B R A IR PEE2325

Add: 232 Jiangdong Middle Road, Nanjing
1% (Tel):(025) 83276222

£ E(Fax):(025) 83276204

R 4% (Zip):210019

AT

SUZHOU BRANCH

Stk - AT Tl FE X REME2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park, Suzhou
E31E(Tel):(0512) 67887142

£ H (Fax):(0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip):215123

HIRT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

ik AN LT X I E B 6953145

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

E31E(Tel):(0571) 81686131

& B (Fax):(0571) 89778068

HB4R(Zip):310020

TIRAMT

NINGBO BRANCH

ik TR T EMN X277 S

Add: 577 Haiyan North Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
31E(Tel):(0574) 83872888

1& H(Fax):(0574) 83872100

B4R (Zip):315040

REIT

ANHUI BRANCH

i AREH & LXK L6995

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
E81E (Tel):(0551) 62867889

£ E (Fax):(0551) 62875868

R4 (Zip):23007 1

BEST

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN TR BRANESRK127S

Add: 127 Degui Road, Wenquan Street, Gulou District,
Fuzhou

B335 (Tel):(0591) 87856844

1& B (Fax):(0591) 87856408

R4 (Zip):350003

ENaT

XIAMEN BRANCH

Hodk: B EAXELE100S ALY AL (EIME
Fiy) 35-40

Add: 35/F-40/F, Fortune Center, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

3% (Tel):(0592) 2394308

£ (Fax):(0592) 2393111

114 (Zip):361001

STESMT

JIANGXI BRANCH

ik B E WA K FEMHRKREI100S

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan District,
Nanchang

835 (Tel):(0791) 86592323

1&H(Fax):(0791) 86592333

B4R (Zip):330038

WFRS4T

SHANDONG BRANCH

ik FREH A+ 8116665 R4k Rt/ OD

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

3% (Tel):(0531) 81928100

1& H(Fax):(0531) 81928282

HR4%(Zip):250014

N7

QINGDAO BRANCH

ik FRHHRXEEPRK29S. 315

Add: 29, 31 Hong Kong Middle Road, Qingdao
3% (Tel):(0532) 81978277

£ H (Fax):(0532) 81978288

1R 4% (Zip):266071

BT

HENAN BRANCH

itk BN TH £ 7KK 2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
31 (Tel):(0371) 66000888

1& B (Fax):(0371) 66000777

B4R (Zip):450008

#Ab s 17

HUBEI BRANCH

ek BHINHR 8 K RIEAEI08S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
81 (Tel):(027) 86759777

1£HE (Fax):(027) 86759666

1R 4% (Zip): 430062

BT

HUNAN BRANCH

Mk KB RORATHE ZRI18SHITRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang Middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

E31E (Tel):(0731) 84906851

£ E (Fax):(0731) 84906699

1R 4%(Zip):410002

I"Ra17

GUANGDONG BRANCH

Mok TN R X BIHAEFEE10052—3. 16-252
Add: 3/F, 16/F-25/F, 100 West Huangpu Road, Tianhe
District, Guangzhou

8815 (Tel):(020) 38633017

& B (Fax):(020) 38633000

B4R (Zip):510627

RINT

SHENZHEN BRANCH

ek SRYI T AR H X 38 R = 282003 S E R e R O K E6
=, 18F. 19F. 28-33%

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2008 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
B35 (Tel):(0755) 25985666

1& B (Fax):(0755) 25987800

B4R (Zip):518038

a7

GUANGXI BRANCH

it BT HE S K RIEXE1495

Add: 149 Minzu Avenue, Qingxiu District, Nanning
E8iE(Tel):(0771) 8018114

tEE (Fax):(0771) 5527233

1B 4% (Zip):530028

BEST

HAINAN BRANCH

ik AT HRRKIGHEF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
£33 (Tel):(0898) 68551901

1& H(Fax):(0898) 68551933

B4R (Zip):570311
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BERAMT

CHONGQING BRANCH

ik ERTIIER £RES

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongaing
817 (Tel):(023) 67858000

1& H(Fax):(023) 67858114

B4R (Zip):400023

)53 47

SICHUAN BRANCH

it BT S H X XRBI1205ERFALKRITRE
Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

81E(Tel):(028) 86029998

1& H (Fax):(028) 86029617

B4R (Zip):610041

"MT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

itk REATHERFEKCSILEERR HEE#H10-212
Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan West
Road, Guiyang

835 (Tel):(0851) 88651588

1&H(Fax):(0851) 88651605

B4R (Zip):550003

LRSI

YUNNAN BRANCH

ik BAAT T 1REE176S

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
E81E(Tel):(0871) 63634094
1&H(Fax):(0871) 63634001

k4R (Zip):650228

BREE T

SHAANXI BRANCH

i AR T e —K2SERARRTKE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
One, Xi'an

3% (Tel):(029) 87660578

1& H (Fax):(029) 87660581

1R 4%(Zip): 710075

HRT

GANSU BRANCH

Mok = MH RS 17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
1% (Tel):(0931) 8866628

£ H(Fax):(0931) 8866237

1R 4% (Zip): 730030

WERT

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik BEARFHHWEIBBSERFRRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
B335 (Tel):(0991) 2335001

1% HE(Fax):(0991) 2335002

1B 4 (Zip):830002

5817

QINGHAI BRANCH
ik ATHREK2S
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
E83E(Tel):(0971) 6161990
t£E (Fax):(0971) 6161900
#R 4R (Zip):810001

TEMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

ik R ERRFRELHETS

Add: 1 Yinjiagu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
81E(Tel):(0951) 5695900

& & (Fax):(0951) 5695813

B4R (Zip): 750004

BT

TIBET BRANCH

Stk - FrEET )\ —FE K28 SA

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
E31E(Tel):(0891) 6623869

& B (Fax):(0891) 6597788

#B 4R (Zip):850000

BEDT

HONG KONG BRANCH

ik FERIRERE S EirE R P O— #3241

Add: 32/F One International Finance Center, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

31 (Tel):(00852) 28016218

& H(Fax):(00852) 25304083

FEHRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

ik R R FF B BRB LR 1815415 (A) 1. 28T
Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18, Maadi,
Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

83%(Tel):(002-02) 27507406

EHrRMLRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW
it HE BRI TR RIERRARES
Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow, Russian Federation
B335 (Tel):(007-495) 9894612

BYHRNARRLE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE
JANEIRO

i ERELABRN AT ROX RIS AAEHIS5S10Z
Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central District,
Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

81E(Tel):(0055-21) 981796921

IRIANErA R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik EARRMNAINSTHHESHBEEPERIZEM
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

eBRRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
ik EECHDRE D IEH60S

Add: 60 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7BB, UK
E3iE(Tel): (0044) 2079338702

AR

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE
it ERAGHREBGZEFLAKX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR.

317 (Tel):(00856)-20-56791136

FIREE MR CR AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
ik BB R AR AR N T ST R AE165 218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk Street, Astana, Kazakhstan

AR R AE R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
ik B S T R IR R RE A0S
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus
817 (Tel):(00375) 444559461

AR

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

ik EDEE R PR W HEANIA K o T H Sopo Del K BAE22 2
Add: 22/F, Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

81 (Tel):(0062) 02150806518

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

Stk SRR LR ER £ N e T FR B 41205 32

Add: 3/F, 20 Bond Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia
31 (Tel):(0061) 421838660

Eipe A 21

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN BUDAPEST
it @F R AR AR 575

Add: 1054 Budapest, Szabadsag tér 7.

3% (Tel):(0036) 707429425

EFEmARIIAE

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

ik AR AEBXERAAT IS EREROCEIR
Add: 9/F, Block C, Financial Street Center, No.B9,
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

#33%(Tel):(010) 88308477

B4R (Zip): 100033

EFESRBBRAT

CDB SECURITIES CO., LTD.

bk AE R A X B AN A #1295

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
£33%(Tel):(010) 88300999

B4R (Zip): 100037

ERERAERNERAT

CDB FINANCIAL LEASING CO., LTD.

ik RYI iR E X B = 520035 HR €m0 KE
2. 7. 8. 17, 21-27. 34

Add: 2/F, 7/F, 8/F, 17/F, 21/F-27/F, 34/F, CDB Financial
Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
81 (Tel):(0755) 23980999

£ B (Fax):(0755) 23980900

1R 4% (Zip):518038

FIERREEHRAE

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

Meib: AR B AEBX EXTINAE28 SR M R OR
BE10-118B

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Center, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
33%(Tel):(010) 59892900

1&H(Fax):(010) 59566969

B4R (Zip): 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of China Development Bank

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

2024-ZAB047

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 7 to 121, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
. Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts;

. Consolidation of structured entities.
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Measurement of expected credit loss for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s gross carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position amounted to RMB14,886.57 billion with a credit loss allowance
of RMB696.25 billion. The total exposure of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts was RMB3,609.60 billion, for which a provision of RMB20.16
billion was recognized. The credit impairment losses on loans and advances to
customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
recognized in the Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to RMB79.94 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, as of 31 December 2023 represented management’s best estimate of
expected credit losses (*ECL") at that date under International Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments.

Management assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk
parameter model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement models for ECL involved significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk characteristics,
selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measurement
parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (*SICR”),
default or credit-impaired;

(3) Adoption of economic indicators, economic scenarios and their weights for
forward-looking measurement;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established governance process and controls over the measurement of
ECL.

The Group developed complex models, employed numerous parameters and
data inputs, and applied significant management judgments and assumptions
in measuring the ECL, and the amounts of ECL and provisions estimated are
significant. These reasons resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit
matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(13)(f), Note 4(1), Note 14, Note 21,
Note 36 and Note 50(2) to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the measurement of ECL for the loans and
advances, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which comprised:

(1) Internal controls over ECL models, including the selection, approval and
application of methodologies of models, and the ongoing monitoring and
optimization of such models;

(2) Internal controls related to the review and approval of the portfolio
segmentation, model selections, parameters determination, the criteria for
SICR, the definition of default and credit-impaired, the use of forward-looking
scenarios and the judgement of risks from major uncertainties;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.
The substantive procedures we performed include:

(1) We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key
parameters estimation, significant judgements and assumptions in relation
to the models. We examined the ECL calculation on a sample basis, to
validate whether or not the ECL calculation reflect management’s modelling
methodologies.

(2) We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of management’s identification of SICR, defaults
and credit-impaired loans.

(8) For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed the basis management used
for determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of forecasted economic indicators,
economic scenarios and relevant weightings.

(4) We examined key data inputs to the ECL models for selected samples,
including historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their
accuracy and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between
the ECL calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their
accuracy and completeness.

(5) For loans and advances to customers in Stage 3, we tested on a sample
basis on the credit loss allowance computed by management based on
estimated future cash flows and discount rates with reference to financial
information of borrowers and guarantors, the latest collateral valuations, and
other information including forward-looking factors, etc.

Consolidation of structured entities

Structured entities primarily included asset-backed securities, assets management
plans and funds, etc., that were issued, initiated, managed and invested by the
Group. As at 31 December 2023, total assets of the consolidated structured
entities and unconsolidated structured entities, issued, initiated and managed by
the Group, amounted to RMB12.52 billion and RMB146.92 billion, respectively.
In addition, as at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of unconsolidated
structured entities invested by the Group which were issued, initiated and managed
by other institutions included in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB17.76 billion.

The Group evaluated the following aspects to determine whether the above

structured entities need to be consolidated in the consolidated financial statements:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities;

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by management in assessing whether the
Group had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such
structured entities resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit matter.

Relevant disclosures are included in Note 3(4), Note 4(2) and Note 45 to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

(1) Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Group's internal controls related to the Group's assessment on whether it
controls a structured entity;

(2) Assessed the Group’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

(3) Performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service provider,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other support
provided to the structured entities;

(4) Assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of decision-making authority of the structured entities,
the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its role as the assets
manager or service provider, the Group's exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by other
parties in the structured entities.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group's 2023 Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zhu Jiandi.

BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, the People's Republic of China
26 April, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 642,040 633,280
Interest expense 7 (481,727) (462,970)
Net interest income 7 160,313 170,310
Fee and commission income 8 1,450 2,410
Fee and commission expense 8 (920) (906)
Net fee and commission income 8 530 1,504
Net trading and foreign exchange gain 9 13,083 40,920
Net (loss)/gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost (186) 32
Dividend income 10 18,046 11,382
Net (loss)/gain on investment securities 1 (61) 159
Other income, net 12 10,437 8,437
Operating income 202,162 232,744
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 69 345
Operating expenses 13 (18,190) (17,485)
Credit impairment losses 14 (80,089) (115,426)
Other impairment losses on assets (1,575) (3,031)
Profit before income tax 102,377 97,147
Income tax expense 15 (14,960) (12,807)
Profit for the year 87,417 84,340

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 85,283 82,728
Non-controlling interests 2,134 1,612
87,417 84,340

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 87,417 84,340
Other comprehensive income:
Iltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation 118 22
Net (loss)/gain on investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive income (100) (116)
Subtotal 18 (94)
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,416 4,509
Net (loss)/gain of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 7177 (2,492)
Others (233) 1,384
Subtotal 8,360 3,401
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,378 3,307
Total comprehensive income for the year 95,795 87,647
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 93,598 85,120
Non-controlling interests 2,197 2,527
Total 95,795 87,647

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 98,366 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 143,422 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 544 247 471,537
Derivative financial assets 19 3,569 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 20 477,525 404,823
Loans and advances to customers 21 14,244,743 13,899,107

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 902,061 931,128
Debt instruments at amortized cost 23 700,985 935,357
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24 1,172,981 1,027,853
Investments in associates and joint ventures 25 522 458
Property and equipment 26 134,310 123,008
Deferred tax assets 27 192,263 174,366
Other assets 28 39,528 37,167
Total assets 18,654,522 18,243,083
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 2,506,350 2,536,074
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 30 673,951 572,862
Placements from banks 31 43,265 38,869
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 32 2,621 2,495
Derivative financial liabilities 19 8,271 18,351
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 17,090 15,392
Due to customers 34 863,254 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 35 12,724,297 12,125,956
Current tax liabilities 25,861 43,434
Deferred tax liabilities 27 6,589 8,136
Other liabilities 36 103,243 108,209

Total liabilities 16,974,792 16,637,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Equity
Share capital 37 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 38 182,650 182,650
Investment revaluation reserve 39 (7,548) (14,624)
Surplus reserve 40 229,477 214,825
General reserve 40 278,378 260,425
Currency translation reserve 2,487 1,128
Other reserve 41 321 398
Retained earnings 42 545,728 513,776
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,652,741 1,579,826
Non-controlling interests 43 26,989 25,755

Total equity 1,679,730 1,605,581

Total liabilities and equity 18,654,522 18,243,083

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:

Executive Vice President,

in charge of the finance function Head of Finance

Chairman President
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Year ended 31 December

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

2022

Profit before income tax 102,377 97,147
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 81,664 118,457
Depreciation and amortization 7,963 7,432
Interest expense for debt securities issued 387,149 376,594
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 21,171 11,915
Interest income for investment securities (59,864) (60,841)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (3,465) (848)
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 5,127 14,184
Net (loss)/gain on investment securities 247 (1,204)
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment, intangible assets and (455) (595)
other long-term assets
Net foreign exchange loss (20,952) (50,158)
Share of profit of associate and joint ventures (69) (345)
Dividend income (167) (129)
Subtotal 520,726 511,609
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Ne;tg:rc;?na::c:zl ki):zli?jﬁjnv!ith central banks and deposits with banks and 29,411 39,773
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements (469) 6,879
Net decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 31,566 65,998
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (408,620) (1,118,929)
Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions (55,263) (86,772)
Net decrease in other operating assets 79,070 136,176
Net (dec.rease.)/inlcregse% in due to customers and deposits from banks and (339,545) 212,623
other financial institutions
Net increase/(decrease) in placements from banks 51,111 (27,393)
Net increase/(decrease) in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 1,672 (5,821)
Net decrease in other operating liabilities (47,823) (44,888)
Subtotal (658,890) (822,354)
Income tax paid (56,486) (23,749)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (194,650) (334,494)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2022

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost and

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,564,244 1,005,027
Cash received from returns on investment securities 66,101 65,374
Cash received from other investing activities 2,423 6,416
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates - 280
Cash paid for purchase of debt instrumer?ts gt amortized cost and financial assets (1,473,526) (1,042,373)

at fair value through other comprehensive income
Cash paid for purchase of property and equipment, intangible assets and (21,551) (14,974)

other long-term assets
Net cash inflows from investing activities 137,691 19,750
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 2,377,639 2,631,402
Cash received from borrowings from governments and other institutions 102,536 72,297
Cash received/(paid for) from other financing activities 1,458 533
Transactions with non-controlling interests (365) (437)
Cash paid for repayments.of ert securities issued and borrowings from (1,898.590) (2,098.725)
governments and other institutions
Cash payment for interest 'on Fiept securities issued and borrowings from (397,351) (373.420)
governments and other institutions
Dividends paid (12,018) (19,740)
Other cash received related to financing activities (1,714) (1,998)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 171,595 209,912
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7,416 14,834
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 122,052 (89,998)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 666,383 756,381
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 44 788,435 666,383
Net cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 581,332 560,348
Interest paid (73,041) (74,163)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), China Development Bank was
converted into a joint stock corporation on 11 December 2008, established
jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF") and Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Huijin™), and renamed as China Development Bank Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the National Financial Regulatory
Administration (the “NFRA”, the former the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission) and after completing the review by and registration of
corporate changes with the State Administration of Business and Commerce,
China Development Bank Corporation changed its name to China Development
Bank, and changed its form of organization from a joint stock corporation
to a limited liability company. After these changes, the Bank operates under
business license No. 911100000000184548 issued by Beijing Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017, and financial institution license No.
G0001H111000001 issued by the NFRA on 13 June 2017. The registration of
corporate changes does not affect the rights and obligations of the Bank. After
the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets, creditor's rights, debts and
businesses of the former China Development Bank Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align
their business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic
development strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank
for medium and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so
as to raise and channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic
industries, pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation
and upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student
loans, and inclusive finance;

- National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture,
and people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative,
industrial capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure
connectivity, energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going
Global”;

- Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

- Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development
strategies and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries
registered in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”.
Branches and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2023 relevant to and adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2023:

1 Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

(1

(2)  Amendments to IAS 8

(8)  Amendments to IAS 12
(4)  IFRS 17 and Amendments

Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Definition of Accounting Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Insurance Contracts

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the operating results, financial position and comprehensive income of the

Group.
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2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

a

f—

—

=

effective dates in 2023

The Group has not early adopted the following new and amended IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to IAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

M

(2)  Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(38)  Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

(4)  Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

1 January 2024
1 January 2024
1 January 2024
1 January 2025

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

(5)  Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(6)  Amendments to IFRS 16

its Associate or Joint Venture
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective date has been deferred indefinitely

1 January 2024

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Accounting period
The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or
in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to
liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and entities (including subsidiaries and structured entities)
controlled by the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gain control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including
those controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting
or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
equity holders of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealized gain on transactions
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized loss is also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred assets

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to the equity holders of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e., recognized in the consolidated income statement). When
the Group retains an interest in the former subsidiary and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.



(5) Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which the investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of
loss of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
loss. Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or the joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part of the interest in the associate
or the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or the joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or the joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or the joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate or
the joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued, excepted for equity instrument designated as fair
value through other comprehensive.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and loss resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

(6)

(7

-~

(8)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(a) Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead
of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected
credit loss in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI" but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3'), for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net
of the expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset (i.e., its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider
ECL and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

(b) Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated income statement
using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”).
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign
currency classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") are analyzed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes
in the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost
in foreign currencies are translated using the foreign exchange rates at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified
as FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position; except the retained earnings, other
items in equity holders’ equity are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation
Income taxes comprise current income tax and deferred income tax.

(a) Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before income tax as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

(10) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits
include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those
services as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as
expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee
benefits include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well
as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group's post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for
basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to government
mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. The group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period in which
the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’'s head office and domestic branches
(“Domestic Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by
the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with
reference to employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in
the consolidated income statement when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011,
The entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the
present value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of
early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance
with termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is
recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date when the criteria for
recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in
the consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes
in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred.



(11) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term and highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted
market prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted
cash flow analysis, option pricing model and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

(13) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

(i) Amortized cost ("AC"). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances to customers at amortized cost, debt instruments at
amortized cost and other receivables.

(i) FVTOCI. Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income include debt securities, and equity
instruments designated as fair value through other comprehensive
income which are not held for trading purpose.

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL'). Financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading
financial assets, derivative financial assets, loan and advances
to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss, equity
instruments other than designated at FVTOCI, debt investments that
do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order
to generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely
to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of
assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g., financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of other
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group
in determining the business model for a group of assets include past
experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated.
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Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses
whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”). In making this assessment, the Group
will assess the contractual terms of the financial assets which may lead
to changes in the timing distribution or amount of the contract cash
flows and determine if the requirements of the above contract cash flow
characteristics are met. If the contract terms do not meet the requirements
of the above contract cash flow characteristics, the related financial assets
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity
instruments are described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer’s perspective (including special financial
instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability but are classified
as equity instruments), such as government and corporate bonds.
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one
of the following three measurement categories:

() Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.

(i) FVTOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured
at FVTOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if
doing so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets
and liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer’s Perspective (excluding special financial instruments that meet
the definition of a financial liability but are classified as equity instruments);
that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net assets. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL,
except where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCI. The Group
designates the non-trading equity instruments that are expected to be
held for a long time for the purpose of long-term strategic corporation as
FVTOCI.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets, it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group
does not restate any previously recognized gain, loss (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest. Reclassification date is the first
day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, and measured at FVTPL. The FVTPL is applied to derivatives,
financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition.
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(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial
liability as measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch); (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets
and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key management personnel.

For the financial liabilities recognized due to the transfer of financial assets
does not meet the conditions for termination of recognition, the Group
retains to recognize the transferred financial assets and recognizes the
received consideration as a financial liability. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership and the
Group retains the control over the transferred financial asset, the financial
assets and relevant liabilities shall be recognized to the extent of the its
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the
categories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal
repayments; (ii) plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount; (iii) for financial assets, adjusted for any credit
loss allowance. Interest income and interest expense from these financial
assets is included in “Interest income” and “Interest expense” using the
effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities,
periodic re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market
rates of interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial
asset or a floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount
equal to the principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the
future interest payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying
amount of the asset or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability
as the present value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the
carrying amount discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
adjustment is recognized in profit or loss as income or expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gain or loss, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gain and loss on the instrument’'s amortized cost which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
“interest income” using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns are designated as FVTOCI. When this
election is used, fair value gain and loss is recognized in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to
be recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established, and it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss and presented in the income statement within
“Net trading and foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or
which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented separated
in “Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

Equity instruments

Gain and loss on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange gain” in the income statement of.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk)
and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair
value of the liability). This is unless such a presentation would create,
or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gain or loss
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss. The gain and loss from financial liabilities including the
effects of credit risk variance should be recognized in current profit and
loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings.

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money; and

(iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose credit loss allowance are measured using
the ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their credit loss and recognize their ECL,
as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1 and have its ECL
measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instrument
for the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 2 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.



Stage 3: If the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 3 and have its ECL measured at an
amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instrument.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI. The credit impairment loss is recognized in profit
or loss, and it should not be presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a reduction of the carrying amount of the
financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial
instrument other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has
increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the Group
measures the credit loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit loss at the current reporting date and the amount of
expected credit loss reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For POCI,
at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the cumulative changes
in lifetime expected credit loss since initial recognition as credit loss
allowance for POCI financial assets.

The Group will write off a financial asset when reasonably expects that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery of the financial assets after the
Group has completed all necessary measures and legal procedures. If in a
subsequent period the loan written off is recovered, the amount recovered
will be recognized in profit or loss through impairment losses.

(9) Contractual modification

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original
terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for credit loss
allowance calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being
unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying
amount are also recognized as gain or loss on derecognition of debt
instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset
and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for POCI financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss.
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Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS”) to investors.
The Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these
ABS. As the asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services
including collecting payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining
account records related to the assets pool, providing service reports and
other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly
be used for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche
ABS, and then to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group
derecognizes or partially derecognizes the transferred financial assets
according to the extent of transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group
has an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. Otherwise, financial assets and financial
liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit loss
provision required to settle the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income statement

A loan commitment is a definite commitment provided by the Group
to a customer to grant a loan to the customer on agreed contractual
terms during the commitment period. The credit loss allowance of loan
commitments provided by the Group is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest
rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another
financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit
loss allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
separately identify the expected credit loss on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected credit loss
on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with the credit loss
allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit
loss exceeds the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit
loss is recognized as a provision.
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(14)Financial assets held under resale agreements and

financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions where the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined
price at a future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements are transactions where the Group sells
financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price at a
future date under repurchase agreements.

Both financial assets held under resale agreements and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements of the Group are in the form of
pledged repo. The cash advanced or received is recognized as amounts
held under resale or sold under repurchase agreements in the statement
of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are not
recognized. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be
recognized in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale consideration, and that
between the sale and repurchase consideration, is amortized over the
period of the respective transaction using the effective interest method
and is included in interest income and interest expenses respectively.

(15) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Except the derivative which are
designated and qualified as hedging instruments, the resulting gain or
loss in derivative is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contract which contains a host that is
a non-financial asset, are treated as separate derivatives when their
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the hybrid
contracts and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group
choose to designate the hybrid contract at fair value through profit or loss.

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting
to account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria.
The Group's hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

(a) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group’s profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized in the consolidated income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of the
derivatives, which are hedged for the risk exposure from fair value change
of non-trading equity investment designated as at FVTOCI, are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to
maturity. If the hedged item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying
value adjustment is recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group’s exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or
unrecognized firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and
could affect the Group’s profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized
hedged item. If the cumulative amount in the cash flow hedge reserve
which recognized in other comprehensive income is a loss, and all or part
of the loss is expected to be irreparable in the future accounting period,
the Group shall reclassified the expected irreparable part from other
comprehensive income to profit and loss in the same period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

- When the hedged cash flow affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized directly in other comprehensive
income is recycled in the corresponding income or expense line of
the income statement. When the hedging relationship ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria after taking into account any rebalancing of the
hedging relationship, including the hedging instrument has expired
or has been sold, terminated or exercised, any cumulative gain or
loss existing in other comprehensive income at that time remains in
other comprehensive income until the hedged forecast transaction
ultimately occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred immediately to profit
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the Group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of
proceeds received, net of transaction cost.

The distribution to the holders of equity instruments is recognized as profit
distribution.

(17) Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office and
machinery equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and
construction in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset's carrying amount
or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gain and loss on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or

loss.



(18) Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value of assets not
retained plus related costs, and subsequently measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each
reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to sell, is lower than a
foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included
in the consolidated income statement in the period in which the item is
disposed.

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In
principle, foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use,
but, in the event that they are needed for the Group’s own business or
management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts
and managed as newly acquired property and equipment.

(19) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both.

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred for the investment property are
included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent
expenditures are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation is
recognized the same way as property and equipment and land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged,
the Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the
carrying amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(20) Leases

(a) Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the period of use, customer
has both of the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset.

(b) As Lessee
Lease modifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right to use
one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the contractual
lease term.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right
to use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Group remeasures the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as the interest rate
implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the modification, if the
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by:

(i)  decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that
decrease the scope or term of the lease, and recognising the gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease in profit or
loss; or
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(i) making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all
other lease modifications.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than RMB50,000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. The Group chooses not to recognize the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as “Operating
expenses” in the income statement on a straight-line basis over each
period of the lease term.

(c) As Lessor

At the inception date, a lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Otherwise, a lease is classified as an operating lease.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes finance
lease receivable and derecognizes the assets under finance leases. The
Group presents lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment
in the lease for the initial measurement. The net investment in the lease is
the present value of the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the
unreceived lease payments receivable at the commencement date, which
is discounted by the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The Group calculates and recognizes the interest income in each period
during the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and
recognizes such interest income in profit or loss.

(d) Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

If the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate to
calculate the present value of lease payment. The economic circumstance
and the observable interest rate set the foundation for each institution of
the Group in determining the incremental borrowing rate. On this basis,
the applicable incremental borrowing rate is calculated through the
adjustment of the reference interest rate, which is determined according to
the situation of the institution and the underlying asset, the lease term, the
amount of lease liability and other specific conditions of the lease.

(e) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly include buildings, vehicles
and other right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date of
the lease less any lease incentives received;

(iii)y any initial direct costs incurred when the Group is a lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
subsequently by the Group. If the Group is reasonably certain that the
ownership of the underlying asset will be transferred to the Group at
the end of the lease term, the Group depreciates the asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise,
the Group depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the asset or the end of the lease
term.

The Group remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of
the changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amounts of
the right-of-use assets accordingly. When the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes the remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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(f) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The lease payments need to be discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate of lessee as the discount rate. The Group
calculates the interest expenses of lease liabilities in each period during
the lease term using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognizes
such interest expenses in profit or loss. Variable lease payments that are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures lease liabilities by
discounting the revised lease payments if any of the following occur: (i)
there is a change in the in-substance fixed payments; (ii) there is a change
in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
(iii) there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or a rate used to determine those payments; or (iv) there is a
change in the assessments of options to purchase the underlying asset,
extend or terminate the lease, or the circumstances of the actual exercise
of these options.

(21) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other
intangible assets. Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
which generally range from 1 to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(22) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment loss and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.
Cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit,
and then to the other assets of the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata
basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.

(23) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss

(24) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as
a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by those charged with governance.

(25) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

(26) Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies,
other institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for
its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have
any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under
custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the
Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants
loans to borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans.
The Group is responsible for the arrangement and collection of the
entrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered.
As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrusted loans and the funding for the corresponding entrusted funds,
they are not recognized as assets or liabilities of the Group.

(27) Contingent liabilities

(1
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognized, but
disclosed.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations
for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty
that the management has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the next
twelve months.

Measurement of credit impairment losses

For financial assets that are measured at amortized cost and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and financial guarantee
contracts and loan commitments, the Group assesses the credit loss
allowance and provisions in light of forward-looking information.

Expected credit losses refer to the weighted average of the credit loss
of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss refers
to the difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all expected cash flows discounted by the Group at
the original effective interest rate, that is, the present value of total cash
shortage. Among them, POCI financial assets should be discounted at the
credit-adjusted actual interest rate of the financial assets.
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The ECL model involves periodic review of key definitions, parameters,
and assumptions, such as estimates of future macroeconomic conditions
and the borrower’s credit behavior (e.g., the possibility of customer default
and corresponding loss). A number of significant judgements are required
in applying the accounting requirements for measuring expected credit
losses, such as:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether there was a significant increase in
credit risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as
definition of default and credit impairment;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used
in measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 50(2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured
entities, the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group
controls and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates
the Group’s power over the structured entities, performs analysis and
tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management fees earned as the
asset manager or service provider, the retention of residual income, and, if
any, the liquidity and other support provided to the structured entities. The
Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an agent through
analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the structured
entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for its role as asset
manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to variability of returns
from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset
value, comparable companies approach, and other valuation techniques
commonly adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the
Group uses only observable market data, however areas such as credit
risk of the Group and the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital,
perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity
to comparable companies and their performance indicators may not
be observable and require management to make estimates and apply
judgements. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
estimated fair value of financial instruments.

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In the normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing
whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or
partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured
entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine
whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.
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The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection
with such transfers to determine:

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash
flows from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass
through” of those cash flows to independent third parties.

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets are transferred.

- Where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially
all of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the
Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these
financial assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
transferred financial assets.

Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
effect is uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for
items of uncertainty, taking into account existing taxation legislation and
past practice of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax in the period in which such a
determination is made.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to determine whether the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the assets. If any
such indication exists, an impairment loss is provided.

In assessing the present value of goodwill generated from the acquisition
of subsidiaries, the Group estimates the present value of future cash flows
at appropriate discount discounting rates. In assessing the present value
of future cash flows of subsidiaries, significant judgements are exercised
over the related income, operating expenses and discounting rate to
calculate the present value.

TAXATION

The Group’s main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Corporate income tax

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group in Mainland China
is 256%. Taxation on overseas institutions is charged at the relevant local
rates. The pre-tax deduction of corporate income tax shall be implemented
in accordance with relevant state regulations.

Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit
business, fee income on financial services and income from trading of
financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for
Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding
Issues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management
Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and “Circular on the Relevant Issues
concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cai
Shui [2017] No. 56), managers of asset management products shall pay
VAT at 3% for taxable activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

City construction tax
City construction tax is calculated as 1% to 7% of VAT.

Education surcharge
Education surcharge is calculated as 3% to 5% of VAT.
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2023 were as follows:

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB87,687 100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Development Fund Mainland China RMBS0.000  100% directly helg | \oT-Securities investment & investment

management and advisory
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548  84.99% indirectly held Fund investment & management
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB12,642 64.40% directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding
CDB Infrastructure Fund Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB30,000 100% directly held T \01-securlties investment & investment

management and advisory

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries,
and there was no restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 555,443 553,119
Debt investment securities (a) 59,864 60,841
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 23,301 17,185
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 3,432 2,134
Others - 1
Subtotal 642,040 633,280

Interest expense

Debt securities issued (387,149) (376,594)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (61,634) (65,531)
Due to customers (10,135) (7,804)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (21,171) (11,915)
Others (1,638) (1,126)
Subtotal (481,727) (462,970)
Net interest income 160,313 170,310

(a) Interest income of debt investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 565 906
Loan arrangement fee 228 280
Credit commitment fee (18) 83
Consultancy and advisory fee 196 535
Others 479 606
Subtotal 1,450 2,410
Fee and commission expense (920) (906)

Net fee and commission income 530 1,504
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9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gain 7,750 53,529
Net gain/(loss) on trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 6,414 (2,564)
Net loss on foreign exchange derivatives (3,228) (9,795)
Net gains/(loss) on interest rate derivatives gain on interest rate derivatives 2,147 (250)
Total 13,083 40,920

10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 17,879 11,253
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 167 129
Total 18,046 11,382

11.NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (61) 159

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 6,408 7,230
Others 4,029 1,207
Total 10,437 8,437

13.0PERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Staff costs 8,285 7,974
Taxes and surcharges 4,689 4,421
General operating and administrative expenses 3,231 2,918
Depreciation and amortization 1,985 2,172
Total 18,190 17,485

14.CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 83,137 104,284
Debt instruments at amortized cost (555) 4,424
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 110 300
Loan commitments (3,179) 6,172
Financial guarantee contracts (23) (4)
Others 599 250
Total 80,089 115,426

15.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

Current tax 36,737 49,590
Deferred tax (Note 27) (21,777) (36,783)
Total 14,960 12,807
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The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 102,377 97,147
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 25,595 24,287
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (106) 27
Tax effect of non-taxable income (12,617) (12,632)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 26 544
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 2,062 581

Income tax expense 14,960 12,807

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 2 3
Balances with central banks 98,364 113,857
Total 98,366 113,860

17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 90,664 60,318
Other domestic financial institutions 651 13,417
Overseas banks 51,879 39,455
Other overseas financial institutions 70 56
Subtotal 143,264 113,246
Accrued interests 217 80
Total 143,481 113,326
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (59) -
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 143,422 113,326

As at 31 December 2023, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB16,964 million (31 December 2022:
RMB18,270 million), which were mainly pledged funds for borrowings from other banks and security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 480,281 371,284
Other domestic financial institutions 15,000 14,001
Overseas banks 48,108 85,537
Subtotal 543,389 470,822
Accrued interests 1,167 772
Total 544,556 471,594
Less: Allowance for impairment losses - Stage 1 (300) (52)
- Stage 2 (9) (5

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 544,247 471,537

19.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore,
do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable or unfavorable as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly.
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The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding
at the balance sheet date.

31 December 2023

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 4457774 2,269 (7,197)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 1,278 19 -
Subtotal 2,288 (7,197)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 159,477 1,281 (1,074)

Interest rate options 5,135 - -
Subtotal 1,281 (1,074)
Total 3,569 (8,271)

31 December 2022

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 687,294 7,667 (15,376)

Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 3,607 23 (4)
Subtotal 7,690 (15,380)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 420,050 3,403 (2,971)

Interest rate options 6,011 - -
Subtotal 3,403 (2,971)
Total 11,093 (18,351)

(2) Hedge accounting
Fair value hedges
The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits

issued by the Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2023, the notional amount of the
Group amounted to RMB7,542 million (31 December 2022: RMB8,282 million).

The Group’s fair value changes on hedge instruments and the net gain or loss of hedged items arising from hedging risks, as well as the hedging ineffectiveness
portion recognized from changes in fair value gain or loss are not material.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks, with the hedged items being borrowings from
other banks for the Group’s leasing business. The Group also uses cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable
to interest rate risks and exchange rate risks, with the hedged items being the bonds issued by the Group’s subsidiary CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. As at 31 December
2023, the notional amount of two hedge business mentioned above amounted to RMB15,599 million and RMB340 million, respectively (31 December 2022:
RMB17,396 million and nil, respectively).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging
and the profit or loss relating to the ineffective portion were insignificant.

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 477,507 404,935
Others 1,161 1,322
Subtotal 478,668 406,257
Accrued interests 172 116
Total 478,840 406,373
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Stage 1 - -
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 (1,315) (1,550)
Subtotal (1,315) (1,550)
Financial assets held under resale agreements, net 477,525 404,823

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.



154 ERFALRTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

21.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 14,190,321 13,851,010
At fair value through profit or loss (b) 54,422 48,097
Loans and advances to customers, net 14,244,743 13,899,107

(@) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 14,646,153 14,222,605
Finance lease receivables and others 203,494 204,533
Subtotal 14,849,647 14,427,138
Accrued interests 36,919 43,075
Total 14,886,566 14,470,213
Stage 1 13,372,962 12,892,388
Stage 2 1,325,842 1,344,107
Stage 3 187,762 233,718

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (238,554) (209,408)
Stage 2 (329,057) (254,675)
Stage 3 (128,634) (155,120)
Subtotal (696,245) (619,203)
Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 14,190,321 13,851,010

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 54,855 47,786
Fair value change (433) 311
Total 54,422 48,097

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2023 209,408 254,675 165,120 619,203
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 46,845 (46,845) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (14,613) 34,105 (19,492) -
Transfers to Stage 3 - (5,727) 5727 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 43,974 5,167 17 49,158
Remeasurement (a) (26,283) 109,287 2,937 85,941
Mature or reverse (21,208) (22,939) (7,815) (51,962)
Write-off - - (11,210) (11,210)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 5,205 5,205
Others 431 1,334 (1,855) (90)

As a 31 December 2023 238,554 329,057 128,634 696,245
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As at 1 January 2022 192,457 229,513 81,928 503,898
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 1 8,489 (8,489) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (18,017) 28,073 (10,056) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (8) (57,215) 57,223 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 44,932 19,506 4 64,442
Remeasurement (a) 3,076 48,743 40,845 92,664
Mature or reverse (22,645) (13,259) (16,918) (52,822)
Write-off - (148) (9.612) (9,760)
Recovery of loans and advances previously written-off - - 6,255 6,255
Others 1,124 7,951 5,451 14,526
As a 31 December 2022 209,408 254,675 155,120 619,203

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of Probability of Defaults (PDs) and Loss Given Defaults (LGDs); transfers
among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant change of credit impairment in the period, and the consequent “set up” (or
“set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.

(i) In 2023 major changes in the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers that have a great impact on the Group's credit loss allowance
includes:

As at 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 accounted for 90% of total beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. The changes of the Group’s ECL of loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 were mainly driven by a net increase of nearly 3% in
the corresponding gross amount;

As at 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 2 accounted for 9% of total beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 1 transferred to Stage 2 in 2023;

As at 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 accounted for 1% of total beginning balance of loans and
advances to customers. Approximately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage 2 transferred to Stage 3 in 2023. Such increase was offset by the decrease
resulting from write-offs and recovery of approximately 12% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to customers.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of the loans and advances to customers of which credit loss allowances were transferred
from Stage 3 to Stage 2, and from Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, which due to the modification of contractual cash flows but not resulting in derecognition
were not significant.

@

-~

Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by
installment, if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

Past due

As at 31 December 2023

Unsecured loans 1,141 49 20,487 11,470 33,147

Guaranteed loans 615 6,786 2177 672 10,250

Loans with collateral

Loans secured by collateral 22,034 1,562 11,399 11,276 46,271
Pledged loans 12,934 3,776 2,593 4,767 24,070
Total 36,724 12,173 36,656 28,185 113,738

As at 31 December 2022

Unsecured loans 10,671 9,323 14,220 626 34,840

Guaranteed loans 3,982 2,175 491 730 7,378

Loans with collateral

Loans secured by collateral 22,873 1,396 18,721 16,049 59,039

Pledged loans 26,825 2,194 5,198 5,021 39,238

Total 64,351 15,088 38,630 22,426 140,495
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss

Government and quasi-government bonds 2,122 4,241
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 41,457 60,308
Corporate bonds 10,299 17,024
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 117,890 68,507
Asset management plans 321 368
Stock and fund investments 13,294 16,568
Wealth management products issued by other banks 3,743 3,450
Other equity investments 712,537 760,072
Subtotal 901,663 930,538

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) (a)

Corporate bonds 384 576
Asset management plans 14 14
Subtotal 398 590
Total 902,061 931,128

(a) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in bonds with funds from investors of wealth management
products, which were issued by the Group before 2019.

23.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

As at 31 December

Government and quasi-government bonds 592,081 826,566
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 240 500
Corporate bonds 105,936 103,989
Asset-backed security 20 -
Investments in trust plans and others 5,453 3,220
Subtotal 703,730 934,275
Accrued interests 8,888 13,097
Total 712,618 947,372

Stage 1 710,920 945,348

Stage 2 28 -

Stage 3 1,670 2,024

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (10,129) (10,209)
Stage 2 (6) -
Stage 3 (1,498) (1,806)
Subtotal (11,633) (12,015)

Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 700,985 935,357
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2023 10,209 - 1,806 12,015
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 - 13 (13) -
Originated or purchased financial assets 45 = = 45
Remeasurement (a) (247) 6 - (241)
Mature or reverse (51) (13) (295) (359)
Foreign exchange differences 173 - - 173
As at 31 December 2023 10,129 6 1,498 11,633
As at 1 January 2022 5214 - 1,790 7,004
Remeasurement (a) 4,451 - 25 4,476
Mature or reverse (52) - - (52)
Transfer out - - (11) (11)
Foreign exchange differences 596 - 2 598
As at 31 December 2022 10,209 - 1,806 12,015

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Government and quasi-government bonds 551,841 429,534
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 9,381 6,797
Corporate bonds 222,894 162,708
Asset-backed securities 166 285
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 373,033 414,787
Subtotal 1,157,315 1,014,111
Accrued interests 10,206 8,388
Total 1,167,521 1,022,499
Stage 1 1,167,504 1,022,466
Stage 2 - -
Stage 3 17 33

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 3,460 3,354
Unlisted equity 2,000 2,000
Total 5,460 5,354
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 1,172,981 1,027,853

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVTOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in fair
value of such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.
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(1) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

As at 1 January 2023 128 - 1,324 1,452
Originated or purchased financial assets 84 = = 84
Remeasurement (a) 59 - 10 69
Repayment and transfer out (35) - (8) (43)
As at 31 December 2023 236 - 1,326 1,562

As at 1 January 2022 117 - 1,034 1,151

Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 3 9) - 9 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 56 - - 56
Remeasurement (a) 9 - 281 290
Repayment and transfer out (46) - - (46)
Foreign exchange differences 1 - - 1

As at 31 December 2022 128 - 1,324 1,452

(a) Remeasurement mainly includes the impact of changes in parameters such as probability of default and loss given default, credit loss changes due to
stage-transfer.

25.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 522 458

Net 522 458

26.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December

Cost (a) 181,560 162,655

Accumulated depreciation (a) (41,578) (33,776)

Allowance for impairment losses (a) (6,305) (6,573)

Fixed asset held for disposal 633 702

Total 134,310 123,008
(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the

following:

Cost

As at 31 December 2022 22,898 3,588 34,895 99,657 1,617 162,655

As at 31 December 2023 23,558 5,382 39,922 111,604 1,094 181,560

Accumulated depreciation

As at 31 December 2022 (8,624) (2,797) (3,623) (18,732) - (33,776)

As at 31 December 2023 (9,499) (3,143) (5,192) (23,744) - (41,578)

Allowance for impairment losses

As at 31 December 2022 (72) (17) (575) (5,873) (36) (6,573)

As at 31 December 2023 (73) (17) (845) (5,333) (37) (6,305)

Net book value

As at 31 December 2022 14,202 774 30,697 75,052 1,581 122,306

As at 31 December 2023 13,986 2,222 33,885 82,527 1,067 133,677
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27.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 192,263 174,366
Deferred tax liabilities (6,589) (8,136)
Net 185,674 166,230

(1) Movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 166,230 129,853
Credited to profit or loss (Note 15) 21,777 36,783
Charged to other comprehensive income (2,329) 678
Others @) (1,084)
As at 31 December 185,674 166,230

(2) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are attributable to
the following items:

As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 712,529 178,132 628,362 157,090
Fair value changes of financial instruments 49,012 12,253 60,542 15,219
Provisions 19,915 4,979 23,118 5,779
Others 3,198 807 2,237 470
Subtotal 784,654 196,171 714,259 178,558

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value changes of financial instruments (37,302) (9,325) (42,934) (10,733)
Others (6,921) (1,172) (8,729) (1,595)
Subtotal (44,223) (10,497) (51,663) (12,328)
Net 740,431 185,674 662,596 166,230

As at 31 December 2023, there were no significant deferred income taxes unrecognized.
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28. OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Prepayment to vendors 13,815 11,889
Interest receivable 7,933 7,824
Right-of-use assets 1,979 1,890
Investment properties 1,954 1,876
Goodwill (1) 1,247 1,246
Intangible assets 1,053 797
Long-term deferred expenses 1,080 859
Deposits with securities exchange 147 260
Others 13,228 13,050
Total 42,436 39,691

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Interest receivable (107) (15)

Others (2,801) (2,509)

Subtotal (2,908) (2,524)

Other assets, net 39,528 37,167
(1) Goodwill

As at 31 December

Gross amount 1,247 1,246
Allowance for impairment losses (534) (534)
Net balances 713 712

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units. Based on
the result of the impairment testing, RMB534 million impairment losses on goodwill were recognized as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB534
million).

29.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 2,430,145 2,472,383
Other domestic financial institutions 44,845 31,552
Overseas banks 28,876 29,854
Other overseas financial institutions 687 103
Subtotal 2,504,553 2,533,892
Accrued interests 1,797 2,182

Total 2,506,350 2,536,074
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30.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 566,003 485,154
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 70,666 55,733
Foreign governments 29,443 28,941
Subtotal 666,112 569,828
Accrued interests 7,839 3,034
Total 673,951 572,862

The collateral pledged under borrowings from governments and financial institutions is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments —
Collateral.

31.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 19,609 14,161
Overseas banks 23,304 24,471
Subtotal 42,913 38,632
Accrued interests 352 237
Total 43,265 38,869

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group'’s financial liabilities measured at fair value though profit or loss mainly comprise of the borrowing with
conversion options from non-financial enterprises.

33.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 17,039 14,937
Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 430
Subtotal 17,039 15,367
Accrued interests 51 25
Total 17,090 15,392

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 49(5) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments - Collateral.

34.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 647,531 949,186
Term deposits 104,916 110,442
Pledged deposits 1,938 1,426
Certificates of deposit 106,253 104,665
Subtotal 860,638 1,165,719
Accrued interests 2,616 2,005

Total 863,254 1,167,724
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35.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions (1) 12,301,027 11,730,446
Subordinated bonds issued @ 30,010 30,010
Tier-two capital bonds issued @) 154,692 134,665
Subtotal 12,485,729 11,895,121
Accrued interests 238,568 230,835
Total 12,724,297 12,125,956

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued by financial institutions

As at 31 December 2023

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2023 2024-2065 1.89-5.90 11,256,362
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2024-2037 2.69-4.27 926,084
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2024-2032 2.65-4.50 14,490
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2023 2024-2037 0.63-6.29 64,678
Bonds issued by the Bank 12,261,614
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2014-2023 2024-2027 1.38-5.77 25,673
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2021-2023 2024-2027 2.65-3.60 14,983
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2022-2023 2024-2026 3.35-3.50 1,599
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (2,842)
Debt securities issued by the Group 12,301,027

As at 31 December 2022

RMB financial bonds issued in domestic market 2002-2022 2023-2065 1.65-5.90 10,488,749
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2021 2023-2037 2.76-4.27 1,063,885
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in domestic market 2021-2022 2023 0.80-2.80 10,445
RMB financial bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2022 2023-2032 2.65-4.50 17,284
Foreign currency financial bonds issued in overseas market 2016-2022 2023-2037 0.00-5.47 108,255
Bonds issued by the Bank 11,688,618
Foreign currency bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2014-2022 2023-2027 1.20-5.30 31,145
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2018-2022 2023-2027 2.65-4.50 14,477
RMB bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2022 2023-2024 3.05-3.40 899
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and held by entities within the Group (4,693)

Debt securities issued by the Group 11,730,446
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(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2023

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

As at 31 December 2022

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Group and the Bank in domestic market 2011-2012 2041-2062 5.50-6.05 30,010

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its
redemption option on a specified date, the coupon rate of the bond remains unchanged.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2023

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2020-2023 2030-2038 2.85-3.88 149,776
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,916
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 154,692

As at 31 December 2022

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2018-2022 2028-2037 2.85-4.45 129,837
USD Tier-two capital bonds issued by the subsidiaries in overseas market 2020 2030 2.88 4,828
Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Group 134,665

The Group issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2020, 2022 and 2023. The Group has an option to redeem part or all of the
bond at face value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were
met, subject to regulatory approval. If the Group did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds
when regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

36.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Deferred government subsidies for education loans 20,250 24,359
Provision for loss on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 20,159 23,361
VAT and other taxes payable 12,530 12,431
Leases liabilities 10,357 6,501
Amounts received in advance 9,277 10,116
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 7,505 9,328
Security deposits for leasing 6,906 7,242
Accrued staff cost 3,627 3,352
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,689 2,344
Payables for security brokerage service 1,439 71
Others 8,504 9,104

Total 103,243 108,209
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37.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022

MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100.00

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.

38.CAPITAL RESERVE

As at 31 December

Capital premium 182,650 182,650

39. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

As at 1 January (14,624) (11,547)

Amount of loss of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 9,110 (3,529)
- Net gain on investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI reclassified to profit or loss on disposal 264 -
- Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 1183 244

Amount of loss of equity instruments designated as FVTOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income

- Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVTOCI (44) (621)
Less: income tax effect (2,367) 829
As at 31 December (7,548) (14,624)

40.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP to statutory
surplus reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank's share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to
statutory surplus reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated loss of the Bank or to increase the
Bank's share capital upon approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after
such capitalization. In addition, the Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank (a) 272,496 255,123
Subsidiaries (b) 5,882 5,302
Total 278,378 260,425

(a) Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the
Bank is required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5%
of the outstanding balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

(b) Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the year
as general reserves.

41.0THER RESERVE

Other reserve includes remeasurement of employee benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges.
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42.RETAINED EARNINGS

As at 1 January 513,776 465,883
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 85,283 82,728
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (a) (7,381) (7,272)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve (b) (i) (7,271) (6,419)
Appropriation to general reserve (b) (i) (17,953) (1,914)
Dividends (b) (iii) (20,683) (19,740)
Others (43) 510
As at 31 December 545,728 513,776

(a) Profit appropriation for 2023

The Bank appropriated RMB7,381 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2023. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the
Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 is pending for approval by the Board of Directors.

(b) Profit appropriation for 2022

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 26 December 2023, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approved as following:

(i) An appropriation of RMB7,271 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

(i) An appropriation of RMB17,373 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

(iiiy A cash dividend of RMB20, 683 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 which has been included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023. As ended 31 December 2023, the cash dividend has been paid.

(c) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, retained eamings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank’s subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting
RMB10,558 million and RMB8,529 million.

43.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 10,367 10,252
CDB Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 13,273 12,205
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,349 3,298
Total 26,989 25,755

44.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Balance with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 168,680 141,569

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 476,884 404,707
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 135,435 118,323
Investments in government bonds 7,436 1,784

Total 788,435 666,383




I 166 ERFA4$R1T CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

45.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Consolidated structured entities

Structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed by
the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities. Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities referred to above totaled RMB12,519 million (31 December 2022: RMB14,600
million).

(2) Unconsolidated structured entities

(a) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management products,
asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds. The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these unconsolidated
structured entities.

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB146,922 million
(31 December 2022: RMB162,668 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s share in these structured entities amounted to RMB6,525 million (31 December
2022: RMB8,491 million). These amounts represented the Group’s maximum exposure to these structured entities.

(b) Structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the third party

The Group classifies its interest held in other structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2023, the information on the amount of total
assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public domain.

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of structured entities issued by other institutions held by the Group amounted to RMB17,760 million (31 December 2022:
RMB20,040 million). Among them, the balance reported on trading assets and other financial assets amounted to RMB17,639 million (31 December 2022:
RMB19,755 million), and the balance reported on the investment on debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to RMB121
million (31 December 2022: RMB285 million)

46.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Note 3(13) (h) and Note 4(4).

As at 31 December 2023, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB143 million
(31 December 2022: RMB148 million), which retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and therefore has not been
derecognized in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no continuing involvement in these assets. And the Group had no balance in respect of loans transferred
that qualified for full derecognition.

47.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office
level. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments: banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating
segments are set out below:

o
—_
~

Banking operations

This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending, deposits,
agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services. Debt issuance is the major
source of funding to corporate banking operations. The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign exchange transactions, bond
investments, customer-based interest rate and foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

(2) Equity investment
This segment consists of equity investment activities.
(3) Leasing operations
This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which the Group acts as a lessor.

=
=

Securities operations
This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and underwriting operations.
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Interest income 630,685 2,044 11,682 1,182 (3,553) 642,040
Interest expense (472,260) (1,857) (10,405) (760) 3,555 (481,727)
Net interest income 158,425 187 1,277 422 2 160,313
Include: Net interest income from customers 158,274 205 1,510 324 - 160,313
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 151 (18) (233) 98 2 -
Net fee and commission income 164 150 (86) 272 30 530
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 138 1571 (25) 266 - 5380
Inter-segment net fee and commission 26 (1) (61) 6 30 -
Other income, net (a) 26,417 8,122 7,609 265 (1,025) 41,388
Operating expenses and credit impairment and
other impairment losses on assets (95.629) (829) (8.848) (488) (64 (99.854)
Profit before income tax 89,377 8,134 5,452 471 (1,057) 102,377
As at 31 December 2023
Segment assets 17,998,894 236,084 407,672 45,604 (225,995) 18,462,259
Unallocated assets 192,263
Total assets 18,654,522
Segment liabilities 16,625,882 61,208 371,400 29,582 (119,869) 16,968,203
Unallocated liabilities 6,589
Total liabilities 16,974,792
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,756 142 6,098 55 (88) 7,963
Capital expenditure 1,297 27 19,134 10 - 20,468
Credit Impairment losses 79,644 (407) 744 (66) 174 80,089
Other impairment losses on assets 76 - 1,499 - - 1,675
Credit commitments 3,626,788 244 - - (17,432) 3,609,600
2022 Banking inve::ueim Leasing Securities a::::oml:::::g: Total
Interest income 623,239 766 10,758 1,128 (2,611) 633,280
Interest expense (454,946) (1,903) (8,207) (531) 2,617 (462,970)
Net interest income 168,293 (1,137) 2,551 597 6 170,310
Include: Net interest income from customers 167,271 (64) 2,726 377 - 170,310
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,022 (1,073) (175) 220 6 -
Net fee and commission income 609 592 (51) 373 (19) 1,504
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 559 592 (10) 363 - 1,604
Inter-segment net fee and commission 50 - (41) 10 (19) -
Other income, net (a) 47,415 6,300 7,812 681 (933) 61,275
Operatilng expenses and credit impairment and other (128,631) (980) (5,354) (1,096) 119 (135,942)
impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 87,686 4,775 4,958 555 (827) 97,147
As at 31 December 2022
Segment assets 17,651,016 226,772 352,886 43,714 (205,671) 18,068,717
Unallocated assets 174,366
Total assets 18,243,083
Segment liabilities 16,322,299 62,195 318,893 28,126 (102,147) 16,629,366
Unallocated liabilities 8,136
Total liabilities 16,637,502
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 2,006 (137) 5,381 60 122 7,432
Capital expenditure 647 315 14,059 9 - 15,030
Credit Impairment losses 113,425 4 1,227 548 222 115,426
Other impairment losses on assets 1 - 3,030 - - 3,031
Credit commitments 3,737,608 244 - - (9,000) 3,728,852

(a) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gain, net (loss)/gain on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income,
net (loss)/gain on investment securities, other income and share of profit of associates and joint ventures.
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48.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of
transactions with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 54,987 56,248

Interest rate range (%) 1.65-4.42 1.99-4.42

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,736 2,137
Net trading gain 34 74
(2) Huijin

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity
investments as authorized by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the
obligations as an investor of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital
of the Bank.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 634 1,706
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 93,612 83,106
Interest rate range (%) 2.44-4.20 2.15-4.23

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income 2,522 2,240

Net trading gain 16 78

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under
normal commercial terms.

3

-

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. lts principal activities are domestic and overseas
investments in project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of
business under normal commercial terms.

Transaction with subsidiaries
The carrying amount of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank's statement of financial position is as follows:

o
£y
=

As at 31 December

Assets

Placements with banks and other financial institutions 9,953 4,959
Derivative financial assets - 1
Loans and advances to customers 44,831 41,406
Other assets 20 22
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 10,037 9,771
Derivative financial liabilities - 15
Due to customers 154,158 121,920
Debt securities issued 2,902 4,569
Other liabilities 9 6

As at 31 December 2023, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to subsidiaries were RMB17,432 million
(31 December 2022: RMB9,000 million).
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Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s income statement are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 1,853 1,816
Interest expense (1,864) (1,003)
Fee and commission income 51 60
Fee and commission expense (5) (10)
Dividend income 12,018 7,863

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The Group’s
transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were not significant.

(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material transactions with key management personnel.

(7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from the
obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

49.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(1) Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,

management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating result of
the Group.

(2) Credit commitments

As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,603,476 3,716,738
Letters of guarantee issued 3,347 3,703
Bank acceptance 1,623 6,375
Letters of credit issued 1,154 2,036
Total 3,609,600 3,728,852

As at 31 December 2023, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB60,147 million (31 December 2022:
RMB50,793 million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(3) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

- equity instruments 41,341 47,833
- property and equipment 27,279 38,001
Total 68,620 85,834

The Group’s capital commitments of property and equipment are mainly property and equipment for lease. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s capital
commitments of property and equipment for lease were RMB26,700 million (31 December 2022: RMB37,333 million).



170

ERF%4RTT CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(4) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

2022

Contractual amount 36,621 28,014

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group's finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(5) Collateral

(a) Assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

2022

Bonds 18,029 18,611

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit — 500

As at 31 December 2023, the principal of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB17,039 million (31 December 2022:
RMB15,367 million) as set out in Note 33. All repurchase agreements were due within 1 year from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables, leased assets under operating lease, bonds and deposits with banks, where the Group was a lessor, were
pledged as collateral for borrowings from other banks. As at 31 December 2023, carrying amounts of these collateral amounted to RMB224,744 million (31
December 2022: RMB158,952 million).

As at 31 December 2023, certain bonds were pledged as collateral for due to customers and securities lending by the Group, the carrying amounts of two
business mentioned above amounted to RMB3,271 million and 1,322 million, respectively (31 December 2022: RMB2,001 million and 846 million, respectively).
(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of financial assets under resale agreements (Note 20). The Group did not hold any
collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

50.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

(2

~

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the combinations
of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot be carried out
without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is, therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and minimize the
potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these
funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors, basic industries and pillar industries. The Group seeks to increase its profitability by
minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management needs
and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including, among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest rate
floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs of its customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the risk
limits in reliance of reliable and timely information from its information systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly reviews
and continues to make improvement to its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate best practices.
The most important types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group’s business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, and investment activities including debt instruments and derivatives.
Off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, also expose the Group to credit risk.

In accordance with the former CBIRC'’s regulatory guidelines on the internal credit rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies, procedures, control and management, data collection and IT infrastructure. It is a
two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility credit ratings for estimated
loss given default when the customers become default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the Group has also established internal
guidelines and criteria for country rating, sovereign rating, regional rating and industry rating.



(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures
on the entire credit process, including credit due diligence and loan
applications, credit review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending
monitoring and non-performing loan management. By applying strict
and standardized credit operational procedures, the Group strives
to strengthen its end-to-end credit management for pre-lending due
diligence, credit rating, review and approval, disbursement review
and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the mitigating
effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal of
non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial
asset. Indicators that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has
been completed; and (2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but
to foreclose and dispose of the collateral, and does not expect the value
of the collateral to fully cover the principal and interest of the financial
asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is
also exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and
it manages its risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully
screening counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and investment returns, adopting rating-based underwriting
by comprehensively considering the internal and external credit rating
information, and reviewing and adjusting credit limits in a timely manner
through limit management systems. In addition, the Group also provides
off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantee services to
customers, which may expose the Group to the risk of having to make
payments on behalf of customers in case they default, where the risk
approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group adopts risk
control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the credit
business to minimize their credit risk

(b) Collateral

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and
measures, including the requirement for collateral. The Group has
developed operational guidelines for the acceptability of specific assets
pledged as collateral and their capability to mitigate credit risk, and
regularly reviews the assessment results of the collateral.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as
toll collection rights, real estates, land use rights, equity securities, cash
deposits and equipment, collaterals held for financial assets other than
loans and advances to customers are dependent on the nature of the
financial instruments. Debt instruments are generally unsecured, but for
asset-backed securities and other similar instruments, they are generally
secured by pools of financial assets. As at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022, the Group held no significant foreclosed assets.

(c) Credit ratings

The Group uses internal client credit ratings to reflect the probability of
default assessments of individual counterparties, and employs different
internal rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrower
information and specific information (e.g., the borrower's revenue and the
industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into the rating models, and
also includes external data of the borrower as supplementary information.
In addition, the models also fully consider the expert judgments of credit
and risk management officers, thus enabling the credit ratings to capture
factors that may not have been considered by other sources.

(d) Measurement of ECL

The Group applies ECL models to calculate the credit loss allowance for
its debt financial instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTOCI, as
well as loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The method
applied by the Group in assessing the expected credit loss of its financial
assets is a risk parameters model.

For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of
expected credit loss, the group assesses whether the credit risk of the
relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since the initial
recognition and uses a “three-Stage” model to measure the credit loss
allowance and ECL:
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Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition,
but it is not considered as a

financial instrument with credit impairment.
Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an
amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument
in the next 12 months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall
have their credit loss allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the
expected credit loss of the financial instrument expected to arise over its
remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex models and assumptions in calculating the expected credit
loss. These models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by customers and the corresponding loss). In assessing the
expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group
uses judgments, assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics;

- Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk
(“SICR");

- Definition of default and credit impairment;

- Establishment of the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis,
a grouping of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous.
In performing this grouping, the Group uses information such as the
type of borrower, industry, usage, and type of collateral to ensure the
reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

Selection of appropriate models and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and
whether a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group
recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss
for the next 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key
parameters of ECL measurement include possibility of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD). The Group establishes
its PD, LGD and EAD based on the internal rating system currently used
for risk management purposes. In accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 9, the Group performs quantitative analyses of historical statistics
(such as counterparty ratings, guarantee methods and collateral types,
repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking information.

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. The definition of default refers to
the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract or other violations
of the debt contract that have a significant impact on the normal debt
repayment.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default (EAD).

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time
of default.
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The group uses an internal credit rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and
specific loan information collected at the time of a loan application are
incorporated into the rating model. The group regularly monitors and
reviews the assumptions associated with the calculation of expected
credit loss, including the probability of default and changes in value of the
collateral over each period.

In 2023, no significant changes were made to the estimated methodology
or key assumptions.

Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition at
each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of
its financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable
and supportable criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been
a significant change in their credit risk. Key factors considered include
regulatory and operating environments, internal and external credit ratings,
solvency, viability as a going concern, terms of loan contracts, repayment
behaviors, among others. The Group compares the risk of default of
financial instruments on the reporting date against that on the initial
recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to help determine
whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s
PD, changes in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided
that credit risk has significantly increased if contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. As of the report date, low credit risk financial instruments
with a high credit rating (internal rating above admittance threshold) are
deemed to have a low credit risk and no assessment is performed as
to whether the credit risk on the report date has significantly increased
compared with the initial recognition.

Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment
occurs under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives. In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired,
the Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative
factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation
to interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more
than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in
corporate bonds due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit loss.

The credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking
information. Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies
the key economic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various
business types, including macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect
index and Real estate index, etc. The impact of these economic indicators
on the PDs and the LGDs varies from one type of business to another.
The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert
forecasts and statistical analyses to determine the relationships between
these economic indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group assesses
and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual basis,
calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularly reviews the
assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group
determines the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and
pessimistic scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast
under each scenario. The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts
include the most likely base scenario and a number of possible scenarios
that reflect positive or negative trends in the economy. The group assesses
and determines the weighting of each scenario. The weighting of base
scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the rest scenarios.
The Group uses the weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime
ECL (Stage 2 and Stage 3) to measure relevant impairment allowances.
These weighted credit losses are calculated by multiplying the expected
credit loss under each scenario by the corresponding scenario weighting.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements
reflect the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, and the
weighted amount of the expected credit loss recognized in the financial
statements is generally higher than that calculated by using only the
benchmark scenario. In 2023, the Group has taken into account different
macroeconomic scenarios and made forward-looking forecasts of
macroeconomic indicators. Including: quarter-on-quarter GDP growth,
used to estimate ECL, ranges from 4.57% to 4.78% in the neutral scenario
for 2024.

At 31 December 2023, the Group concluded that three scenarios are
appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario. As at 31 December 2023, the incremental impact to the credit
loss allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base
scenario was less than 5%.

Scenario weightings

Scenario weighting is one of the important methods of sensitivity analysis.
The decremental impact would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase
of probability-weighting of the optimistic scenario and a 10% decrease of
the probability-weighting of the base case scenario when measuring the
ECL derived from using aforesaid three scenarios. The incremental impact
would be less than 5%, assuming a 10% increase on probability-weighting
of the pessimistic scenario and a 10% decrease on probability-weighted
of the base case scenario when measuring the ECL derived from using
aforesaid three scenarios.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of
each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash
flows are discounted and aggregated to determine the present value of
the assets’ future cash flows.
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(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements

As at 31 December

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks 98,364 113,857
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 143,422 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 544,247 471,537
Derivative financial assets 3,669 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 477,525 404,823
Loans and advances to customers 14,244,743 13,899,107
Financial Investments 731,493 756,510
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at fair value through profit or loss 731,095 755,920
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 398 590
Debt instruments at amortized cost 700,985 935,357
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,167,521 1,022,499
Others 8,536 11,571
Subtotal 18,120,405 17,739,680
Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments
Loan commitments 3,603,476 3,716,738
Letters of guarantee issued 3,347 3,703
Bank acceptance 1,623 6,375
Letters of credit issued 1,154 2,036
Subtotal 3,609,600 3,728,852
Total 21,730,005 21,468,532

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are
based on carrying amounts of these assets.

(f) Credit commitments and provision

Change in provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 1 January 2023 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (956) 956 - -
Transfers to Stage 1 2,763 (2,763) - -
Remeasurement (a) (1,946) 4,093 - 2,147
Charge for the year 2,841 - - 2,841

Mature or reverse (3,087) (5,197) - (8,284)
Foreign exchange differences 10 84 - 94
As at 31 December 2023 7,505 12,410 244 20,159
As at 1 January 2022 4,019 12,930 244 17,193
Transfers:

Transfers to Stage 2 (5,079) 5,079 - -
Transfers to Stage 1 879 (879) - -
Remeasurement (a) 6,910 4175 - 11,085
Charge for the year 3,008 - - 3,008
Mature or reverse (1,888) (6,600) - (8,488)
Foreign exchange differences 31 532 - 563
As at 31 December 2022 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

(a) Remeasurement includes regular review of inputs to the models, e.g., reviewing of PDs and LGDs; transfer among Stage 1, Stage 2 and 3 due to
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts experiencing significant increases (or decrease) of credit impairment in the period, and the
consequent “set up” (or “set down”) between 12-month and lifetime ECL.
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(9) The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk”.

-  “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of
expected loss.

- “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.
“High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed for the different expected credit loss, unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a
12-month expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit loss.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 13,372,962 = = 13,372,962
Medium Risk = 1,325,842 = 1,325,842
High Risk - - 187,762 187,762
Total 13,372,962 1,325,842 187,762 14,886,566
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (238,554) (329,057) (128,634) (696,245)
Net 13,134,408 996,785 59,128 14,190,321

Credit Grade

Low Risk 12,892,388 - - 12,892,388
Medium Risk - 1,344,107 - 1,344,107
High Risk - - 233,718 233,718
Total 12,892,388 1,344,107 233,718 14,470,213
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (209,408) (254,675) (155,120) (619,203)
Net 12,682,980 1,089,432 78,598 13,851,010

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 710,920 - - 710,920
Medium Risk - 28 - 28
High Risk - - 1,670 1,670
Total 710,920 28 1,670 712,618
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (10,129) (6) (1,498) (11,633)
Net 700,791 22 172 700,985

Credit Grade

Low Risk 945,348 - - 945,348
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 2,024 2,024
Total 945,348 - 2,024 947,372
Less: Credit impairment losses on assets (10,209) - (1,806) (12,015)
Net 935,139 - 218 935,357

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,167,504 - - 1,167,504
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 17 17
Total 1,167,504 - 17 1,167,521

Expected credit loss on assets (236) - (1,326) (1,562)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,022,466 - - 1,022,466
Medium Risk - - - -
High Risk - - 33 33
Total 1,022,466 - 33 1,022,499
Expected credit loss on assets (128) - (1,324) (1,452)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,489,940 - - 3,489,940
Medium Risk - 119,416 - 119,416
High Risk = = 244 244
Total 3,489,940 119,416 244 3,609,600

Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,568,268 - - 3,568,268

Medium Risk - 160,340 - 160,340

High Risk - - 244 244

Total 3,568,268 160,340 244 3,728,852
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,505 = = 7,505
Medium Risk - 12,410 - 12,410
High Risk = = 244 244
Total 7,505 12,410 244 20,159

Credit Grade

Low Risk 7,880 - - 7,880
Medium Risk - 15,237 - 15,237
High Risk - - 244 244
Total 7,880 15,237 244 23,361

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession
of collateral to mitigate potential credit loss. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential loss are shown
below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 187,762 (128,634) 59,128 30,352
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,670 (1,498) 172 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 17 (1,326) 17 -

Total 189,449 (131,458) 59,317 30,352
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Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 233,718 (155,120) 78,598 58,653
Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,024 (1,806) 218 -
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 33 (1,324) 33 -
Total 235,775 (158,250) 78,849 58,653

The fair value of collateral presented in the table above is up to the book value of the credit risk exposure. As at 31 December 2023, the quality of the Group's
collateral or credit enhancement did not change significantly compared to prior year.

(h) Loans and advances to customers
The principal of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

Unsecured loans 497,271 1,531,358 2,384,665 4,413,294
Guaranteed loans 79,015 234,832 947,095 1,260,942
Loans secured by collateral 12,327 71,083 1,866,124 1,949,634
Pledged loans 6,719 35,062 7,238,951 7,280,732
Total 595,332 1,872,335 12,436,835 14,904,502

Unsecured loans 546,288 1,381,615 2,229,330 4,157,133
Guaranteed loans 110,219 241,722 829,154 1,181,095
Loans secured by collateral 57,517 169,704 1,637,374 1,864,595
Pledged loans 13,096 48,844 7,210,161 7,272,101
Total 727,120 1,841,785 11,906,019 14,474,924

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Loans and advances to customers

Road transportation 2,815,160 19 2,629,214 18
Urban renewal 2,640,962 18 2,791,908 19
Wa&izigggservaﬁon, environmental protection and public 1,552,228 10 1,503,640 10
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,529,245 10 1,436,376 10
Urban public transportation 1,173,226 8 1,062,034 7
Railway transportation 1,136,320 8 1,096,774 8
Manufacturing industry 1,084,370 7 1,015,403 7
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 554,406 4 570,021 4
Other transportation 528,563 4 511,028 4
Education 312,282 2 281,996 2
Mining industry 239,530 2 322,431 2
Financial industry 161,892 1 149,456 1
Telzgfvrirér::nication and other information transmission 72,632 ] 75.979 ]
Others 1,103,686 6 1,028,664 7

Total 14,904,502 100 14,474,924 100
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The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the terms of loans and advances provided to customers due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position which resulted in the borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations, with a view to maximising recovery. Such restructuring activities
include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness, etc. Restructuring measures are based on indicators or criteria
which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These measures are kept under continuous review. As at 31 December
2023, the Group's total restructured loans amounted to RMB261,770 million (31 December 2022: RMB69,939 million).

(i) Investment in debt instruments

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 85,060 8,854 10 - 1,065,884 - 1,159,808
Financial institutions 53,158 455 5,088 3,656 = = 62,357
Corporates 330,701 1,053 8 192 - 2,605 334,559
Asset-backed securities 180 8 - - - - 188
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 467,873 - 16,840 6,323 - - 491,036
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 3,743 3,743
Investments in trust plans and others 10 31 - - - 3,873 3,914
Asset management plans - - - - - 335 335
Total 936,982 10,401 21,946 10,171 1,065,884 10,656 2,055,940

As at 31 December 2022

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 85,528 2,666 10 - 1,190,006 - 1,278,210
Financial institutions 77,448 728 3,364 2,727 - - 84,267
Corporates 271,008 2,646 717 262 - 3,571 278,204
Asset-backed securities 257 32 - - - - 289
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (a) 441,779 - 31,978 9,576 - - 483,333
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 3,450 3,450
Investments in trust plans and others - - - - - 1,316 1,316
Asset management plans - - - - - 382 382
Total 876,020 6,072 36,069 12,565 1,190,006 8,719 2,129,451

(a) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.
(b) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and Policy banks

of China.

(c) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset
management plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.
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() Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties:

31 December 2023

Balances with central banks 98,364 = = 98,364
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 143,422 - 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 544,247 - 544,247
Derivative financial assets 439 3,130 - 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 477,456 69 477,525
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,122 174,616 554,755 731,493
Debt instruments at amortized cost 599,487 244 101,254 700,985
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 558,200 382,766 226,555 1,167,521
Other financial assets 2,441 963 5132 8,536
Total 1,261,053 1,726,844 887,765 3,875,662

31 December 2022

Balances with central banks 113,857 - - 113,857
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 113,326 - 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 471,537 - 471,537
Derivative financial assets 4107 6,986 - 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 404,823 - 404,823
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 4,741 149,231 602,538 756,510
Debt instruments at amortized cost 838,377 514 96,466 935,357
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 435,092 421,954 165,453 1,022,499
Other financial assets 3,467 2,138 5,966 11,571
Total 1,399,641 1,570,509 870,423 3,840,573
(3) Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of fluctuations in the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from changes in market prices including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in it trading book
and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to establish an effective market risk management system, which can fully identify, accurately measure,
continuously monitor and effectively control market risks in trading and non-trading businesses, and ensure that market risk exposures are controlled within an
acceptable range of the Group, and achieve a balance between risks and benefits.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and its affiliated committees. The Governors on Risk Management supervise
overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book

The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.

Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or for economic hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and
off-balance sheet financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and the Business Development Department within
the scope of their respective roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department is responsible for managing the market risk of the whole bank, and
specifically manages the market risk of the treasury transaction business. The Business Development Department assumes the responsibility for the overall
asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical preparation of
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book.

Market risk measurement and management approaches
Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book through exposure limit control, stop-loss limit control and sensitivity limit control.
The Group establishes appropriate risk limits considering various risk factors of market risk, business complexity and other factors. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc.
The Business Development Department is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk using gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis and other methods.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer to Note 50 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 50 (3) (b) foreign exchange rate
risk (including trading book and banking book).
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(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC. The PBOC
established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and
market factors. In general, the interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic
value, by using gap analysis, duration analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging
instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity
of projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 98,364 - - - - 2 98,366

Dgpo;ltsl with banks and other financial 119,681 3113 12,886 _ _ 7,742 143,422
institutions

Plgcemehts with banks and other financial 226,381 248,849 67,850 _ _ 1167 544,047
institutions

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 3,569 3,569

Financial assets held under resale 476,884 400 B _ _ on 477,525
agreements

Loans and advances to customers 4,704,724 8,226,131 245,425 217,688 814,032 36,743 14,244,743

Financial assets measured at fair value 15,203 120,481 10112 36,472 70,120 649,673 902,061

through profit or loss

Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 15,203 120,300 9912 36,472 70,120 649,656 901,663
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Designated) B 161 200 - - 7 998
Debt instruments at amortized cost 12,607 234,774 444,585 131 = 8,888 700,985
Financial asser avt fair value through other 399.236 155,154 318.958 142,307 141,647 15,679 1172981
comprehensive income
Other financial assets 172 - - - - 8,364 8,536
Total financial assets 6,053,252 8,988,902 1,099,816 396,598 1,025,799 732,068 18,296,435
Financial liabilities:
Dgpo;lts. from banks and other financial 553,566 1944613 100 B B 8,071 2,506,350
institutions
Bgrroyvm.gs from governments and financial 268,521 352,031 45,500 60 _ 7,839 673.951
institutions
Placements from banks 25,525 15,304 1,451 83 550 352 43,265
Financial \|ab|\|lhes measured at fair value a B B _ B 2,621 2,621
through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 8,271 8,271
Financial assets sold under repurchase 15,461 1578 B B B 51 17,000
agreements
Due to customers 747,420 89,734 11,281 4,143 2,146 8,530 863,254
Debt securities issued 1,024,225 1,108,774 5,207,684 4,360,893 784,153 238,568 12,724,297
Other financial liabilities 1,440 2 500 3 - 27,741 29,686
Total financial liabilities 2,636,158 3,512,036 5,266,516 4,365,182 786,849 302,044 16,868,785

Net interest repricing gap 3,417,094 5,476,866 (4,166,700) (3,968,584) 238,950 430,024 1,427,650
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Within 3 Non-interest

31 December 2022 3-12 months 1-5 years 5-10 years Over 10 years . Total
months bearing

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 109,410 - - - - 4,450 113,860

De‘polsnsv with banks and other financial 101,501 3311 B _ _ 8,424 113,306
institutions

P\gce_mepts with banks and other financial 155,609 264,786 50,370 _ _ 770 471,537
institutions

Derivative financial assets - - - - - 11,093 11,093

Financial assets held under resale 404,707 B B _ _ 116 404,823
agreements

Loans and advances to customers 4,350,965 8,185,972 261,212 229,094 828,789 43,075 13,899,107

Financial assets measured at fair value 31,555 53,007 05,807 50,321 78.016 691412 931,128

through profit or loss

Include: Trading assets and other financial
assets mandatorily classified at 31,555 53,997 25,256 50,321 78,016 691,393 930,538
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Designated) N B o7 - - 19 990
Debt instruments at amortized cost 28,523 300,221 536,703 56,813 - 13,097 935,357
F‘rc‘f)’;f,;is::z}jealtnfgr::‘ue through other 195,035 350,580 297,364 102,073 69,059 13742 1,027,853
Other financial assets 270 - - - - 11,301 11,571
Total financial assets 5,377,665 9,158,867 1,171,476 438,301 975,864 797,482 17,919,655
Financial liabilities:
Deﬁ;iﬁflg;osm banks and other financial 503,720 2,021,081 - - - 11,273 2,536,074
B(i’:s‘im?i%i;mm governments and financial 247,924 281,013 22,963 17,928 - 3,084 572,862
Placements from banks 22,850 13,339 1,785 92 566 237 38,869
F‘Tﬁgﬂ;”ﬁgg?i lrg::sured at fair value B B B B B 2,495 2495
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 18,351 18,351
Figgr:g;a:;g;;ssets sold under repurchase 15.208 159 B ~ B o5 15,302
Due to customers 1,066,631 78,877 12,033 4,074 2,110 3,999 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 921,232 987,506 5,022,845 4,263,996 699,542 230,835 12,125,956
Other financial liabilities 104 2 14 50 - 17,954 18,124
Total financial liabilities 2,777,669 3,381,977 5,059,640 4,286,140 702,218 288,203 16,495,847
Net interest repricing gap 2,599,996 5,776,890 (3,888,164) (3,847.,839) 273,646 509,279 1,423,808

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on
the Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group’s net positions of
interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount,
and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Net interest Ott.Ier
N comprehensive
income .
income
Increase 100 basis points 50,438 (35,660) 44,413 (25,932)
Decrease 100 basis points (50,438) 40,481 (44,413) 28,593

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities
into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on financial assets at FVTOCI
held at the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual
situation. In addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other
comprehensive income of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the
risk management activities to mitigate the interest rate risk.



(b) Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
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The Group'’s primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (‘JPY”) and, to a much
lesser extent, other currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposures are mainly concentrated on USD. RMB depreciated by 0.1181 RMB/1 USD during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: appreciated by 0.5889 RMB/1 USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency
exchange rates, and Earnings at Risk (“EaR”). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign

exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group’s assets and

liabilities presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

Financial assets:

As at 31 December 2023

Cash and balances with central banks 95,818 2,534 14 2,548 98,366
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 53,318 65,060 25,044 90,104 143,422
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 428,180 98,773 17,294 116,067 544,247
Derivative financial assets 2,358 1,075 136 1,211 3,569
Financial assets held under resale agreements 477,525 - - - 477,525
Loans and advances to customers 13,366,403 707,974 170,366 878,340 14,244,743
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 875,009 26,773 279 27,052 902,061
O aedos ot et o poftor o+ a4 2773 = 27052 001,083
H);Daggsg Z;s;)fs at fair value through profit or loss 208 B B B 208
Debt instruments at amortized cost 603,927 97,058 - 97,058 700,985
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,131,408 20,798 20,775 41,573 1,172,981
Others 5,540 2,585 411 2,996 8,536
Total financial assets 17,039,486 1,022,630 234,319 1,256,949 18,296,435
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,503,915 2,316 119 2,435 2,506,350
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 408,894 265,057 - 265,057 673,951
Placements from banks 18,746 13,453 11,066 24,519 43,265
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,620 1 - 1 2,621
Derivative financial liabilities 7,212 503 556 1,059 8,271
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 15,958 - 1,132 1,132 17,090
Due to customers 692,704 108,713 66,837 170,550 863,254
Debt securities issued 12,628,393 74,074 21,830 95,904 12,724,297
Others 22,327 6,843 516 7,359 29,686
Total financial liabilities 16,300,769 465,960 102,056 568,016 16,868,785
Net on-balance sheet position 738,717 556,670 132,263 688,933 1,427,650
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 225,654 (112,644) (73,589) (186,233) 39,421
Credit commitments 3,481,729 103,588 24,283 127,871 3,609,600
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As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 109,357 4,503 - 4,503 113,860
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 40,128 52,168 21,030 73,198 113,326
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 367,542 91,602 12,393 103,995 471,637
Derivative financial assets 9,225 1,762 106 1,868 11,093
Financial assets held under resale agreements 404,823 - - - 404,823
Loans and advances to customers 12,880,055 848,826 170,226 1,019,052 13,899,107
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 901,318 27,206 2,604 29,810 931,128

Include: Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily

classified at fair value through profit or loss 900,728 27206 2604 2810 930,538
Hf(];gsc,/;, Zfesj)ts at fair value through profit or loss 590 B B B 590
Debt instruments at amortized cost 840,271 95,086 - 95,086 935,357
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 975,884 38,353 13,616 51,969 1,027,853
Others 7,271 4,044 256 4,300 11,571
Total financial assets 16,535,874 1,163,550 220,231 1,383,781 17,919,655
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,521,230 6,511 8,333 14,844 2,536,074
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 328,572 242,188 2,102 244,290 572,862
Placements from banks 14,153 15,238 9,478 24,716 38,869
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 2,494 1 - 1 2,495
Derivative financial liabilities 16,916 970 465 1,435 18,351
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 14,959 433 - 433 15,392
Due to customers 1,004,043 110,364 53,317 163,681 1,167,724
Debt securities issued 11,970,722 102,203 53,031 155,234 12,125,956
Others 15,443 1,174 1,507 2,681 18,124
Total financial liabilities 15,888,532 479,082 128,233 607,315 16,495,847
Net on-balance sheet position 647,342 684,468 91,998 776,466 1,423,808
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/Notional amount) 341,191 (272,746) (66,697) (339,443) 1,748
Credit commitments 3,660,564 121,637 46,751 168,288 3,728,852

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax arising from 1% possible movement of RMB spot and forward foreign
exchange rates against a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities and derivative
instruments in the statement of financial position. There is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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As at 31 December As at 31 December
2023 2022

USD against RMB _ Profit before tax

1% appreciation 4,435 4,127

1% depreciation (4,435) (4,127)

=

In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or loss due possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are adopted
and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance sheet date;

- the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the exchange rate; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity, however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase

its assets as needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include the
forecasting and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios, plans for emergency, etc.

In 2023, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through the issuance of financial bonds. In accordance with the approval from the former CBIRC, all
RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoy the same credit of policy financial bonds for a long time without the maturity date of debt credit, which enables the Bank
to continuously raise funds in the domestic markets by issuing new bonds.

Objectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of debt
securities issued, loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It is
impracticable for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A
mismatched position might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

The Business Development Department and Treasury Department are the execution departments for detailed daily management. The Group’s liquidity
management processes include:

- Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;

- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and

- Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of new
debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and not to be
withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these commitments
will either expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a presence
and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The Group issues
fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year. These debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or the bond holders to
redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective maturity. However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of all bonds issued. As at 31
December 2023, long-term (with a maturity of one year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB10.71 trillion, and other long-term
debts (include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements and due to customers) amounted to RMB161.82 billion.
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or gross by
their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these financial
instruments by the Group may have different with the table as below:

As at 31 December 2023

Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central

- 98,167 199 - - - - - 98,366

banks

Deposits with banks and other 928 105,054 13,504 4,190 3,178 18,418 - - 145,272
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other - ~ 104300 125791 252,532 69,379 - - 552,002
financial institutions

Financial assets held under 69 B 391,184 85038 408 B B B 477,599
resale agreements

Loans and advances o 46,938 ~ 364740 359579 1427679 6,250,123 4,688,322 7,348.220 20,494,610
customers

Financial assets measured at fair ¢ qq7 - 10,235 8657 144125 142,980 171530 267,015 920,209
value through profit or loss

Debtinstruments at amortized 1,670 - 407 15869 165347 500,016 133,740 - 826,049

cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 5,474 - 328,585 72,023 174,624 373,379 174,346 175,046 1,303,477
comprehensive income

Other financial assets 301 6,296 25 4 166 1,063 708 - 8,600

Total non-derivative financial

assets 231,047 209,517 1,213,179 672,088 2,168,059 7,373,358 5,168,646 7,790,290 24,826,184

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other

! I - 74,283 29,843 454,880 1,995,050 108 - - 2,554,164
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments - - 29283 187,539 361528 105,201 7,824 = 691,465
and financial institutions

Placements from banks - - 16,405 9,411 15,893 1,598 140 531 43,978

F|n§nC|aI liabilities measlured at B B B B B 2621 B B 2,621
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under 3 B 12,557 2,976 1615 a B 3 17148
repurchase agreements

Due to customers - 702,687 11,763 39,301 91,813 11,990 5,795 3,773 867,122

Debt securities issued - - 368,684 454,448 1,370,054 6,571,124 4,979,937 1,161,856 14,906,103

Other financial liabilities 7 8,528 3,281 3,869 7,995 4,685 1,395 - 29,760

Total non-derivative financial

liabilities 7 785,498 471,816 1,152,424 3,843,948 6,697,417 4995091 1,166,160 19,112,361

Net position 231,040 (575,981) 741,363 (480,336) (1,675,889) 675,941 173,555 6,624,130 5,713,823

Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis:

Net inflow - - (95) 69 29 207 62 45 317
Derivatives settled on a gross

basis:

Total inflow - - 79,050 51,037 310,131 15,159 - - 455,377

Total outflow - - (81,038) (51,278)  (316,259) (14,909) - - (463,484)

Total derivative cash flows - - (2,083) (172) (6,099) 457 62 45 (7,790)
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Non-derivative financial assets

Cash and balances with central
banks

Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets held under
resale agreements

Loans and advances to
customers

Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized
cost

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets

Total non-derivative financial
assets

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other
financial institutions

Borrowings from governments
and financial institutions

Placements from banks

Financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Due to customers
Debt securities issued
Other financial liabilities

Total non-derivative financial
liabilities

Net position
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow

Derivatives settled on a gross
basis:

Total inflow
Total outflow

Total derivative cash flows

As at 31 December 2022

Past due/ Within 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 5-10 Over 10
On demand Total

undated month months months years years years
- 113,681 180 - - - - - 113,861
13,536 90,621 2,336 - 7,064 - - - 113,557
- - 115,972 82,067 228,205 51,674 - - 477,918
- - 404,911 - - - - - 404,911
56,325 - 136,345 296,176 1,639,202 6,105,694 4,678,759 6,950,197 19,862,698
172,776 3,450 8,604 43,511 199,251 191,504 108,801 229,900 957,797
2,024 - 407 32,794 233,050 594,644 162,614 - 1,025,533
5,357 - 97,962 96,300 372,152 340,496 123,427 91,026 1,126,720
1,261 6,145 45 2,896 1,193 63 16 30 11,649
251,279 213,897 766,762 553,744 2,680,117 7,284,075 5,073,617 7,271,153 24,094,644
- 57,358 5,509 453,194 2,046,777 - - - 2,562,838
- - 30,315 154,677 265,007 118,552 24,667 - 593,218
- - 11,560 11,491 13,810 2,058 96 611 39,626
82 - - - - - 2,413 - 2,495
- - 14,057 1,192 161 - - - 15,410
- 1,029,288 6,334 34,951 79,918 13,735 5,446 2,852 1,172,524
- - 307,008 404,234 1,230,128 6,379,368 4,953,985 1,092,436 14,367,159
1,941 3,424 99 26 2,677 9,380 571 12 18,130
2,023 1,090,070 374,882 1,059,765 3,638,478 6,523,093 4,987,178 1,095,911 18,771,400
249,256 (876,173) 391,880 (506,021)  (958,361) 760,982 86,439 6,175,242 5,323,244
- - (153) (7) (297) (127) 94 61 (429)
- - 193,834 115,619 404,620 7,961 5 - 722,039
- - (196,386)  (116,428)  (411,358) (7,634) 4 - (731,810)
- - (2,705) (816) (7,035) 200 95 61 (10,200)
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Off-balance sheet items

Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity
date.

As at 31 December 2023

Loan commitments 33,329 1,555 73,898 210,450 243,284 3,040,960 3,603,476
Letters of guarantee issued 132 300 364 2,541 10 = 3,347
Bank acceptance 263 575 785 - - - 1,623
Letters of credit issued 13 45 1,096 - - - 1,154
Total 33,737 2,475 76,143 212,991 243,294 3,040,960 3,609,600

As at 31 December 2022

Loan commitments 34,671 14,655 73,694 249,249 268,101 3,076,368 3,716,738
Letters of guarantee issued 5 - 256 3,442 - - 3,703
Bank acceptance 1,358 1,694 3,323 - - - 6,375
Letters of credit issued 298 109 1,461 168 - - 2,036
Total 36,332 16,458 78,734 252,859 268,101 3,076,368 3,728,852

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market for
a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable market
data and relies as little as possible on the unobservable inputs. The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that market participants
could consider in setting a price, and are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets of wealth
management business and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the wealth management business. Fair value of securities investments
denominated in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments
denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives is calculated by
applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. All significant inputs for the fair valuation of these financial assets and liabilities are
observable in the market.

Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses valuation
techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies’ approach. The fair
value of these financial instruments based on unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial instruments, including
credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and similarity to comparable
companies and their performance indicators, etc.



(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:
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Financial assets

As at 31 December 2023

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives = 2,288 = 2,288
- Interest rate derivatives - 1,281 - 1,281
Loans and advances to customers - - 54,422 54,422
Financial investment
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified at
fair value through profit or loss
- Bonds 430 53,014 434 53,878
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 117,890 - 117,890
- Stock and fund 12,539 720 35 13,294
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - 3,743 - 3,743
- Equity investments 9,360 11,204 691,973 712,537
- Asset management plans - 321 - 321
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)
- Bonds - 203 181 384
- Asset management plans - 14 - 14
Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Bonds 2,790 791,568 17 794,375
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 373,146 - 373,146
- Equity investments 3,460 - 2,000 5,460
Total 28,579 1,355,392 749,062 2,133,033
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,621) (2,621)
Derivative financial liabilities
- Exchange rate derivatives - (7,197) - (7,197)
- Interest rate derivatives - (1,074) - (1,074)
Total - (8,271) (2,621) (10,892)
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As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets

- Exchange rate derivatives - 7,690 - 7,690
- Interest rate derivatives - 3,403 - 3,403
Loans and advances to customers - - 48,097 48,097

Financial investment

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Trading assets and other financial assets mandatorily classified
at fair value through profit or loss

- Bonds 264 80,831 478 81,573
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 68,507 - 68,507
- Stock and fund 8,736 617 7,215 16,568
- Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 3,450 3,450
- Equity investments 11,224 17,106 731,742 760,072
- Asset management plans - 368 - 368

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

- Bonds - 576 - 576

- Asset management plans - 14 - 14

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- Bonds 4,934 602,706 33 607,673
- Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 414,826 - 414,826
- Equity investments 3,354 - 2,000 5,354
Total 28,512 1,196,644 793,015 2,018,171

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - (2,495) (2,495)

Derivative financial liabilities

— Exchange rate derivatives - (15,380) - (15,380)
- Interest rate derivatives - (2,971) - (2,971)
Total - (18,351) (2,495) (20,846)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

As at 1 January 2023 48,097 742,885 2,033 793,015
Disposals - (9,586) (12) (9,598)
Additions 8,277 14,362 = 22,639
Settlements (5,392) (63,449) = (68,841)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (8,437) - (8,437)
Total loss recognized in

- Profit or loss 3,440 16,606 - 20,046

- Other comprehensive income - 242 (4) 238
As at 31 December 2023 54,422 692,623 2,017 749,062

Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in

— Profit or loss 3,440 6,093 - 9,533

- Other comprehensive income - 225 (4) 221




e e FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 189

Financial assets

Financial assets

Loans and Financial assets .
. at fair value through Total
advances to  at fair value through ) ) .
X other comprehensive financial assets
customers profit or loss .
income
As at 1 January 2022 45,073 717,653 2,103 764,829
Disposals - (15,873) - (15,873)
Additions 9,624 92,615 33 102,272
Settlements (4,614) (58,678) - (63,292)
Transfer out from Level 3 - (3,606) - (3,606)
Total loss recognized in
- Profit or loss (1,986) 8,846 (102) 6,758
- Other comprehensive income - 1,928 (1) 1,927
As at 31 December 2022 48,097 742,885 2,033 793,015
Change in unrealized loss for the year recognized in
- Profit or loss (1,986) 1,136 (102) (952)
- Other comprehensive income - 1,928 (1) 1,927

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

(i)  Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from
banks, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables due in one year within other assets and other liabilities.

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate
the fair value.

(i)  Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take
into consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

(iii) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market
rates which are based on PBOC's established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is
estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

(iv) Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow
analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value
(v) Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar
instruments. For those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
Debt securities issued 12,724,297 13,148,371 12,125,956 12,438,951

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
- to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and
- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established
by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the NFRA. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with
the NFRA. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total capital of RMB1,912,305 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,569,809 million, total Core Tier 1 capital
RMB1,568,398 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.65%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.54%, Core Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.54%.
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